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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
ESE

Mr. Guo Ke, aged 39, holds a doctoral degree of Industrial
Economics and Investment from Northwest University. Mr. Guo
was appointed as an Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board of the Company in December 2017, and re-designated
as the Co-Chairman of the Board in March 2018. He is also
acting as the Co-Chairman of each of Executive Committee and
Investment Committee, and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is currently the vice-chairman of HNA Logistics
Group Co., Ltd.* (BMm¥ & B AR A R]), which is under HNA
Group Co., Ltd.* (B E AR A7), a substantial shareholder
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Guo joined HNA Group Co., Ltd.*
(BfEEER AF) in 2004, and was engaged with senior
management positions, namely deputy general manager of HNA
Group Finance Co., Ltd.* (G SEBE % HBRR A R]), vice-chairman
and chief executive officer of Jinhai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.*
(&EEIRMAR AR and a vice-chairman and chief executive
officer of HNA Innovation Finance Group Co., Limited, and was

also once engaged with the vice-chairman of HNA Logistics Group
Co., Ltd.* (B mEEHBR A 7). He was also the chairman and
subsequently was re-designated as to vice-chairman and chief
executive officer of Tianjin Tianhai Investment Co., Ltd. (a Shanghai
A-share listed company, Stock Code: 600751 and B-share listed
company, Stock Code: 900938), a company under HNA Group
Co., Ltd.* (BMEEABRE A7), for the period from February
2015 to March 2017. Mr. Guo has nearly 10 years working and
management experience in the fields of financial management,
capital operation and financial investment etc.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Guo and the
Company for a term commencing on 13 December 2017 and
expiring on 31 December 2019. Under the service agreement,
Mr. Guo is entitled to a monthly salary of HK$100,000 or such
higher salary and discretionary bonus as may be determined by
the Board from time to time pursuant to the authority given by the
Shareholders. Such salary was, and discretionary bonus will be,
determined with reference to the then prevailing market conditions,
the performance of the Company as well as Mr. Guo’s individual
performance.
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Mr. Xu Haohao, aged 34, holds a bachelor’s degree in Financial
Administration from University of Winnipeg, Canada. He joined
the Finance Department of the Company in January 2014 and
was appointed as the Financial Controller in April of the same year
overseeing the financial matters; and he was appointed as the
Vice-President in July of the same year. Mr. Xu was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company in December 2014. In
February 2015, he was appointed as the Executive President
of the Company, responsible for the general operation of the
Company. As from February 2016, Mr. Xu was also responsible
for the matters relating to the Company’s external communication,
strategy and investment programs, etc. He was subsequently
appointed as the President in August 2017, responsible for
the business development and day-to-day management of the
Group (i.e. the Company and its subsidiaries). In March 2018,
Mr. Xu was appointed as the Co-Chairman of the Board and
accordingly, stepped down as the President. He is also acting as
the Chairman of Nomination Committee, the Co-Chairman of each
of Executive Committee and Investment Committee and a member
of Remuneration Committee. Mr. Xu also acts as directors of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. In November 2016 and
April 2018, he has been appointed as a non-executive director
of Healthoo International Technology Holdings Limited (formerly
known as AID Partners Technology Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 8088), a listed company in Hong Kong and chief executive
officer of Zhejiang Haiyue Co. Ltd. (an A-Share listed company
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600387), which
is under HNA Group Co. Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, respectively. Before joining the Company, he
had served as the general manager of the finance department of
Hong Kong Airlines Limited. Mr. Xu has extensive management
knowledge and working experience in financial and corporate
management.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Xu and the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2017. Under the service agreement, Mr. Xu is entitled to a monthly
salary of HK$143,000 or such higher salary and discretionary
bonus as may be determined by the Board from time to time
pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. With effect
from August 2017, his monthly salary has been restated by
increasing to HK$182,000. Such salary was, and discretionary
bonus will be, determined with reference to the then prevailing
market conditions, the performance of the Company as well as
Mr. Xu’s individual performance.
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Mr. Ding Lei, aged 39, holds a bachelor’'s degree in Finance
and International Finance from Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics, a master’s degree in Statistics from Leland
Stanford Junior University and a master’s degree in Financial
Mathematics from University of Chicago. Mr. Ding was appointed
as an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer as well
as a member of each of Executive Committee and Investment
Committee in April 2018. He is responsible for the business
development and day-to-day management of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Mr. Ding joined HNA Group Co., Ltd.* (Gffi%E
AR A 7F]), a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, in
2017. He was engaged with senior management positions, namely
the chief innovation officer of HNA Modern Logistics Group Co.,
Limited* (B8fIR KR EE AR A R]), the chief innovation officer
of HNA Innovation Finance Group Co., Limited, the chairman of
HNA Import and Export Co., Limited* (&#ii O FR A7) and
the chairman of International Innovation Capital (HK) Limited.
Mr. Ding also worked as the vice-president of China clients and
marketing services of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
the director of global commodities and futures of China Merchants
Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the director of global commodities
and futures of BOC International Holdings Limited, the first vice-
president of PRC commodities department of Newedge Financial
Group and the product controller of the foreign exchange
derivatives department of Goldman Sachs. Mr. Ding has almost
10 years working and management experience in the field of
commodities marketing.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Ding and the
Company for a term commencing from 13 April 2018 and expiring
on 31 December 2019. Under the service agreement, Mr. Ding is
entitled to a monthly salary of HK$180,000 or such higher salary
and discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board from
time to time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders.
Such salary was, and discretionary bonus will be, determined
with reference to the then prevailing market conditions, the
performance of the Company as well as Mr. Ding’s individual
performance.
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Mr. Zhao Quan, aged 47, holds a bachelor’s degree of science
in Computer Science Software Management from Lanzhou
University. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board of the Company in July 2015,
re-designated as the Co-Chairman of the Board in November
2016, and subsequently stepped down as the Co-Chairman of the
Board in December 2017 but remains as an Executive Director. He
also acts as directors of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Zhao is now a non-executive director of HNA Group Co.,
Ltd.* (BfE=E AR Q7)) which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, and a director of HNA Investment Group Co.,
Ltd.* (BT EEERMH AR AR (@ Shenzhen A-share listed
company, Stock Code: 000616), a director of HNA Holding Group
Co., Ltd.* (BfnEXEEBR A7), and also the chairman and
the chief executive officer of HNA Travel Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
Bk % & FE AR A 7)) respectively, all of which are under HNA
Group Co., Ltd.* (8 EE AR A R)). Mr. Zhao joined HNA Group
Co., Ltd.* (BmEEAE 2 7)) in 2009, and was engaged with
senior management positions, namely the chief financial officer
of HNA Group Co., Ltd.” (8B HR A7), the vice-chairman
and the chairman of HNA Group Finance Co., Ltd.* (G =
Bt % B R A 7)), and the executive vice-president of HNA Group
Co., Ltd.* (BFi%EE B A ). During the period from December
2016 to December 2017, he was an executive director of Hong
Kong International Construction Investment Management Group
Co., Limited (Stock Code: 687), which is also under HNA Group
Co., Ltd.* (BiEE B A R]). Mr. Zhao has over 20 years of
working and management experience in the areas of airlines,
finance, airport investment and operation etc., and has extensive
knowledge and working experience in corporate management.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Zhao and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1
January 2017. Under the service agreement, Mr. Zhao is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$220,000 or such higher salary and
discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board from
time to time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders.
Such salary was, and discretionary bonus will be, determined
with reference to the then prevailing market conditions, the
performance of the Company as well as Mr. Zhao’s individual
performance.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
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Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony, aged 75, holds a bachelor’s
degree of commerce from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a master’s degree in business administration from New York
State University. Mr. Leung was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in April 1993 and is a member of each
of Nomination Committee and Investment Committee. He is
also a non-executive director of each of Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited (Stock Code: 697),
Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock Code: 639),
Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 103),
Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (Stock Code: 730) and
Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8271),
all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung had
worked in Citibank N.A. and W.I. Carr Sons & Co. (Overseas) in his
early years and was the managing director of CEF Group. He has
over 40 years of experience in securities and banking business,
investment, financial markets, corporate strategy and corporate
management.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Leung and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2017. Under the engagement letter, Mr. Leung is entitled to a
director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from time to
time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the director’s fee
of Mr. Leung was HK$220,000. For the financial year ending
31 December 2018, the director’s fee of Mr. Leung will be
HK$220,000 for a full year which will be paid in proportion to the
actual length of services provided by Mr. Leung. Such director’s
fees were determined with reference to Mr. Leung’s experience
and duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.

CWT International Limited 20717 F #

RIEESLE  FEThm FBEREPXKRER
BHEMNBOMNIRETHERBELSM - R
FER-NN=FHUABRZER/ARRFZIEH
TEE UARREZBEENREZEGIKE -
BHABTELTARERBEREEARAA (R
A% 697)  BHRIUEREEBR QA (K
Rk : 639) BEREESEARAR(BHAK
5% :103) ~ EROS (KE) AR AT (RO
730) RIRHR BB A BB R A A (B K5
8271) ZIFMITE R - RAEL R FEBICIHRTT
RRBEEREESFAR YEEMEREZESR
IR WEABAN T F 2B AFERRITES - K
g 2RmE - bERINEELR -

REEERNRNRGTAE— DR =F2ZESE
THE-_Z—tF—A—BHRBEW - BIEFEZE
EE - RuABRAHESTSRRREEMNT
KRET EZHE REBEE-ZTE—tF1+=A
ST —HBULEVRFE  RELEZ2EZHRR/EE
220,0007t c HEZZE—N\F+ZA=+—HL
MBFE  RELEBAFE2ESHRBAARE
220,0007C - ZAEEHZREEZEE RS TH
REHIST N RESE - ZHBRETHKBERKED
LHRBE  URERNTSBBREERE -



Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan, aged 31, holds a bachelor’s degree
of arts in Business Economics from University of California-Santa
Barbara and a Master Degree in Finance from Peking University.
Mr. Mung was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in September 2017. He was an Executive Director of
the Company from October 2013 to February 2015 and acted
as directors for a number of subsidiaries of the Company during
the said period. Mr. Mung is also an executive director and the
managing director of Global Mastermind Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8063), and an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Global Mastermind Capital Limited (Stock Code: 905),
both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong. He was also an
executive director of Global Mastermind Capital Limited (formerly
known as Mastermind Capital Limited) from November 2010 to
April 2013 and Tai United Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Bestway International Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 718) from
October 2013 to June 2015, respectively. Mr. Mung has extensive
working experience in investment and asset management.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Mung and
the Company for a term commencing on 5 September 2017 and
expiring on 31 December 2019. Under the engagement letter, Mr.
Mung is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the
Board from time to time pursuant to the authority given by the
Shareholders. For the financial year ended 31 December 2017,
the director’s fee of Mr. Mung was HK$300,000, to be paid in
proportion to the actual length of services. For the financial year
ending 31 December 2018, the director’s fee of Mr. Mung will be
HK$300,000 for a full year which will be paid in proportion to the
actual length of services provided by Mr. Mung. Such director’s
fees were determined with reference to Mr. Mung’s experience
and duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Leung Kai Cheung, aged 72, holds a bachelor’s degree in
business from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in June 2006 and is the chairman of each of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of Nomination Committee and Investment Committee. He
is also an independent non-executive director of each of Hong
Kong International Construction Investment Management Group
Co., Limited (Stock Code: 687), Shougang Concord International
Enterprises Company Limited (Stock Code: 697) and BeijingWest
Industries International Limited (Stock Code: 2339), all of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung had been a senior
executive of Citibank, N.A., the general manager of Barclays Bank
PLC in charge of Kowloon and New Territories district and was
the chairman of Star International Enterprises Limited. Mr. Leung
has extensive financial knowledge and business management
experience and is familiar with the business environment of
both Hong Kong and Mainland China and the operation of listed
companies.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Leung and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2017. Under the engagement letter, Mr. Leung is entitled to a
director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from time to
time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the director’s fee
of Mr. Leung was HK$300,000. For the financial year ending
31 December 2018, the director’s fee of Mr. Leung will be
HK$300,000 for a full year which will be paid in proportion to the
actual length of services provided by Mr. Leung. Such director’s
fees were determined with reference to Mr. Leung’s experience
and duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.

CWT International Limited 20717 F #

REEXRE  FLT5 HARBPUKRER
B4 8 c PRAN_TENENAEZITAK
RAIZBUIENTES UABZEZES RN
ZESCER URRERZESMREZES
KB - BNABELTMARESEBRERKREE
BEEABRAARNDMAIE : 687)  BREEFED
¥ERAF (MRS : 697) KRAELIHEE
BRAR (BRMDASE : 2839) 2B IEHITES - 2
EEBREBREEBITEBSRITERAE T
FREMTRBITHNE R R R BEE R IE
BERCEERAFESER - RA4AHBAELENS
BUBAHERCEEBLR  AERERAZE
BIIRIE N ET A RIREE -

2EEBERRNARFE—DARA=F2ZEBE -
FHAZZT—+tF—A—HEBEKR - REZZ
2L RAEATPHBESTERERRIEEMNT
KRET ESEHME REE-ZT—tF+=A
=+ HLVREE  REEZEESHER/BE
300,000t e HE-ZZE—N\F+_A=+—HL
HBFE  RELEAFEZESHSBAEYE
300,0007T * & BIRREE 2 BEERBKER
RO NGEREE - ZEMSKBRERKEL
KHREBE  URERMRABETE -



Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin, aged 37, holds a bachelor’s degree
(honours) in commerce from University of Toronto and a master
degree in taxation from University of Waterloo. Mr. Liem was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in June 2013 and is a member of each of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
He is a CFA charter holder and a certified public accountant
(USA). Mr. Liem is a chief investment officer of CBH Asia Limited
and a research analyst of HKGolden 50. He is a council member
and an investment committee member of the Hong Kong Baptist
University, and a member of the outreach committee of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute (HKSI). Mr. Liem has
extensive experience in securities, financial market and investment.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Liem and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2017. Under the engagement letter, Mr. Liem is entitled to a
director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from time to
time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the director’s fee
of Mr. Liem was HK$300,000. For the financial year ending 31
December 2018, the director’s fee of Mr. Liem will be HK$300,000
for a full year which will be paid in proportion to the actual length
of services provided by Mr. Liem. Such director’s fees were
determined with reference to Mr. Liem’s experience and duties as
well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
ESE

Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP, aged 66, holds a
bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Tufts University
in the United States and was conferred university fellow of Tufts
University and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in October 2013 and is a member of each of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
He is an independent non-executive director of each of C C Land
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1224), China Overseas Grand
Oceans Group Limited (Stock Code: 81), Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1929), i-CABLE Communications
Limited (Stock Code: 1097) and Wynn Macau, Limited (Stock
Code: 1128), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
He was an independent non-executive director of each of Bracell
Limited (Stock Code: 1768) and Hsin Chong Construction Group
Limited (Stock Code: 404) from October 2010 to October 2016
and from August 2002 to May 2014 respectively, both of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 30 years of
experience in toy industry and is currently the managing director
of Forward Winsome Industries Limited which is engaged in toy
manufacturing.

In addition, Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also
a member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “HKSAR”), a non-official member of
the Executive Council of the HKSAR, a member of the board of
The Airport Authority Hong Kong, the chairman of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints Committee, a
general committee member of the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce and a honorary member of the Court of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a director on the board of Heifer
International — Hong Kong and a director of the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited. Mr. Lam also holds a number of
other public and community service positions.

Mr. Lam was awarded the Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong in 1989 and the Outstanding Achievement Award — Hong
Kong Toy Industry in 1999. In 1996, he was appointed Justice of
the Peace and became a member of the Most Excellent Order of
the British Empire. Mr. Lam was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star
in 2004 and the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2011 respectively.
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An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Lam and the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2017. Under the engagement letter, Mr. Lam is entitled to a
director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from time to
time pursuant to the authority given by the Shareholders. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the director’s fee
of Mr. Lam was HK$300,000. For the financial year ending 31
December 2018, the director’s fee of Mr. Lam will be HK$300,000
for a full year which will be paid in proportion to the actual length
of services provided by Mr. Lam. Such director’s fees were
determined with reference to Mr. Lam’s experience and duties as
well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR 2017
—EtFFERIERBRE D CEXT

0.88%
Sports and leisure related
facilities business

BE RABREREES

0.50%

ESESE T

8.02%
Financial services
SRR Logistics services
0.83% Wi AR
Engineering services
TRRH
82.73%

Commodity marketing

BmE 5

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION FOR THE YEAR 2017
—E-LEEERMESS ZERE

2.57% ——— ]

North Armeri 0.77%
o) merica .
N Africa
it % 7j‘|‘| 3'5 /)‘H
Europe 0.08%
Eﬁ%‘\‘\ South America
’ EEMN
26.13%
Other parts of the
Asia Pacific Region
Efth e K@
65.47%
Mainland China
FR B AT
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
DR RS

REVENUE (HK$’000)
LXRB(EBT )

Year

2013 || 281,402
2014 || 559,998
2015 ||| 336,869
2016 | 182,546

2017

23,955,863

GROSS PROFIT (HK$’000)
ERM(BETT)

Year &
2013 B} 36107
2014 [ B[ 51058
2015 [(HM} 535879
2016 | W) 59517

2017

811,162

TOTAL ASSETS (HK$’000)
REECBE T

Year

2013 2,069,470

2014 4,197,493
2015 6,429,176
2016 6,421,122

2017 31,181,703
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRMES

The year 2017 was another important milestone year marking the
Group’s development, starting from the completion of disposal
of intelligent information business to the completion of the
acquisition of CWT Pte. Limited (formerly known as CWT Limited)
(“CWT SG”). The Group will further explore diversified business
opportunities in order to facilitate the Group’s development and
create value for the shareholders of the Company.

COMPLETION OF DISPOSAL OF
INTELLIGENT INFORMATION BUSINESS

The Group has successfully completed the disposal of the
intelligent information business in April 2017 and reported a gain
on disposal of HK$112.1 million. This disposal enhanced the
financial performance and financial position of the Group, which
led the Group to a better position for exploring future business
opportunities.

ACQUISITION OF CWT SG

2017 has been a very exciting and fruitful year for the Company
with the successful completion of the acquisition and subsequent
de-listing from the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
of CWT SG. At the end of 2017, CWT SG was recognized as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. We have been actively
assessing the global market for attractive investment opportunities
to continue to develop ourselves into a leading diversified
international company.

We believe that the acquisition of CWT SG will provide us with a
good opportunity to leverage an established international business
platform and management team to capitalize on well-established
logistics, commodity marketing and financial services platforms
while enhancing our ability to identify and develop new business
opportunities. Highlighting the importance of the acquisition to
the future of the Company, and as part of our initial integration
and branding efforts, HNA Holding Group Co. Limited has been
renamed to CWT International Limited.
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LOOKING FORWARD TO 2018

The close integration of China’s “Belt and Road Initiative” and
the “going global” industrial layout are expected to create new
business momentum within modern logistics industry in mainland
China. We will explore opportunities in the growing China market
to build a stronger engine for the further development of the
Company.

Under logistics services in Singapore, value-adding regional
distribution hub model is a key focus. With approximately 2.4
million square feet of gross floor area, it is the largest integrated
logistics facility in Singapore. We will continue our steadfast
commitment to future business expansion.

Under commodity marketing, the business retains a respectable
order book. We believe that commodity prices will remain firm
which should assist the overall health of the business for this
coming year. Competition however continues to remain intense in
both the non-ferrous metals and energy market place with ongoing
pressure on margins and the recent interest rate increases likely
to have potential negative impact. We are pursuing new avenues
of growth that fit logically alongside the existing business and
that utilize the knowledge base and experience of our core
competences.

Under financial services, the Group will continue to expand and
innovate with our product offerings to remain resilient in this
service industry and to stay ahead of our competition.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRHES

GLOBAL ECONOMY IN 2018 AND FUTURE
INVESTMENT STRATEGY

After a generally strong global market in 2017, we remain positive
about the global economy for 2018 and beyond. We are keeping
an active watch on the developments of China’s “Belt and Road
Initiative”, which we believe will be a key driver of future global
economy.

In 2018 and beyond we will focus on the ongoing integration of
the CWT SG business and in identifying and exploiting potential
synergies and opportunities with the Group. We will also continue
to explore the market for potential opportunities to complement
our existing businesses, especially as they relate to positioning
ourselves to take advantage of China’s “Belt and Road Initiative”.

Guo Ke
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 April 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The year of 2017 continued to be a remarkable one for the Group
in terms of its business development. The Group has been putting
efforts in the disposal of loss-making businesses and acquiring
businesses which deliver stable cash flows and offer great
growth prospect over the years, in order to deliver value to our
shareholders.

During the year, the Group made a voluntary general offer to
purchase the entire issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares of
CWT SG at an aggregate consideration of S$1,398.7 million
(equivalent to HK$8,109.0 million). Our successful completion of
acquisition of CWT SG and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “CWT SG Group”) enabled the Group to simultaneously
enter into logistics, engineering, financial services and commodity
marketing businesses with global presence, which provided a
solid foundation for the Group’s future business development,
especially taking advantages of China’s “Belt and Road
Initiatives”. On the other hand, following the entering into of the
formal sale and purchase agreement on 13 January 2016 to
dispose of the loss-making Intelligent Information Business, the
Group successfully completed the disposal in April 2017 at a
consideration of RMB120.0 million, with a special gain on disposal
of HK$112.1 million recognised during the year.

The Group’s revenue for the year 2017 significantly increased to
HK$23,955.9 million (2016: HK$182.5 million), and it generated
profit attributable to owners amounted to HK$204.5 million (2016:
loss attributable to owners of HK$21.9 million), the aforesaid
turnaround from loss to profit was mainly attributable to (i) a gain
on bargain purchase in the amount of HK$327.2 million recognised
in the acquisition of the CWT SG Group in September 2017; and
profit contribution of approximately HK$106.5 million from the
CWT SG Group during the period from 7 September 2017 (date
of the acquisition) to 31 December 2017; and (i) a disposal gain
in the amount of approximately HK$112.1 million arising from the
disposal of Intelligent Information Business which was completed
in April 2017; which are partially offset by financing expenses and
transaction costs incurred in relation to the Group’s acquisition
of CWT SG Group and the fair value adjustment of certain assets
held by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEEmALEE A

The operations of the six business segments of the Group during
the year are summarised as follows:

Logistics services

In logistics business, value-adding regional distribution hub
model is a key focus. We continue to actively pursue business
opportunities in this space. Our regional distribution hub
operations are supplemented by our logistics infrastructure which
provides the fundamental competitive platform for our integrated
logistics services. On that note, we have completed the warehouse
construction of our Mega Integrated Logistics Hub (“MLH”) in
2017. With approximately 2.4 million square feet of gross floor
area, it is the largest integrated logistics facility in Singapore. Our
continued investment in logistics infrastructure demonstrates our
steadfast commitment to future business expansion.

Logistics services reported a revenue of HK$1,693.9 million
and profit before tax of HK$86.0 million for the period from 7
September 2017 to 31 December 2017.

Freight logistics performed well with higher gross profit and
profit sharing from joint ventures and associates amid the
growing challenges of logistics industry. In 2017, freight logistics
contributed close to 50% and 40% of total logistics services
revenue and profit before tax respectively. Commodity logistics
was beginning to recover from its low in tandem with the
commodity industry’s gradual recovery. Warehousing & integrated
logistics services were weakened by customers’ slower trade
volume and our start-up costs of MLH which was incurred
following the temporary occupation permit of MLH obtained in
phases in 2017. The construction of an automated container
storage and retrieval infrastructure in MLH had commenced its
foundation work in the fourth quarter of 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commodity marketing

MRI Holding Pte. Limited and its subsidiaries (the “MRI Group”)
were involved in the commodity marketing business of the Group.
MRI Group contributed revenue of HK$19,819.4 million to the
Group during the period from 7 September 2017 to 31 December
2017, which was mainly driven by significantly higher commodity
prices due to strong demand and supply constraints. Commodity
marketing returned profit before tax of HK$30.8 million attributed
to fewer deals finalised and higher unrealised mark-to-market
losses recognised for the period from 7 September 2017 to 31
December 2017.

The MRI Group returned a very satisfactory result in 2017.

The primary markets in which MRI Group operates saw an
improvement in fundamental supply/demand balances during
the year with an associated increase in commodity prices which
accounted for the gross revenue increase.

Looking forward to 2018, the business retains a respectable
order book particularly in the concentrates space. We believe that
commodity prices will remain firm which should assist the overall
health of the business for this coming year.

Competition however continues to remain intense in both the non-
ferrous metals and energy market place with ongoing pressure
on margins and the recent interest rate increases likely to have
potential negative impact.

The MRI Group is pursuing new avenues of growth that fit logically
alongside the existing business and that utilise the knowledge
base and experience of our key personnel/core competences.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEEmALEE A

Financial services

Straits Financial Group Pte. Ltd and its subsidiaries (“Straits
Financial Group”) were involved in the provision of financial
brokerage services, structured trade services and asset
management services. For the period from 7 September 2017
to 31 December 2017, financial services generated a revenue
of HK$1,920.3 million and profit before tax of HK$26.8 million.
Derivatives business continued to deliver consistent performance
as lower business volume in the US market was mitigated by
the increased activity from existing and new clients in the Asian
market. Trade services performance weakened as a result of less
trade services opportunities.

Global economies saw an accelerated growth in 2017 as
compared to previous years, underpinned by more benign global
conditions. Commodity prices rebalanced from the previous lows,
but was largely driven by sectorial factors rather than a general
uptrend across the board. Nonetheless, it was a challenging year
for the derivatives industry which tested our resilience.

During the year, Straits Financial Group received its highest
accolade since its beginnings 7 years ago, the FOW Asia
Capital Markets Awards 2017 Broker of the Year (Commodities)
in recognising the tangible innovations and growth in our
commodities business. The award is an affirmation to the Straits
Financial Group’s continuous commitment and determination
in being customer-centric in our business and delivering unique
brokerage service to our clients.

Straits Financial Group expanded its self-clearing memberships
by adding the CBOE/Nasdaq to our existing Clearing Membership
in the CME Group of Exchanges. In keeping up with the
Cryptocurrency frenzy, Straits Financial Group also added the
Bitcoin Futures to our spectrum of product suite. The market
reaction has been well received with clientele trading the product
outright or using the futures as a hedge against physical positions.
Straits Financial Group also expanded its individual managed
futures offerings and Premier Fund I, a professionally managed
commodity pool, which completed its first full year of operation
returning 14.55% to its investors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2017 was also a year of challenges for the Straits Financial Group.
The industry continues to compete on fees and commissions
which put a strain on revenue margins. The lack of market volatility
in the second half of the year has seen a slowdown in trading
volumes across some of our product classes. Major banks have
also reduced their business focus and exposure on collateralised
financing, which continues to limit credit flow throughout 2017.
Our collateral financing business was consequently affected by
this adverse shift. Despite all these challenges, Straits Financial
Group was able to generate positive revenue growth within certain
market segments — revenues from the OTC broking business grew
by approximately 50% for the group.

Looking ahead to 2018, Straits Financial Group continues to
expand and innovate with our product offerings to remain relevant
in this service industry and to stay ahead of our competition.

Engineering services

Engineering services continued to deliver consistent results
generating revenue of HK$200.5 million and profit before tax
of HK$28.9 million for the period from 7 September 2017 to
31 December 2017 as majority of its revenue were secured by
contracts and recognised on a consistent basis over the contract
period.

Engineering services result 2017 was boosted by finalisation of
a design & build (“D&B”) project. Going forward, engineering
maintenance & property management will remain steady, D&B
would soften amidst construction industry weakness.

Sports and leisure related facilities business

The Group operates sports and leisure related facilities business
in Dongguan. Revenue for this business segment is mainly
contributed by green fees and relating accommodation income,
followed by club membership income, as a result, weather
conditions directly affects most of the revenue contributors in
this business segment. During the year, the Group made more
sales of short-term membership cards, and the golf courses were
only closed for 135 hours due to bad weather, as compared to
426.5 hours in the prior year, which significantly improved revenue
by 41.6%, and the sports and leisure related facilities business
segment generated profit before tax of HK$24.2 million during the
year (2016: loss of HK$36.0 million).
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BIRE AL L A

Property investment business

In the prior year, the Group successfully acquired a Grade A office
building, known as “17 Columbus Courtyard” situated in Canary
Wharf (“London Office Premises”), London in July 2016; and
a portfolio of eight golf courses in Seattle, Washington State, the
United States of America (the “US”) in December 2016. These
two acquisitions generated stable lease income amounted to
HK$120.6 million during the year, while due to the less favourable
market conditions in the United Kingdom (the “UK”) and US,
including the uncertain Brexit negotiation results and the US
interest rate rise, revaluation loss of GBP8.0 million (equivalent
to HK$81.2 million) and US$3.4 million (equivalent to HK$26.3
million) have been recorded for the London Office Premises and
US Golf Courses, respectively. As a result of these revaluation
adjustments, the property investment segment reported a loss
before tax of HK$22.5 million for the current year (2016: profit of
HK$21.3 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Although the Group had net current liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, the directors have made an assessment and
concluded that the Group is able to continue as a going concern
for at least twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and to meet its obligations, assuming the success of the following
measures:

(i) Certain borrowings totaling US$561.0 million (carrying
amount as at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$4,325.2 million) raised in connection with acquisition
of CWT SG are guaranteed by HNA Group (International)
Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. In addition, HNA Group Co., Ltd undertakes
to maintain the liquidity of the Company and HNA Group
(International) Company Limited to ensure they have
sufficient liquidity to meet the payment obligation in respect
of these borrowings as they fall due. Both HNA Group
(International) Company Limited and HNA Group Co., Ltd
will continue to provide adequate financial support to the
Group so as to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as
and when they fall due and to continue its operations for
the period of at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period; and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(if) The directors have been actively negotiating with (i)
overseas commercial banks and international financial
institutions for raising funds from new facilities to the Group;
(i) reputable real estate capital management companies for
sales and lease back arrangements in respect of certain of
the Group’s warehouses located in Singapore. The Group
has received a number of non-binding term sheets, letter of
intent and expression of interest regarding the mentioned
negotiation, and it is expected that binding agreement(s)
will be entered upon the completion of certain due diligence
procedures and negotiation on terms.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of HK$2,137.9 million. Cash and bank balances is
mostly held in Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar, Singapore
dollar, Euro and Renminbi and deposited in leading banks with
maturity dates falling within one year. Correspondingly, the Group
had loans and borrowings of HK$14,347.4 million of which an
aggregated amount HK$10,268.1 million was repayable within one
year.

Amongst these borrowings, secured bank borrowings amounted
to HK$3,095.1 million are pledged with the Group's assets as
detailed below:

Land use rights of HK$1,140.1 million;

Investment properties in the UK of HK$1,394.3 million;

Bank deposits of approximately HK$36.0 million;

Property, plant and equipment, including land and building, of
HK$3,459.5 million;

Floating charges on existing fixed and floating assets; and

Entire equity interests in HNA Belt and Road Investments
Company Limited, HNA Belt and Road Investments (BVI) Company
Limited, HNA Belt and Road Investments (Singapore) Pte. Limited
and CWT SG.
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Revolving short-term trade facilities of the Group amounted
to HK$5,344.2 million relate to short-term trade related self-
liquidating facilities to finance the Group’s commodity marketing
business. These are secured by bank balances and fixed
deposits with carrying amount of HK$36.0 million, trade and
other receivables with carrying value of HK$2,471.4 million and
inventories with carrying amount of HK$4,305.1 million.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total debt of HK$9,383.9
million, comprising of loans and borrowings and convertible bonds
but excluding the revolving short-term trade facilities amount to
HK$5,344.2 million (collectively, “Total Debt”). The consolidated
net debt of the Group comprising of Total Debt minus pledged
bank deposits, cash and bank balances amounted to HK$7,210.0
million; and the total capital of the Group (measured as Total Debt
plus equity attributable to owners of the Company) amounted to
HK$14,828.0 million. The Group’s gearing ratio (net debt to total
capital) as at 31 December 2017 was 48.6% (2016: 10.0%).

As at 31 December 2017, the total unutilised banking facilities
amounted to HK$11,870.7 million (2016: HK$89.0 million).

As at 31 December 2017, outstanding derivatives on the books
were mainly commodity contracts for hedging the commodity price
exposure. The management monitors the hedging policy closely
and the hedging level of the Group is approximately 100% of the
total commodity inventories.

The Group maintains an appropriate level of foreign currency
borrowings for natural hedge to minimise the foreign exchange
exposure. As at 31 December 2017, the borrowings denominated
in Singapore dollar, United States dollar, Great British Pound
and Renminbi amounted to S$483.0 million, US$1,284.3 million,
GBP75.2 million and RMB461.2 million, respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and arbitration
matters in the normal course of business. The Group vigorously
defends against these claims and, in the opinion of management,
the resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on
the financial position of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had a total of 6,702 employees as at 31 December
2017.

The Group’s remuneration policies are to ensure the remuneration
package as a whole is fair and competitive, motivate and
able to retain current employees and attract potential talents.
These remunerations packages have already carefully taken
into account, amongst other aspects, the Group’s business in
different jurisdictions. The employees’ remuneration packages
are comprised of salaries and discretionary bonuses, along with
retirement schemes, medical insurance and share options which
form a part of welfare benefits.
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TRERMSE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the financial year ended
31 December 2017, except for the following deviation:

- Under the first part of code provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual
general meeting. He should also invite the chairmen of the
audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
(as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should
invite another member of the committee or failing this his
duly appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should
be available to answer questions at the annual general
meeting.

Mr. Zhao Quan, a Co-Chairman of the Board of the
Company, was not able to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2017 (the “2017
AGM”) as he had another business engagement. Mr. Wang
Shuang, the other Co-Chairman of the Board took the
chair of the 2017 AGM, and other members of the Board
together with the chairman of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees and all other members of each of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees attended the
2017 AGM. The Company considers that the members of
the Board and the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees who attended the 2017 AGM were of sufficient
calibre and knowledge for answering questions at the 2017
AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of nine Directors, being
four Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set
out in the section headed “Corporate Information” of this annual
report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors are
required to, at the time of their appointment and annually, disclose
to the Company the number and the nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments
with an indication of the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” as set out on pages 4 to 13 of this annual report, the
Board members have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre
for their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-executive
Directors include:

° bringing an independent judgment at Board meetings;

° taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring

performance reporting.
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The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development
of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments. They give the Board and
the committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent
Non-executive Directors are identified, in all corporate
communications to shareholders.

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in code provision A.5.6
of the CG Code, the Company adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013, which sets out
its approach to achieve diversity on the Board composition with a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the Executive Committee and
senior management within the control and authority framework
set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Investment
Committee. Further details of these committees are set out in this
report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings
a year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic
means of communication in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”).

The Joint Company Secretaries/Company Secretary assist(s) the
Chairman/Co-Chairmen in drawing up the agenda of each Board
meeting. Draft agenda of each regular Board meeting will be sent
to all Directors for review before the agenda is issued and all
Directors may request for inclusion of other matters in the agenda.
The Chairman/Co-Chairmen will take into account the matters
proposed by the Directors and where appropriate, approve the
inclusion of such matters in the agenda of the Board meeting.
Generally, at least 14-day notice of a regular Board meeting is
given and the Company aims at giving reasonable notice for all
other Board meetings. The Company also aims at sending the
agenda and the accompanying board papers, which are prepared
in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informed decisions on matters placed before it, to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Where
queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full responses will be
given if possible.
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TRERMSE

There has been procedure in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.

The Joint Company Secretaries/Company Secretary are/is
responsible for taking minutes of Board meetings and Board
committee meetings, draft and final versions of which would be
sent to Directors for comments and records respectively, within
a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views (if
any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees
meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries/Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director/committee
member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board (including
material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates,
have no material interest in the transaction should be present at
that Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he or any of his associates has a
material interest nor shall he be counted in the quorum present at
the meeting.
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Attendance Records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEBRE

SR 8

have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and five [ -

physical Board meetings were held to consider, among other
things, various projects contemplated by the Group and to review
and approve the interim results and annual results of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ attendances in 2017 are as follows:

RBEE-_ZT—tFT A=+ -HLIBRFE

EERB2EASENEYR  ABRTAR

B3 UEBE(HPER)AKERETZE
BIER - UREHAMMEAEEZHBMEELS
FERE -

EER_TLFZHFERENT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESERE
EERHESRRH
Executive Directors HITESE
Zhao Quan izl 4/5
Wang Shuang (resigned on Wang Shuang (R=F—+4F
13 December 2017) +=A+=HEFHE) 5/5
Xu Haohao BrEE 5/5
Zhang Ke (resigned on KRR ZFE—+F
6 February 2017) ZANHEHT) —/-
Guo Ke (appointed on A (R-ZF—FF
13 December 2017) T-A+=HEZE) -/=
Zhu Chunijie (appointed on FTERNR-FE—+F
13 December 2017) 1A+ =HEZE) -/-
Non-executive Directors HHiTEE
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2|4 5/5
Wang Hao (resigned on ERZFE—LF
13 December 2017) +=A+=HEFHE) 4/5
Mung Bun Man, Alan (appointed on SmX(R-ZFE—+F
5 September 2017) NABARBZE) 1/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHTEE
Leung Kai Cheung RUEE 5/5
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin MRFE 5/5
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey N ER S 5/5
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Access to Information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information
by the management to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. The management provides all Board members with
monthly updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. Where any Director
requires more information than is volunteered by the management,
each Director has the right to separately and independently access
to the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries if
necessary.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and review
the profiles of the candidates and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and nomination of
Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office, in the case of filing a casual vacancy, only until
the next following general meeting of the Company or, in the case
of an addition to their number, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company who shall then be eligible for
re-election at such general meeting. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered

into service agreements or letters of engagement with the
Company for a term of not more than three years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company represents
at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Any re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director who
has served the board for more than nine years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Insurance for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Joint Company Secretaries/
Company Secretary facilitate(s) induction and professional
development of Directors.
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All Directors have provided to the Company their records of FIEESCRAARIRHEESEHR-_ZE—+F—A
training received during the period from 1 January 2017 or the —HEEZFAAATESHHEHIAATE
date of appointment as a director of the Company to the date of ZHEIsk—ZE—+F+-A=+—HEHE(1iE
resignation as a director of the Company or 31 December 2017, A)EEIIZ L8 BMEHOT ¢

where applicable, a summary of which is as follows:

Continuous professional
development

BESERR
Typeote) Subjectote )
Directors 2= A (i) B 2 (i)
Zhao Quan tHRE B 1
Wang Shuang (resigned on Wang Shuang(iR = ZF—-+4F B 1
13 December 2017) +=—A+=HEHE)
Xu Haohao HRER B 1
Guo Ke (appointed on AR —FE—+4F A 1
13 December 2017) T=A+=HEEE)
Zhu Chunijie (appointed on EFERNR=F—FF A 1
13 December 2017) T A+ =HEZF)
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2)B4 B 1
Wang Hao (resigned on 13 December 2017) TER=F—+F B 1
+=A+=HEF)
Mung Bun Man, Alan (appointed on SMX(R=ZF—+F B 1
5 September 2017) NAFHEZTF)
Leung Kai Cheung RS A 3
B 1
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin PRFE A 1,3
B 1
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey REESE A 1
B 1,3
Note I: Bt -
A: Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or in-  A: HEHTE  SF  wiE - WEET SRS
house training 1=
B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates B: BE#HE - FIYREZEHR
Note Il: Bt -
1: Laws, rules and regulations 1: JEB - BRIROEA
2 Finance, accounting or taxation 2: % - @i RHEE
3: Management 3: B
4 Businesses relating to the Company 4: BRI A BB FE %
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CHAIRMAN/CO-CHAIRMEN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman/Co-Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer
are separate and exercised by different individuals to reinforce
their independence and accountability. Mr. Zhao Quan/Mr. Wang
Shuang served as Chairman/Co-Chairmen during the period from
1 January 2017 to 13 December 2017. For the period from 13
December 2017 to 31 December 2017, Mr. Guo Ke served as
Chairman. During the year, Mr. Xu Haohao, as a President, served
as/took the responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Chairman/Co-Chairmen provide(s) leadership for
the Board and that the Board works ensure(s) effectively and
performs its responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer has
overall chief executive responsibility for the Group’s business
development and day-to-day management generally. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman/Co-Chairmen and the
Chief Executive Officer is clearly established and set out in writing.

In performing the role of Chairman/Co-Chairmen, while some
duties are in jointly responsible, they have been serving clearly
delineated functions within the Group in both business and
compliance matters.

The Co-Chairmen have the distinguished areas of responsibility on
the business side during their appointment period. Mr. Zhao Quan
has over 20 years of management experience and has extensive
knowledge and experience in the areas of, inter alia, property
development and property investment, including management
of companies in the PRC, he took major charge on the overall
business direction together with the existing businesses; Mr.
Wang Shuang has nearly 10 years of practical experience in the
fields of, inter alia, logistic and transportation, including extensive
experience in management of companies overseas and at the
international level, he took major charge on the new businesses.

TRERHmE

TR BHEEERITBER

IFE/BMEITRETRER 2 ABETIUNESD -
WHTEALTEL  AaEEz2BIEREE
MeRZE—+tF-—A—HE=T—tF+=A
+=H IR - #HE% L Wang Shuangft 4 AT
B/ MEERE R _E—+E+-A+=BZE_
T—+F+ZA=+—H HALEBEF - RN
FAN - REZLEERBE  BEAAQARITHE
HONEF R BELTEEEEEEES
RESSHABLENR BERITERE - THAH
AIBATHRATERNEL  AEASEEEN
¥BEERBEEE - TE HEITRETHRE
HrMZBESTIETFERRTLAEESH -

RETERE/MEEIE2ACHE  BEBOB
AEHRELARAE  HRERAKREANBRER

REREEZBEECHERY

BEXERECAEES T EAREZETEHE
BRRERS - MIEXERBR0F 2 EBLER
YR (AP BB MEBRREKDERESAEGSAE
LENHRER  BEEEGREAR  FEEA
EEEEBKHARIEAABFER 0 MWang Shuang
AR (EReE) MR ERSEGHERI10F
MR ELR  BIETESIREBEARZLEER
BBREZAEMER -
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While the Company is benefit from the services of Co-Chairmen
in their expertise areas, the Co-Chairmen can be complementary
to each other on sharing knowledge and experience and also
creating synergy on management, operation and control on the
common businesses (such as golf businesses in Dongguan and
the US).

On the compliance side, both Articles and Listing Rules have
stipulated the duties and responsibilities of the chairman. But the
Co-Chairmen can perform their roles without conflict:

1. the Articles:

If both Co-Chairmen attend the board/shareholders’
meeting, the chairman to that meeting will be agreed
between the Co-Chairmen. If only one of the Co-Chairmen
attends the board/shareholders’ meeting, the attending
Co-Chairman shall act as the chairman to that meeting.
The relevant duties and powers (including the casting vote)
under the Articles will be vested on the chairman to that
meeting.

2. the Listing Rules:
(a) Under the CG Code:

o provides leadership for the Board, ensures
that the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed
by it in a timely manner (the Co-Chairmen
can be complementary to each other in the
leadership of the board as they have different
fields on experience, and they can bring out
key and appropriate issues to be discussed
in a timely manner);

° ensures that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board meetings, and
ensuring that Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
(the Co-Chairman will brief the Directors in
his respective fields while the Joint Company
Secretaries/Company Secretary will brief on
the general matters and take the initiative to
make preparations and inform and provide
information to all Directors);
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primarily responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each board meeting
and take into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda (the Co-Chairmen
has delegated the responsibility to the Joint
Company Secretaries);

primary responsibility for ensuring that
good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established (the Co-
Chairmen relies on the assistance of Joint
Company Secretaries/Company Secretary on
this area but the Joint Company Secretaries/
Company Secretary will report to the Co-
Chairmen where necessary);

encourages all Directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board’s affairs and
take the lead to ensure that it acts in the best
interests of the Company, and encouraging
Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion
of issues and ensure that board decisions
fairly reflect board consensus (in meetings,
the relevant Co-Chairman will perform the
duties; at the other time outside meetings,
either of the Co-Chairmen and the Joint
Company Secretaries/Company Secretary
will collect and solicit from the other Directors
their opinions and feedback on other board
members and the management);

at least annually hold meetings with the Non-
executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the
Executive Directors present (either or both
of the Co-Chairmen can attend and listen to
the opinions of the Non-Executive Directors
and then reflect to the management and the
relevant parties of the Company);
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o ensures that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole (a
shareholders’ communication policy of the
Company is already in place);

° promotes a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of
Non-executive Directors in particular and
ensuring constructive relations between
Executive and Non-executive Directors (in
meetings, the relevant Co-Chairman will
perform the duties; at the other time outside
meetings, either of the Co-Chairmen and
the Joint Company Secretaries/Company
Secretary will collect and solicit from the other
Directors their opinions and feedback on
other board members and the management);

(b) Under the other Listing Rules:

° under the Model Code (Appendix 10),
considering that this is only an administration
procedure, either Co-Chairman is entitled to
receive notification and give clearance relating
to directors’ dealing and the Co-Chairman
receiving notification will inform the other Co-
Chairman. If one of the Co-Chairmen give
the notification, the other Co-Chairman will
provide a written acknowledgement; and

o for the provisions under Chapters 14 and 14A
of the Listing Rules, the relevant duties and
powers will be vested on the chairman to that
meeting.

During the year, Mr. Wang Shuang, the then Co-Chairman of
the Board, met with the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Director) without the presence of other
Executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their
own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the committees
will be reported to the Board at the next Board meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Board was established in April
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group
and has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the
corporate governance duties as follows:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s
employees and Directors;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

° to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed
by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises the Executive Directors (as
appointed from time to time) of the Company.
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During the year, no physical meeting of the Executive Committee
were held. All the work performed by Executive Committee during
the year was passed by resolution in writing.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the
Group performed by the Executive Committee during the year
included the review of the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board was established in December
1998 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

° overseeing the relationship with the Company’s auditor;
° reviewing the interim and annual financial statements;
° reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system and

internal control procedures; and

° reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain
external legal or other independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary. It is given access to and assistance from the employees
and reasonable resources to perform its duties properly.
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The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Audit Committee comprises all
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. None of
the members of the Audit Committee are former partners of the
auditor of the Company.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

JJ:% k\\A-’F& =

ENZEEIRA—RBIUFNTESEL &
REEEMART BB IIFNTESENX - #t
BEZREENE EZIK BB Z AEERA o

FR - BERZEGLRIT_REH  BKEZES
EREMBFECENT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESERE
EEBRHESRRH
Leung Kai Cheung RS
(Chairman of the Committee) (ZE2F/F) 3/3
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T 3/3
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey % 3/3
The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year B#ZZEZE@RNFRNETZTIEI (AR EHE) W
included, amongst other things, the following: N
. reviewing the final results of the Group for the financial year e EEAEBRHEE=—_T—RF+=-_A=+—
ended 31 December 2016; AL BFE 2 2FHE
. reviewing the interim results of the Group for the six months e ERAEEEEZE_T—+tFA=THIE

ended 30 June 2017; and
° proposing to appoint KPMG as the new auditor.
During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit

Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Board was established in April
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and reviewing the
progress on achieving the objectives.

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed
and put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then
be tendered to the Board for approval. In considering the
nomination of a new Director, the Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. In determining the
independence of Directors, the Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules.
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The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is one of the
Co-Chairmen of the Board and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company constitute the majority of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year, no physical meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held. All the work performed by Nomination Committee during
the year was passed by resolution in writing.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the year included, amongst other things, the following:

° assessing the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors;

° considering and making recommendations to the Board on
the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

° considering and making recommendations to the Board for
the appointment of Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan, Mr. Guo Ke
and Mr. Zhu Chunijie as Directors of the Company;

° reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with
due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board; and

° considering and making recommendations to the Board on
the change of Board composition.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in
April 2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:
° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s

policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management of the Group;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and
objectives;

° determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration

packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to
Executive Directors and senior management and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct; and

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman/Co-
Chairmen of the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company about their remuneration proposals for other
Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek any necessary
information from the employees within its scope of duties and the
authority to obtain external independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are market alignment and reward for performance. The
Company reviews the remuneration package annually, taking into
consideration of the market practice, competitive market position
and individual performance.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company constitute the majority of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year, no physical meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. All the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year was passed by resolution in writing.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the year included, amongst other things, the following:

° considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration of
the Executive Directors of the Company for the year 2018;

° considering and approving the terms of the service
agreements and the remuneration of Mr. Mung Bun Man,
Alan, Mr. Guo Ke and Mr. Zhu Chunjie;

o making recommendations to the Board on the directors’
fee of the Non-executive Directors of the Company for the
year 2018; and

° Considering the service agreements of the Executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
the engagement letter of the Non-executive Directors and
the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Note: The Remuneration Committee performed the following work in
February 2018:

. considering and determining the bonuses of the Executive
Directors of the Company for the year 2017.
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Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management
for the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee of the Board was established in July
2009 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties.

Pursuant to the terms of reference, the Investment Committee
comprises the Executive Directors (as appointed from time to time)
and two Non-executive Directors of the Company (amongst the
two Non-executive Directors, at least one must be an Independent
Non-executive Director).

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES/COMPANY
SECRETARY

The Joint Company Secretaries/Company Secretary support the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that
board policy and procedures are followed. The Joint Company
Secretaries/Company Secretary are/is also responsible for advising
the Board through the Chairman/Co- Chairmen and/or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on corporate governance
and the implementation of the CG Code. The Joint Company
Secretaries/Company Secretary are/is employee(s) of the
Company and have day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs.
Mr. Huang Tianbo has resigned as Joint Company Secretary of the
Company on 20 November 2017, Mr. Lau Lap Ngai remains as the
Company Secretary of Company.

The Joint Company Secretaries/Company Secretary report to
the Chairman/Co- Chairmen and the Chief Executive Officer. All
Directors also have access to the advice and services of the Joint
Company Secretaries/Company Secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are
followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Joint
Company Secretaries/Company Secretary are/is subject to the
Board approval.

The Joint Company Secretaries have confirmed they have each

taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year 2017.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is of the opinion that sound internal control and risk
management systems will contribute to the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations of the Group and to the safeguard of the
Group’s assets as well as the shareholders’ investment.

The Board is responsible for overall ensuring, maintaining and
overseeing the internal control and risk management systems of
the Group. The Executive Committee helps the Board to discharge
its responsibilities of ensuring and maintaining sound internal
control and risk management functions by continuously reviewing
and monitoring the internal control and risk management systems
and processes so as to ensure that they can provide reasonable
assurance against material errors and potential risk of the Group.

The internal control and risk management systems are embedded
within the business processes and function as an integral part
of the overall operations of the Group. The systems comprise a
comprehensive organization structure with assignment of definite
accountabilities and delegation of the corresponding authorities to
each post. Based on the organization structure, an accountability
system has been developed which includes a reporting system
from division head of each principal business unit to the Executive
Committee.

Business plans and budgets are prepared by the division head of
each principal business unit annually. In preparing the business
plans and budgets, the management identifies and evaluates
any potential risks. Measures will be put in place with an aim to
ultimately managing, controlling or lessening such risks.
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The business plans and budgets are subject to review and
approval by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee
reviews monthly management report on the operational and
financial results of each principal business unit and measures the
actual performance of the Group against the business plans and
budgets concerned. In this course, the Executive Committee also
reviews and assesses the effectiveness of all material controls and
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budgets of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function. The Executive Committee holds
periodical meetings with the senior management of each principal
business unit to, amongst other matters, address the issues
in such controls, identify areas of improvement and put the
appropriate measures in place.

The internal control and risk management systems of the Group is
documented and if any revision is required, such information will
be submitted to the Audit Committee for evaluation.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role
over the Group’s internal control and risk management functions
by reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of the overall internal
control and risk management systems.

The Company set up the Internal Audit Department in October
2012. To cope with the newest development of the Group, the
Risk Control Department which replaced the existing Internal
Audit Department was established under the Group’s structure in
September 2016. Upon the completion of the acquisition of CWT
SG, the Risk Control Department has been enlarged to include
the internal audit function of CWT SG Group. The audit controller
of CWT SG Group is an independent qualified resource reporting
to chief financial officer of CWT SG Group (on administrative
matters) and the Chief Risk Officer of the Group. The Risk Control
Department is independent to the operational department of
the Group and assists the Board and the Audit Committee
by consistent monitoring the risks in which the Group and its
subsidiaries encounter during operation, and ensures that all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management are in place and functioning
effectively. The Risk Control Department reports to the Board and
the Audit Committee with its findings and makes recommendations
to improve the internal control and risk management systems of
the Group. Thus the internal audit area has been included into the
Risk Control Department.
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Internal Audit Functions

During the year under review, the Board has been, through
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee (with the
assistance from the Risk Control Department), continuously
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
and considers the systems effective and adequate. The Board
also considers that adequate resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are provided.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct
of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2017.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing
in shares of the Company during the relevant period.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

On 4 December 2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned
and KPMG was appointed as the Auditor of the Company on
19 December 2017. During the year, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditors are set out as follows:

B BET BN &
R-F—tHE+-ANA - #H BERHE5
MTEBERREAGHMEFIN T —£F
t-ATABERERFAFZLEKE - FAE
Y/ B T AR R BAR B S ST

HK$'000
Services rendered P4t AR 7% SEMCT T
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EE e MEMRSEEEI(T
Non-audit services IERAET RS 9,694
KPMG EEHETMERM
Audit services EET RS 4,900
KPMG affiliates and other member firms EEREMENzEBEA AT REMKE DT
Audit services* EET IR 10,370
Non-audit services* JEEET AR 4,337
Total BET 29,301
* Including fees paid to KPMG and its affiliates and other member ~ * BRERWEECWT SGRIF E R TR ERBRES
firms for services rendered during the year prior to the acquisition BEMEHEREBBARUEEMEKER
of CWT SG. AN ZER -

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and
in presenting the annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$2,193.9 million, primarily as a result of certain
borrowings totaling US$561.0 million (carrying amount as at
31 December 2017 of approximately HK$4,325.2 million) (“the
Acquisition Borrowings”) raised in connection with the acquisition
of CWT SG. The Group is committed to repay US$300.0 million
(carrying amount as at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$2,313.0 million) and US$261.0 million (carrying amount as at
31 December 2017 of approximately HK$2,012.3 million) in May
and September 2018, respectively. The Group will be unable to
repay these Acquisition Borrowings in full when they fall due unless
it is able to obtain sufficient cash sources through refinancing
or other arrangements. The Directors considered that these
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis after taking into account of certain factors as detailed in
Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements, including the
following:

(@) The above Acquisition Borrowings are guaranteed by
HNA Group (International) Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. In addition, HNA Group Co.,
Ltd undertakes to maintain the liquidity of the Company
and HNA Group (International) Company Limited to ensure
they have sufficient liquidity to meet the payment obligation
in respect of the Acquisition Borrowings as they fall due.
Both HNA Group (International) Company Limited and HNA
Group Co., Ltd will continue to provide adequate financial
support to the Group so as to enable the Group to meet
its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue its
operations for the period of at least twelve months from the
end of the reporting period; and

(b) the Directors have been actively negotiating with (i) overseas
commercial banks and international financial institutions
for raising funds from new facilities to the Group; and (ii)
reputable real estate capital management companies for
sales and lease back arrangements in respect of certain
of the Group’s warehouses located in Singapore. The
Group has received a number of non-binding term sheets,
letters of intent and expressions of interest regarding the
mentioned negotiations, and it is expected that binding
agreement(s) will be entered upon the completion of certain
due diligence procedures and negotiation on terms.
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The statement of the auditor of the Company, KPMG, about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 78 to 87 of this annual report.

KPMG has drawn attention to Note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements in the Independent Auditor’s Report, which
describes that the Group is committed to repay certain borrowings
totally US$561.0 million (carrying amount as at 31 December
2017 of approximately HK$4,325.2 million) for the purpose of
the acquisition of CWT SG that will be due for repayment within
one year. The Group is committed to repay US$300.0 million
(carrying amount as at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$2,313.0 million) and US$261.0 million (carrying amount as at
31 December 2017 of approximately HK$2,012.3 million) in May
and September 2018, respectively. The Group will be unable to
repay these Acquisition Borrowings in full when they fall due unless
it is able to obtain sufficient cash sources through refinancing
and other arrangements. Such facts and circumstances indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, while
the audit opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the Company are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to enable
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders, the
Company provides extensive information in its annual and interim
reports and announcements. All shareholders’ communications are
also available on the Company’s website at www.cwtinternational.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditor is also
available at the annual general meeting to address shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
shareholders’ queries.
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During the year, three general meetings were held. One of the
general meetings was the annual general meeting held on 23 June
2017 (the “2017 AGM”) and the others were the following:

1. held on 7 September 2017 (the “1st GM”) for approving the

acquisition of CWT SG; and

2. held on 29 November 2017 (the “2nd GM”) for approving
the change of company name.

The ex-auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
attended the 2017 AGM. Details of the Directors’ attendances at
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the general meetings of the Company held during the year are as  IRE K@ HFsgm T ¢
follows:
Attendance Attendance Attendance
at the at the at the
2017 AGM 1st GM 2nd GM
HE HE HE
—E—tF £-R R
Directors Bz RREFAE T VN VN
Executive Directors HITEZE
Zhao Quan el X X X
Wang Shuang (resigned on Wang Shuang(iR = ZF—+4 v 4 v/
13 December 2017) +ZA+=A#F)
Xu Haohao ®hEZ " v v
Zhang Ke (resigned on RR(RZE—+F - - -
6 February 2017) ZHANHEBHT)
Guo Ke (appointed on B R=F—+F - - -
13 December 2017) FoAF=ZHEZET)
Zhu Chunijie (appointed on FERR=F—F - - -
13 December 2017 and resigned on FoA+=ZREZHERKR-F
13 April 2018) —N\EMF+=AFE)
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 284 v/ v/ /
Wang Hao (resigned on THER=F—+F 4 4 v
13 December 2017) FZAF+=ZHFE)
Mung Bun Man, Alan (appointed on SR =F—+F - 4 v/
5 September 2017) NALHEZF)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEE
Leung Kai Cheung RS v/ / /
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T / v/ /
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey sz / v/ v/
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During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched by
the Company to its shareholders for meetings held were sent for
annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and at least 10 clear business days for all other general
meetings. Separate resolutions were proposed at general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors, and all resolutions put to the vote of a general
meeting were taken by way of a poll. At the general meetings, the
chairman of the meetings explained the procedures for conducting
a poll and answered questions from shareholders on voting by
poll, if any. The results of the poll were published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convene a General Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general
meetings can request the Directors to call a general meeting
pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such request must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to the
Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the attention
of the Joint Company Secretaries.

Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote at a general meeting can request
the Company to circulate to the shareholders of the Company a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt
with at that meeting pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses
shall be borne by the shareholder(s) making the request unless
the meeting concerned is an annual general meeting and the
statement is received by the Company in time for sending with the
notice of the meeting. The request must identify the statement to
be circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Joint Company Secretaries
at least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50 shareholders
who have a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general
meeting can request the Company to give to the shareholders
of the Company notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting pursuant to
Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The request must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given, and must be authenticated by the
shareholder(s) making it and sent to the Company in hard copy
form or in electronic form for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretaries no later than 6 weeks before the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate, or if later, the time at which
notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Joint Company Secretaries at
our registered office or by email to our Company. In addition,
shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details
are set out on page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 13
November 2017 regarding the change of company name, there
was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.
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The Directors herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a Hong Kong-based investment holding
company principally engaged in commodity marketing, financial
services and logistics services. The Company is also engaged in
the affiliated business of operation of sports and leisure related
facilities, property investment, management & development, and
engineering services. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the financial status of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 88 to 295 of this annual report.

The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend the
payment of any dividend in respect of the year (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of
the performance for the year ended 31 December 2017 and an
indication of likely future development in the business of the Group
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular Notes 2, 3, 43 and 44
to the consolidated financial statements. There was no important
events affecting the Group since the end of the year 2017. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators are provided
in the Financial Highlights and the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Group can be
found throughout this annual report, in particular, the Corporate
Governance Report. An indication of likely future development
in the Company’s business can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement.
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The Company is committed to promote environmental policies,
during the year:

1. Sports and Leisure Related Facilities Business:

(@)

Facilities have been built in golf club, to treat
domestic sewage, soot and exhaust. Completed
in August 2016, the construction project passed
inspection and acceptance before commencing
operation in late September 2016. The operating
company has prepared corresponding management
solutions to ensure effective operation of the facilities
for treating domestic sewage, soot and exhaust;

We strictly screened the suppliers of pesticides,
herbicides, chemical fertilizers and other lawn
maintenance materials. Apart from that, we ensure
no purchase of such materials that are explicitly
banned by national authorities, and archives its
material purchase and application;

17 rainwater reservoirs provide water for maintaining
golf courses where such water-saving facilities
as automatic sprinkler systems are installed, with
tail water flowing back to the reservoirs for reuse.
During its daily operation, we check and repair
sprinkler systems in a timely fashion; the sprinkler
operation system was also checked, with damaged
components replaced timely. We adjust the amount
of time for sprinkling in such areas, based on actual
conditions and in a timely manner. Sprinklers are
adjusted reasonably to avoid overlap in sprinkling
areas and save water resources; and

Golf clubs are also actively engaged in energy
conservation and other areas of environmental
protection during its daily operation and life.

2. Commodity Marketing

The operating company and its employees operate in
accordance with a) Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
Policy and b) Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (issued
and last updated January 2017). The policy documents
state that the company strives to minimize detrimental
environmental issues and is committed to meeting all
environmental laws and legislation in the countries and
regions in which it operates. There have been no reported
environmental issues raised that the operating company is
aware of during the year 2017.
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Logistics Services

We are committed to minimising emissions, enhancing
energy performance and optimising the use of natural
resources in addressing global challenges. Our
environmental practices and integrated logistics assets such
as warehouse facilities and transport vehicles demonstrate
green features that reduce the environmental impact of our
operations while promoting a more eco-friendly workplace.

Financial Services

Due to the nature of its business, Straits Financial Group
does not have any environmental policies in place.

Engineering Services

Indeco Engineers is committed to protect the environment
so that our business remains environmentally sustainable.
Our certifications and actions reflect this commitment. They

are:

° ISO 14001:2004 certification since 2013 to achieve
the International Environmental Management System
standards.

o Singapore Green Building Services Certificate —
Green Facilities Management.

° Singapore Green and Gracious Builder Certificate by
the Building and Construction Authority.

o Actively participating in green related activities with
building owners; such as the earth hour activities.

o Proactively monitoring of the building electricity and
water consumption in the buildings that we manage
and suggest ways to conserve water and electricity.

° Conduct in-house trainings and external trainings for
our staff so that they are equipped with the skills to
sustain the environment.

° Ensure all effluent discharge meet the regulatory

requirements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 296
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible bonds during
the year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 94 to 96 of this annual
report and in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
purpose amounted to approximately HK$118,000 (2016: Nil).
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Guo Ke (appointed on 13 December 2017)

Xu Haohao

Ding Lei (appointed on 13 April 2018)

Zhao Quan

Zhang Ke (resigned on 6 February 2017)

Wang Shuang (resigned on 13 December 2017)

Zhu Chunijie (appointed on 13 December 2017 and
resigned on 13 April 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Mung Bun Man, Alan (appointed on 5 September 2017)
Wang Hao (resigned on 13 December 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Kai Cheung
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

In accordance with Clauses 95 and 104(A) of the Company’s
Articles, Messrs. Guo Ke, Ding Lei, Zhao Quan, Leung Shun
Sang, Tony and Mung Bun, Man Alan will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

A list of names of the directors who held office in the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report
is available on the Company’s website (www.cwtinternational.com).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service agreement with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The Directors of the Company who held office at 31 December
2017 had the following interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017 as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company
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Total interests
as to % of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as at
31 December

Number of shares/underlying shares 2017

in the Company BRERERAT

REDEARD, BHERHEE WoB—t&

Capacity in which Interests Derivative Total +=—B=+-H

Name of Director interests were held in shares interests** interests BRITRA

] REEZZEH R0 2 i TR B ZADH

Leung Shun Sang, Tony Beneficial owner 20,000,000 15,360,000 35,360,000 0.31%
R4 EnAA

Leung Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 5,000,000 1,843,200 6,843,200 0.06%
REE ERMAA

*k

The interests are unlisted physically settled options granted
pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
7 June 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). Upon exercise of the share
options in accordance with the 2002 Scheme, ordinary shares in
the share capital of the Company are issuable. The share options
are personal to the respective Directors. Further details of the
share options are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” below.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executives or their respective associates had any other personal,
family, corporate and other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 December
2017.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes”
herein, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Company’s
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the holding companies of the Company, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, no Director has been recorded as having interests
in the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.
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EEEHRES
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF BERLERPBEXRNETFREZRR
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER BEERAE
THE SFO

As at 31 December 2017, according to the register kept by the WRZZT—+F+-_A=+—0  REAXQFILE
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies % & BAE (&l £ 33618 :x 17 2 & A& - T 751
and persons had interests in the shares and/or underlying shares ’“ﬂ&/\iﬁ/‘zl&’& AR &Sk ABRERR (D 15 A
of the Company which fell to be disclosed to the Company under MBREEE RSSO EXVIFEO R E35
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO: a‘llﬁﬂ$A AIREE

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of the NAATIRG, HERGZHE
Company

Interests as to % of
the issued share
capital of the

Number of Company as at
shares/ 31 December 2017
underlying EREERLT
Capacity in which shares R-B—t&F
Name of shareholder interests were held B4,/ +=B=+—H Note(s)
REREHE BEERZZED HERONBE EBRTREIZEIHL Hist
HNA Group (International) Company Limited Beneficial owner 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
(“HNA Group (International)’)
EEE (B ) BR AR EmEAA
(FemEE (BB 1)
Hong Kong HNA Holding Group Co. Limited Beneficial owner 6,510,130,189 57.11% 1,2
(“Hong Kong HNA”)
BEEEBMEXEEAR AR ERBEAA
([&BEH])
HNA Financial Holdings International Co., Ltd Interests of controlled 6,510,130,189 57.11% 1
(“HNA Financial Holdings”) corporations
B EEERARAR XA R
(IHeE])
Beijing HNA Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 6,510,130,189 57.11% 1
(“Beijing HNA Financial Holdings”) corporations
IEREMERIERER AR XPOEE 2 R
(TEmsmem])
HNA Investment Holding Co. Ltd. Interests of controlled 6,510,130,189 57.11% 1
(“HNA Investment Holding”) corporations
BREERARR XPEE o R
(fEﬂEEﬁFHﬁJ)
HNA Group Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 7,619,374,189 66.84% 1
(“HNA Group”) corporations
BMEEARAT XPEE 2 R
([em&Em])
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Interests as to % of
the issued share
capital of the

Number of Company as at
shares/ 31 December 2017
underlying EREEARDT
Capacity in which shares R-E—+&
Name of shareholder interests were held R4/ +=ZB=+-H Note(s)
REREH BFEEBRZHH HEROGEE CERIREZEIL st
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co. Ltd. Interests of controlled 7,619,374,189 66.84% 1
(“Hainan Traffic Administration”) corporations
BEAREERARAT XEEE
([eExE])
Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 7,619,374,189 66.84% 1
(“Sheng Tang (Yangpu)”) corporations
BEZRR(EE)BRATR XEE s
(TERECER)))
Hainan Province Cihang Foundation Interests of controlled 7,619,374,189 66.84% 1
corporations
BEEEMARELE XEEE 2
Hainan Cihang Charity Foundation, Inc. Interests of controlled 7,619,374,189 66.84% 1
(“Hainan Cihang Charity Foundation”) corporations
XEE
China Construction Bank Corporation Security interests 1,484,000,000 13.02% 2
(“China CCB’)
HERRBITRNBR AR RE R
([hEERRIT])
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Security interests 1,484,000,000 13.02% 2

(“Central Huijin”)
FRESREFREELA
([HhRES])
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2017, HNA Group is a company established in
the PRC with limited liability which owns approximately 91.09% of
HNA Group (International) and directly owns 100% of HNA Holding
Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA Holding Group”). HNA Holding Group
and HNA Group directly owns 51.38% and 21.61% respectively
of Hainan HNA Holding Co., Ltd., which in turn directly owned
73.06% of HNA Investment Holding Co. Ltd., which in turn directly
owned 99.06% of Beijing HNA Financial Holdings, which in turn
directly owned 100% of HNA Financial Holdings. HNA Financial
Holdings directly owns 100% of Hong Kong HNA.

HNA Group is held as to 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration,
which was in turn held as to 50% by Sheng Tang (Yangpu). Sheng
Tang (Yangpu) was held as to 65% by Hainan Province Cihang
Foundation. Sheng Tang (Yangpu) was held as to 35% by Tang
Dynasty Development Co. Ltd. which was in turn 98% held by
Pan-American Aviation Holding Company, which is wholly held by
Hainan Cihang Charity Foundation, Inc.

2. As at 31 December 2017, Hong Kong HNA, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, pledged 1,484,000,000 Shares to
China CCB, whose beneficial owner is Central Huijin.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, there is
a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required
under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 7 June 2002, the shareholders of the Company adopted the
2002 Scheme which would be valid for a period of ten years. On
25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved the
termination of the 2002 Scheme (to the effect that no further share
option shall be granted by the Company under the 2002 Scheme)
and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”), which became effective on 29 May 2012 upon the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting its approval to
the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of the Company
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme. The share options granted under
the 2002 Scheme prior to its termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Scheme.
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A summary of the principal terms of each of the 2002 Scheme and

the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

(a)

The 2002 Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Company and/or its
subsidiaries and/or its associated companies. The 2002
Scheme was adopted on 7 June 2002 and terminated on
29 May 2012 (the date on which the 2012 Scheme became
unconditional and effective).

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Directors may, at their
discretion, offer directors (including executive and non-
executive directors), executives, officers, employees or
shareholders, of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any of its associated companies, and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, advisers, agents, partners or
business associates who will contribute or have contributed
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its
associated companies, share options to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted under the 2002 Scheme is 96,307,200, which
represents approximately 0.84% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this annual report.
Since the 2002 Scheme was terminated on 29 May 2012,
no further options can be granted under the 2002 Scheme.
However, the share options granted under the 2002
Scheme prior to its termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Scheme.

Each of the grantees was required to pay HK$1 as a
consideration for the grant of share options in accordance
with the 2002 Scheme. The offer of share options must be
accepted within 60 days from the date of the offer.

Save as disclosed above, there is no material difference in
the terms, which shall be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.09
of the Listing Rules, between the 2002 Scheme and the
2012 Scheme.
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No share option was granted, exercised or cancelled in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme during the
year. Details of movements in the share options under the
2002 Scheme during the year are as follows:

Options to subscribe for
shares of the Company
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ARBEARRG 2 BRE
At the Lapsed At the Exercise
beginning during end of price per
Category or name of grantees of the year the year the year Date of grant Exercise period share
ARAERS®E £9 FREX FR REAH TR BRTEE
Directors of the Company
APRES
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 433,981 (433,981) - 19.01.2007 19.01.2007 - 18.01.2017 HK$0.396
RE4 7 10.3967T
15,360,000 - 15,360,000 22.01.2008 22.01.2008 - 21.01.2018 HK$0.762
#10.7627T
15,793,981 (433,981) 15,360,000
Leung Kai Cheung 1,843,200 - 1,843,200  22.01.2008 22.01.2008 - 21.01.2018 HK$0.762
e BH0.7627T
17,637,181 (433,981) 17,203,200
Employees of the Group 25,088,000  (4,608,000) 20,480,000 22.01.2008 22.01.2008 - 21.01.2018 HK$0.762
rHEEE B%0.7627T
Other participants 10,684,416  (10,684,416) - 19.01.2007 19.01.2007 - 18.01.2017 HK$0.396
HitB8E A 10.3967T
46,592,000 - 46,592,000 22.01.2008 22.01.2008 - 21.01.2018 HK$0.762
B%0.7627T
8,960,000 - 8,960,000 16.12.2009 16.12.2009 - 15.12.2019 HK$0.582
7 10.5827T
3,072,000 - 3,072,000 14.12.2010 14.12.2010 - 13.12.2020 HK$0.410
#10.4107C

69,308,416  (10,684,416) 58,624,000

112,033,597  (15,726,397) 96,307,200
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(b)

The 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to replace the 2002
Scheme and to continue to enable the Company to grant
share options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective for the period of ten years commencing on 25
May 2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the Company,
and ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its
discretion,offer full-time or part-time employees, executives,
officers or directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
of the Invested Entities, and any advisors, consultants,
agents, suppliers, customers and distributors, who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and/or any of the Invested Entities, share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share
options which may be granted under the 2012 Scheme
is 224,214,117, representing approximately 1.97% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
annual report. The total number of shares of the Company
issued and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise
of share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, which would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
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options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the offer of such grant (a) representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate value of in
excess of HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of each grant), such
further grant of options shall be subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting on a poll at which all connected persons
of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour of the
resolution concerning the grant of such options, and/or
such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time. A connected person of the Company will
be permitted to vote against the grant only if his intention
to do so has been stated in the circular. Any grant of
share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, is
required to be approved by the Independent Non-executive
Directors (excluding the Independent Non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options).

The period during which a share option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no share option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted under the 2012 Scheme.
There is no requirement that a share option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised but the
Board is empowered to impose at its discretion any such
minimum period at the time of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share
options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer of share options. Each of the grantees is required
to pay HK$1 as a consideration for his acceptance of
the grant of share options in accordance with the 2012
Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted
within 30 days from the date of the offer.
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Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do
not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
general meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2017,
there was no share option outstanding under the 2012
Scheme.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether
on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance.

The Company’s capital reserve represents a non-distributable
reserve.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, MAJOR
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales from
continuing operations for the year. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total
purchases relating to continuing operations for the year. None of
the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Sports and leisure related business

Employees of the sports and leisure related business segment are
regarded as the one of the important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group offers competitive salaries and benefits as well
as festival allowance to its employees and allowance to those in
need, hosts birthday parties for employees each month, various
sports activities are also held, such as badminton, basketball
and running; employees are also organized to take part in public
welfare activities. In addition, employees are provided with training
courses to further enhance their skills in management, professional
skills and knowledge so as to make continuous contribution to the
Group. From time to time, the Group also organizes gatherings
(including annual dinners and recreation activities) for employees
and the management to strengthen their partnership and
communication.

The sports and leisure related business segment mainly targets
golf enthusiasts and business clients, with whom we have
maintained years of good relations. We provide them with quality
membership and golf products, golf playing reception services,
conferences and banquets, accommodation and catering services.

The major suppliers of sports and leisure related business
segment include suppliers of turf machinery and equipment, lawn
maintenance materials such as chemical fertilizers and pesticides,
golf products, golf course equipment, food, hotel cleaning
products and guest room products. We have maintained good
relationships with these suppliers to achieve cost efficiency and
promote long-term commercial interests.

Commodity Marketing

The MRI Code of Ethics and Business Conduct also addresses
the matter of how MRI personnel should treat a) other MRI
employees b) customers and suppliers. In summary it stipulates
that employees should be treated fairly, honestly and with good
management in order to ensure a safe working environment.

Both suppliers and customers should be treated fairly and
reasonably in business matters. There have been no significant
infringements of these policies that the company is aware of during
the course of 2017.
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Logistics Services

Under logistics business, we engage with employees, customers
and suppliers about social responsibility issues of interest to them
and its business. Such engagement enables us to provide updates,
obtain insights, build strong relationships and identify strengths
and opportunities to improve its performance. We engage with
employees daily through a variety of internal communication
channels. It is committed to conducting its business with honesty
and integrity.

Maintaining the trust of customers and partners is important to
CWT SG’s success. CWT SG interacts with them daily in the
conduct of its business through its Sales teams and Customer
Support Organisation. CWT SG values customer/supplier
feedback, which CWT SG uses to help shape its plans and
strategies.

Financial Services

We are committed to the ethical treatment of all to whom we have
an obligation. For our employees, we are committed to honesty,
just management and fairness, providing a safe environment, and
respecting the dignity due to everyone.

For our customers, we value them as our business partners and
are committed to provide them with value for money services.
For our suppliers, we value them as our business partners and
are committed to fair competition and the sense of responsibility
required of a good customer and partner.

Engineering Services

Indeco’s employees are our most important and valuable assets.
In order to attract talent, the Company offers competitive salaries
and benefits. We practise open communication and regularly
conduct meetings and dialogues between management and
staff. We organize Company dinners once a year to show our
appreciation to the staff and to strengthen our partnership with
them. Indeco recognizes the need to develop our employees. We
send them for courses to enhance their skills in their respective
profession, safety and environment as well as management.
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We treasure our customers and endeavor to provide quality
services at competitive prices. Due to our excellent service and
working relationships with our customers, many of them continue
to engage our services beyond the first contract. A significant
number of our major customers have been with us for more than
20 years. We treat our customers as our partners and hold joint
activities such as inviting our customers to participate in the
external seminars that we organize.

Our major suppliers include suppliers of mechanical and electrical
engineering services as well as facility equipment and systems.
We treat our suppliers as our partners and maintain good working
relationships with them so that our goals and commercial interests
are aligned. We constantly review their services and prices to
ensure that we remain competitive.

UK Property

The UK property has been single let to an investment bank of
international repute before acquisition by the Group. The tenant
will end in November 2024 with a tenant option to renew for
another 15 years. The annual rental of the UK property amounted
to approximately GBP6.4 million.

US Golf Courses

The eight US golf courses were leased to Oki Golf Management
LLC (“Oki Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oki
Development Inc., which has been the operator and manager of
the eight US golf courses before acquisition by the Group. Oki
Development Inc. has more than 20 years’ experience and track
record in golf club and management. The term of lease with
Oki Management was 5-year, commencing in December 2016.
Oki Management would pay to the Group a fixed annual rent of
US$7.1 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As regards the transactions took place during the year as set out
in Note 45(a) and 45(b) to the consolidated financial statements
under the heading of “Related Party Transactions” are concerned,
the transaction regarding a laundry expense to a related company
as set out in Note 45(b) was connected transaction which
was exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions set out in Note 45(c) to the consolidated financial
statements were the remuneration of the Directors as determined
pursuant to the service agreements entered into between the
Directors and the Company and the securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options granted to the Directors under the
2002 Scheme of the Company were connected transactions which
were exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Saved as disclosed above, no related party transaction in Note
45(a) and 45(b) of the consolidated financial statements which
took place during the year constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 57 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There was no significant events occurring after the reporting date.
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AUDITOR ZEED

On 4 December 2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned and RZ-ZT—+F+_-AMNA ' % e lEMR T &5

KPMG was appointed as auditor of the Company on 19 December HI{TEBHERESH HMEBKAN T —+ &

2017 to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of + = A+ NBEZFTAERQT ZZEM - LUAEH

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, until the conclusion of 2018 AGM.  {=%) ¢ B=E[R H @AM TEI T T E A ERFZE

Save as disclosed above, there was no other changes in the #Ht - FHE - Z— \FERFHEFREEREIE °

Company’s auditor in the past three years. B EXFTIREES  BEZF AR BRI &
EfEE -

A resolution for re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the ZAARBRENERITZIRBRAFAS FIZ2&EH
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general ZHIBEEHSTEISHATARA T 285

meeting. E
By order of the Board REEEM
Guo Ke BEFE
Co-Chairman =
Hong Kong, 24 April 2018 B ZFE-N\FNA=+1mH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B LA AR S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of CWT
International Limited

(Formerly known as HNA HOLDING GROUP CO. LIMITED
BMEXEERDBRLQF)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CWT
International Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 88 to 295, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

CWT International Limited 20174 £#£
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements which describes that the Group is committed to repay
certain borrowings totalling US$561,000,000 (carrying amount as
at 31 December 2017 of approximately HK$4,325,222,000) for the
purpose of the acquisition of CWT Pte. Limited (formerly known as
CWT Limited) (“CWT SG”) within one year and that the Group’s
ability to meet these liquidity requirements depends on its ability to
obtain sufficient cash sources through refinancing arrangements.
These facts and circumstances indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

B A A

AREARECERTREN

EE BTEIREVBRRMIE20) - Ei
H BEEEEN —FAEERKECWT Pte.
Limited (ATFECWT Limited) ([CWT SG|) » &5t
561,000,000 T (R = —tF+=A=+—
AZEEEEN A BE43252220005t) 2% T
B M BREEINZERBDESER2EE
FAREZABERENSETHRERZEES -
ZEFERBARTFEERNTEE M - E 088
¥ BREAEEUREFRNLCEZENIBKE
REER - HMIMER R B EZEMISR ©

FREETER
RRBSFEERBAMCERHE - RBYHAX
HSEAMBHRRZEBITR/ERZEH - %FF
RERMEABEREAMBRRLBAB RS
TRE - HA TS HREEREHEBENER
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Accounting for the acquisition of CWT SG

WEECWT SGZ &t R

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(e) and Note 4 to the ER A TSR EN 7o) BB E R4

consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bz BT NMEERREE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired through a general offer 100% equity interest
in CWT SG, whose shares were then listed on the
Singapore Exchange Limited, at a total consideration of
S$1,398,710,000 (equivalent to HK$8,108,978,000).

BHEZ—tF+_A=+—HLEFE  E5EEAZAE
HULEECWT SG (KR EBRRITINEEF I ZAMER A A L
)2 2P - AR (EA1,398,710,000% hni T (FHE R 8
8,108,978,0007T) °

A gain on a bargain purchase arising from this acquisition
amounted to HK$327,172,000, which represented the excess
of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquired
business over the consideration paid.

ZWBEL 2 A BWEKE/ER327,172,0007T - BIATUE
BB EEFEZ AR BEBOANREZEZSR -

CWT International Limited 20774 4 #

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for the
acquisition of CWT SG included the following:

HFIEHE B BRBCWT SGZ ST RIBM AT Z FaT12
Frakzany

o reading the agreements, circular and offer
document to understand the nature of the
transaction and evaluating the accounting
treatment adopted by the Group for the
acquisition;

- ANBIERA IR - BB BAMF - AR H1E
B ERERUBEMRRZ SRR

o obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external valuers engaged
by the Group and on which the directors’
assessment of the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired was based;

. ERkER BSREMZEINEGEMRE G
EHRE  MERTRBEZFREFEPTUKRE H
BIEEFEZAAEE

o assessing the external valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the assets being
valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

. AR EMRAAEEECERE - KRKAE
NS YEBHRORE B



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RVRE TR

Accounting for the acquisition of CWT SG (continued) IWEBECWT SGZE2:TEHE (&)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(e) and Note 4 to the == fhs=A Bt i 2 [if 57 0(0) 2 B 51 B % R HT 514

consolidated financial statements (continued) (&)

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEESEE KMzEtNAEEEREE

The fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired was e with the assistance of our internal valuation

assessed by the directors based on an independent valuation specialists, assessing the valuation

performed by external valuers which required the exercise of methodologies adopted by the external valuers

significant judgement and estimation, particularly the discount with reference to the industrial practice and

rates and capitalisation rates adopted in the valuation. requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

FRREERI BRI EEFEZ AR BEAESREIINEEEMEL
ZBI ARG - MELZGEER - CERHGERMARAZ o EREGEEER BT - SHEIMNS A EE AR

BRI R R ERMR - EERAEAAE R AET o Bz HERE  BRE2ETEEIRRITE:T
R ZHRE

We identified accounting for the acquisition of CWT SG as

a key audit matter because of the significant impact the e with the assistance of our internal valuation

acquisition has on the consolidated financial statements and specialists, challenging the key assumptions,

because the valuation of the identifiable net assets acquired particularly, the discount rates and capitalisation

can be inherently subjective and requires significant judgement rates adopted in the valuation, which impacted

and estimation which increases the risk of error or potential the valuation by comparing these assumptions

management bias. with market data, our past experience of similar
transactions and the Group’s business plan

HRWECWT SCHEZa MBI RBRERTE - I Lk supporting the acquisition; and

AHNEEFEZHEAFAIRLSRIBME  AFEE KA

Rfsst - MEMBRERACEEEERL2AR - fafg © EOSBHESXZEHT BBLREERAKA

FEBE Y @ IR AR =T . mHEHE BURZZEEERK BEREXE
BB X558 ARHGEERTEZE
ERR LER[BEMRAZERETRERE
xR

° assessing the disclosures in respect of the
acquisition in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

. AHEREEVBRRABZWBZREEN - &
RESERTEAERZHRTE -

CWT International Limited Annual Report 2017

81



82

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AR

Recognition and measurement of commodity marketing BRARIEFREZKWERESTKVA

revenue and accrued income

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(cc) and Note 7 to the i 2R 4 A B 7% # & B it 2(cc) 2 & 51 B & F

consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter
BMRETEE

Btz

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bz BT NMNEERREE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised revenue of HK$23,955,863,000, of which
HK$21,595,819,000 was attributable to the commodity
marketing activities. The Group’s revenue from the commodity
marketing activities consisted of high volume of individual
transactions.

BE_ZT—+HF+-_A=T—HIFE  SE£EEBEIARIZBE
23,955,863,0007T * & i #21,595,819,000 5B R M E
PEBE . BEENEREBEIEBZUEBEEREAZEERS

=
= °

At 31 December 2017, the Group had accrued income of
HK$932,350,000 pertaining mainly to the commodity marketing
activities. Accrued income represented primarily sales made
but yet to be invoiced and price adjustments to the provisional
sales/purchase price of certain commodities. For such sales,
at the point of transaction, the price was provisional and would
depend on the quality and quantity of the commodity based
on a final assay and weight certificates. The Group marked
to market these provisional sales based on the forward price
in the estimated month of settlement. At settlement, prices
would be fixed based on the spot price and metal contents
and quantities, with subsequent adjustments for quality and
content.

R-B—+F+-"A=+—H8 BSE£EEZEFRAEGBEK
932,350,0007T ' TE2FAMEME S ET - Bt A T ERE#
TRAAZZEZHERETERRREEEB ZERFHE - Bz
LHEMS RRHIBZERBREER  BREBEZRKAIER
NEFEIETEREEREEMETERL - SEENEE
HERMYERIEEETMHEE REER - ERERE
REERALRCBEENBEET  MEASRRERSE
T IAFHE o
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition and
measurement of commodity marketing revenue and
accrued income included the following:

BB RRER M ERmE S a kB RAME
T2EHRFEINDD

o evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
which govern the recognition and measurement
of commodity marketing revenue and accrued
income;

.+ HERABERRIEESE DK RENRA
ZEBRNEEE - FERR  BRREER
%

° inspecting the sale and purchase agreements,
on a sample basis for each type of commodity
marketing transactions, to understand the terms
and evaluate the appropriateness of revenue
recognition, measurement and presentation
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards, in particular
whether the Group acted as a principal or an
agent;

. MERESEEmBESRXH BB - AEE
MERBRR - W RIFE BERERLEEEFAL
RESLERITE LR 2R ERFE RS ER

HEREBRTNE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Recognition and measurement of commodity marketing

revenue and accrued income (continued)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(cc) and Note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

The key audit matter
BRETEE

FLHEEH BRI E20cc)z &
Hit7 (%)

B A A

BRANRTEERE S W KT WA (&)

it IR R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bz BT NAEEEAEE

In addition, for certain of the commodity marketing
transactions, judgement is required to determine whether
the risks and rewards of the underlying commodity have
been transferred under the contractual arrangement with
third parties, and accordingly, whether the Group acted as a
principal or an agent in such transactions.

W BRETHREZRSME  REEEF=FITLZAHL
HETHERRcERRORELSEEY  BEMEE &5

ERZEXGEEEEEEARRBAR - FEHE -

We identified recognition and measurement of commodity
marketing revenue and accrued income as a key audit matter
because the volume of transactions increases the risk of error
in the recognition of revenue and significant judgement is
involved in estimating the provision for price adjustments of
affected commodities and in determining whether the Group
acts as a principal or an agent in certain transactions.

MR R ZEGIEMERER RS 2R - AREFHERRFE
BmBRABRLEE BERERETRHIREEETEAL
REARSREAHE - SRMEEERE SR RETRA
ZHERARTERMRELASTA -

comparing, on a sample basis, revenue
transactions recorded during the year with the
underlying sale and purchase agreements, bills
of lading, invoices and bank-in slips for settled
balance and assessing whether the related
revenue had been recognised in accordance
with the Group 's revenue recognition policies;

MR BRFENSFE 2 RN HEBHEE B
REE BRNBEEBRBEZRITERUIR -
WAHEHEBRREEERE EXEEZWHRER
BUR T UARER

comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
financial year end date with the underlying sale
and purchase agreements and bills of lading
to determine whether the related revenue had
been recognised in the appropriate financial
period; and

MR B BFEF A& R RTRES 2 HFERER
SEEAEERERREE LA#E*B?@H&Z_’%
BEREE MM T ARER

evaluating the valuation methodology adopted
by management in valuing provisional sale and
purchase contracts by agreeing the provisional
prices to the forward prices provided by
brokers and agreeing quantities and qualities
of commodities to underlying documents such
as sale and purchase agreements and the final
assay and weight certificates.

FEERE BRI ERER D ERRER - A
RRE B HARRERERMDERESHEAX
HHhERmBENER  FFHEEEENMIERE
BEANERMRAZEESE -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

B A A
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

CWT International Limited 20174 £#£
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Ka Nang.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 April 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

malEmRkHEMEERE

tFEF A=+ HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — &

2017 2016
—E—tF A
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
k3 BT T BT T
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Revenue Wz 7 23,955,863 182,546
Cost of sales SHE RN (23,144,701) (123,029)
Gross profit EF 811,162 59,517
Other income H A 9 77,513 21,422
Other gains, net Hib a5 /F58 10 383,827 142,151
Selling and distribution costs HERSIHE A (177,186) (6,152)
Administrative expenses TR (548,997) (124,815)
Finance costs b & B AR 11 (383,659) (113,071)
Share of profits less losses of DIGEEE A B s AR 18
associates, net of tax (Br#418) 13,006 -
Share of profits less losses of DEEE BN REE
joint ventures, net of tax (BrFi1%) 4,020 -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATE R, (&) 12 179,686 (20,948)
Income tax (expense)/credit FSR () e 13 (41,896) 2,003
Profit/(loss) for the year from BELEXEBLFE
continuing operations AL () 137,790 (18,945)
Discontinued operations EARIEER
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERIEEBRZFE
discontinued operations swmAl/ (E58) 6 88,421 (40,895)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERA(BE) 226,211 (69,840)

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

""/\

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —

I:I\/

Hb 2 mE W@ &

—FF - A=+—HIFEE

2017 2016
—E—+5F T—NF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
Other comprehensive income: Ht 2 ERE :
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEMHBEEERIEE ¢
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from REMBRENEEE R2WEY
translation of financial statements from EEZIEN =%
functional currency to presentation currency 57,063 (157,711)
Defined benefit plan remeasurements AERAGFEIE R 1,063 =
Tax on other comprehensive income Hith 2 E ST IE (144) -
57,982 (157,711)
ltem that may be reclassified HigngeEH» A
subsequently to profit or loss net of tax: ZiEm BB (HRTIE)
Exchange differences arising from translation of & /&N B A 781 #5R&
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries EAIEN =5 44,173 =
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or ~ RHEENB AT EFHHE
loss on disposal of subsidiaries EEGCELEE 23 =
Net change in fair value of available- At EeMmEEAAEBAE
for-sale financial assets FE) 3R (4,242) -
Share of other comprehensive income DEEERARIREERE L
of associates and joint ventures Eh 2 Es (8,796) -
31,158 —
Other comprehensive income for the year FEE M2 TR RS 89,140 (157,711)
Total comprehensive income for the year FErmKERAZE 315,351 (217,551)
The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated  #599Z 0958 ~ i TR X S A M ERE Y —

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
malEmRkHEMEERE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —+ 4%+

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaE B F T JBMTF T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AN ATHA AJEILEE
owners of the Company wm A, (E1E)
— from continuing operations —RERFELEERS 115,621 (8,322)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEER 88,857 (13,580)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to  ZRATIHEE AELEE
owners of the Company wm A, (E1E) 204,478 (21,902)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to  FEIEARiELS FE(E EE
non-controlling interests wmFl, (EE)
— from continuing operations —REFELEER 22,169 (10,623)
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEFERS (436) (27,315)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to  JEIZERRERSE(GEE
non-controlling interests wmH(EE) 21,733 (37,938)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERMN/(EE) 226,211 (69,840)
Total comprehensive income ATATEEEEKEBEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KARHEAE A 263,284 (152,169)
Non-controlling interests TR = 52,067 (65,382)
315,351 (217,551)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BRER,(&HE) 16
Basic (HK cents) BEARGENM) 1.79 (0.19)
Diluted (HK cents) BEOBN) 1.79 (0.40)
From continuing operations REFFELE X
Basic (HK cents) BEARGEN) 1.01 (0.07)
Diluted (HK cents) e CEN) 1.01 (0.28)

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated  590F 2958 v iR XSG A MRzt 2 —
financial statements. R o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR

At 31 December 2017 R=ZF—+4#+1+ - HA=+—H
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E—RF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
Kzt BT BT T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - HE K& 17 8,589,127 260,655
Land use rights b f5R A A 18 1,095,395 1,059,477
Investment properties REME 19 2,486,202 2,447,621
Intangible assets B EE 20 420,969 -
Interest in associates RERE R Al 21 202,135 =
Interest in joint ventures ReE&EbEER 22 311,334 -
Prepayments, deposits and AR - B2 Rk
other receivables o e W k1A 26 77,745 2,500
Other financial assets Htt e m&EE 23 373,409 155,000
Other non-current assets HiIEmB & E 23,038 700
Deferred tax assets REFIBE E 36 19,614 =
13,598,968 3,925,953
Current assets REBEE
Land use rights b fsh A A 18 44,710 41,548
Inventories FE8 24 4,349,064 6,916
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR1E 25 4,604,925 27,040
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - EZe &
other receivables Hh fE W k1A 26 5,303,592 919,253
Warrantable LME commodities BERZLMERE @ 136,387 -
Other financial assets HithemEE 23 561,168 -
Derivative financial instruments TTESRTA 44(e) 379,805 -
Tax recoverable AU B F5 18 13,594 -
Pledged bank deposits B BIRITIF 36,015 27,890
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFFEEE 28 2,137,858 1,085,447
17,567,118 2,108,094
Assets associated with disposal PEERFIELEZ
groups classified as held-for-sale HEARR 2 BEEE 5 - 387,075
Other non-current assets held-for-sale #{EH & 2 i 3ER SN E = 5 15,617 -
17,582,735 2,495,169

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RaMEIRR R

At 31 December 2017 R=ZFE—+F+_-A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt BT T BT T
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 8RIE K E A FE S 5B 29 7,845,311 122,448
Loans and borrowings ERRERK 30 10,268,069 55,163
Convertible bonds A AR (E & 32 380,656 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 44(e) 1,074,659
Current tax payable FERH S BAFG 18 128,906 13,704
Deferred gains JRIEW = 35 59,360 49,489
Provisions e 19,649 =
19,776,610 240,804
Liabilities associated with disposal SEEAEFELRE 2
groups classified as held-for-sale HEHARIZEEARE 5 - 396,961
19,776,610 637,765
Net current (liabilities)/assets B (EEFE) EERE (2,193,875) 1,857,404
Total assets less current liabilities Z&EERKRE S & 11,405,093 5,783,357
The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated 299%F 2958 2 st K Z E4r & MBS MmEz 2 —

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a MBI R

At 31 December 2017 R=F—+ 4%+ — F=1+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Loans and borrowings ERRER 30 4,079,350 1,232,692
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 44(g) 567 56,167
Convertible bonds AR E S 32 - 324,421
Employee benefits EEEF 33 71,163
Deferred gains EIEW 25 35 195,386 193,909
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAE & 36 1,073,624 237,406
Other non-current liabilities HnEmsatE 29 13,670 =
5,433,760 2,044,595
Net assets EEFE 5,971,333 3,738,762
Capital and reserves BRAR R
Share capital A% A Sl 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves i 37 712,653 (1,329,029)
Amounts recognised in other SEARFELE 2 HEHR
comprehensive income and T ELth 2 T W e 3R %
accumulated in equity relating to RER B 2 HEEE
disposal groups classified
as held-for-sale - (42,240)
Equity attributable to RATHER ARG
owners of the Company 5,444,133 3,360,211
Non-controlling interests FEE AR HE 2 527,200 378,551
Total equity MR 5,971,333 3,738,762
The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 295 were #88E2958 Zira M BHREXE N =T —/\F KN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 A -+ BEE=SESH# 4 &Tﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ‘ - WA T
April 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: EERAESE
Guo Ke Xu Haohao
B BrER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated 5599F 2958 » M M Z S A M B HEK 2 —
financial statements. & o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GABRBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAARBAER

Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated in
equity relating Attributable
Share to disposal to non-
Share Capital ~ Translation option QOther  Accumulated  groups classified controling
capital resene eserve Teserve resenes losses  as held for-sale Sub-total interests Total
ARARELE
ZiHERRI
Afpzmka
B NS 2
RE - EARE  ERGE  BERERR  EbBE  ZaBR  ZciEEeR N EREE Ait
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
i M B BT B BT i #ir B B

At1 January 2016 R=2-7"E-A-H 4,731,480 222,248 (72,716) 20212 30 (1,419283) 30079 3512,380 43083 396,313

Total comprefensive income FREENGEE
for the year
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (21902 - (21902 (37,938) (59,840)

Other comprehensive income AfprEhE
Bxchange differences arising from ~ AEEERRI4
translation of financial statements S ASHEH

from functional currency to EEVERER
presentation currency = = (114,356) = = = (16911) (180,267) (27,444) (167,111)
Total other comprehensiveincome  Ei2ENAEHE - - [11436) - - - (15911) (180267 Q744 (167,711)

Total comprefensive income EREENREE

forthe year - - (436 - - P (15911 (152169 (5380 (17550
Release of resenves upon RHENBAFE

disposal of subsidiaries HhRE - - (26.425) = = 52425 (26,000) - = =
Transfer of resenves relatingto ~ ERBENEAR(EHEL

disposal groups classified as HEARIRE

held-for-sale - - 30,768 - (360) - (30,408) - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-1F

tZA=t-H 4,731,480 202,248 (182,729) 20,212 - (1,388,760) (42,40) 3,360,211 378,951 3,738,762

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated  Z599ZF 2958 7 W er ik 2 S G A B M*x 2 —
financial statements. TR o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —FE—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KNAREARR
Amounts
recognised in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated in
equity relating Attributable
Fair Share todisposal  Perpetual to non-
Share Capital ~ Translation Hedging value  Statutory option Accumulated  groups classified capital controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses asheld for-sale instrument  Sub-total interests Total
FRRRELE
b=
Ah2ENE
Iy BaRiER #2R
Bx ERBR  EXRE  WHEE  BERE  GERE  BRERE  ZiEE EitzREeE AREAIR Nt EEER ait
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000 HKS000  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS$'000
EBTL B¥FT BETT BRTT ERFT BT BB BEFT EBFr BT BETL BRFT BT
A1 January 2017 S 4,731,480 W48 (182729) - - - 0212 (1,368,760) (42,240) - 3360211 38551 3738762
Total comprehensive income FEAEYREE
for the year
Proft or the year EEg - - - - - - - 24418 - - 044m8 1783 26211
Other comprehensive income LT
Eichange diferences arsng fom - BB £
trandlaion o fnenciel staements ~ AZHEEEL
from functional curency to EXZE
presentation currency - - 34,406 - - - - - 14,556 - 48,962 8,101 57,063

Exchange difeences arisngfom ~~~ ZEEHHELAHESR L
{ranslation of fnencalstatements of ~ E £
0verseas subsiaries - - M - - - - - - - M 2 4m
Eichange diferences redassfiedto  REEMBATE
profitorloss on disposal of subsideries EFAEERE
EyzE N N 2% - - - - - - - 2 - 2
Share of ther comprehensive income of SEEERFR

associates and aEbEL

oint ventures Eh2mEkE - - (0,085) % - - - - - - 8,79) - (8,796)
Net changes n fair value of avalable-or- HEEREZEZ

sale financial assefs DEERGTE - - - - (424 - - - - - (424 - (4242
Defined benefit plan remeasurements ~ REEAEIE(E - - - - - - - 1,063 - - 1,063 - 1,063
Tax on other comprehensive income~ £ 2 EAERE - - - - - - - (144) - - (144) - (144)
Totalother comprehenshencome. Ef 2EELE - - 47284 2%9 (424 - - 919 14,556 - 58,806 30,33 89,140
Total comprehensive inoome FEAEYREE

for the year - - 47,284 29 (4,242) - - 205,307 14,556 - 263,204 52,067 315,351

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated HF99FE 2958 v MM Z EiE A M GHEz 2 —
financial statements. TR o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAREEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-H=+—HI F&E
Amounts
recognised in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated in
equity relating Attributable
Share todisposal  Perpetual tonon-
Share Capital ~ Translation Hedging ~ Fairvalue  Statutory option  Accumulated  groups classified capital controlling
capital reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses asheld for-sale  instrument Sub total interests Total
AERRELE
ZHERAH
A 2ENE
24 BARNER FER
B EARf EXfE HARE BERE tERE  BREGR githE ZirREEE ARERIR it 53 ait
HKS$'000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$000
Y49 BEFT EEFT EE7T Vi o Vi 7 i 9 EETL AT EEFT AT A Vi 7
Issue of perpetual capitalnstruments X AEATE - - - - - - - - - 1819300 1819390 - 1819390
Acquison of subsidaries WENER - 1,860 - - - - - - - - 1,860 97,3% 99,196
Dividend paid tonon-controling.~~ FAR RS2
inferests ke - - - - - - - - - - - (3,820 (3,820)
Trnsfrtostatutoryreseneln — AFAGNESZ
compliance with foreign entes’ ~ FERRERT
statutory equirements G - - - - - 24 - 214) - - - - -
Disposl of subsiciares HERERR - - - - - - - (27,684) 21,684 - - 3315 3315
Share option lapsed/cancelled BREky/a8 - - - - - - (300) 300 - - - - -
Changes innon-controling nterests 3£ 3iga%8) - (179) - - - - - (433) - - 612 (49) (861)
- 1,681 - - - m4 (300) 28,031) 684 1819300 1820638 %562 1917220
At31 December 2017 HIB-tE
t2A=1-A 4,731,480 23,929 (135,445) %9 (424 14 19912 (1,211,34) - 1819300 544138 521200 5071388

i&l:
48
£
o)

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated  $599Z 2958 ~ MfsT &k SR mK L —

financial statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —EF—+4F+_—H=+—HIFF/E
2017 2016
—E—t& e SN
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
/023 BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R EE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations mEXKE(R) /B zRE 28(b) (686,234) 48,639
Interest paid BRFIE (233,305) (144,511)
Overseas income tax paid BRHEINTER (11,451) (512)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EBfAZHEEE (930,990) (96,384)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries W ESHTB A FIFTH 2 34 %58 4 (6,465,807) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERSE (137,746) (5,737)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (2,726) (2,544)
Advances to related companies REERBRE 2 BR (2,610) (7,824)
Repayments from related companies BERRIEN - 1,721
Acquisition of investment properties W E Y% (7,562) (2,537,809)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment BEIHHERE - (155,000)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABERRITERR
and restricted bank deposits XBR BRI TR (34,719) (38,402)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REOBEBRITER 35,333 2,552
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BENREZ
plant and equipment FTS 5008 162,905 24
Net cash inflow from disposal of DTV Disposal ~ HE&FTEEHERRIFEY
Group BEMNFE 6(a) 900,000 49,527
Net cash inflow from disposal of Intelligent HESRESER
Information Business g2 RERAFHE 6(b) 95,156 39,046
Interest received BUFIE 45,075 6,981
Dividend received from joint venture WA ETERE 1,396 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®R&EEEFMAZELEE (5,411,305) (2,647,465)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank loans raised HERITER 1,013,632 1,119,881
Loans from independent third parties BRI E=AREZER 20,000 76,327
Proceeds from issue of senior secured notes BB RAELREMENE 30(c) 4,373,837 -
Proceeds from issue of perpetual notes BITKAZRBAS A 30(c 358,800 =
Proceeds from issue of perpetual capital instrument  2£77k A B AT ARG RUE 37(o)(vii) 1,819,390 -
Repayment to an independent third party R—BBULE=HEN - (70,257)
Up-front fee paid for issue of senior secured notes 1T IEMELEZE BN ER (110,069) -
Repayments of bank loans BERITEX (52,427) (418,085)
Repayment of principal on convertible bonds EEBRES RS - (116,489
Repayment of finance lease obligations EEMBERERE (2,270) (394)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests AN IR R P AR AR S (3,820) -
Proceeds from issue of new convertible bonds — B{TH Al Rk E % 2 FT15 08 - 404,560
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING R&EBFIE2HEEE
ACTIVITIES 7,417,073 995,573

The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ Iﬁﬁl)lbiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # % — +tFF—A=F—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$000
i3 BETT BETF T
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BeRALEMESE E
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g2,/ R )# 1,074,778 (1,748,276)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FENzBER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ReE@EER 1,091,201 2,850,966
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE HEERBEH I HE
RATE CHANGES (36,005) (11,489)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FR7ASR
AT END OF THE YEAR REZEER 28(a) 2,129,974 1,091,201
The notes on pages 99 to 295 form part of these consolidated 5 99F 2958 ~ ik % Z4r A B Kk k2 —

financial statements. TR o
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1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+—H=+—HI%F/

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Hong Kong HNA Holding Group Co. Limited (‘Hong Kong
HNA”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, is the immediate parent of the Company. HNA
Group Co., Ltd. (“HNA Group”), a company registered
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), is an
intermediate parent of the Company. Hainan Province
Cihang Foundation, a foundation registered in the PRC, is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of the Company’s annual report.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 29 November
2017, the Company changed the name from HNA Holding
Group Co. Limited (M EXEBERMHBR L E]) to CWT
International Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company (together
with its subsidiaries referred to thereafter as the “Group”).
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
completed the acquisition of CWT Pte. Limited (formerly
known as CWT Limited) (“CWT SG”) (see Note 4), which
is principally engaged in commodity marketing activities,
provision of logistics services, financial services and
engineering services. The principal subsidiaries of the
Company and their principal activities are set out in Note
46.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) changed the Company’s
functional currency from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) in response to substantial changes in the primary
economic environment and the capital structure of
the Company. As the Company is listed on the Stock
Exchange, for the convenience of the financial statements
users, the results and financial position of the Group are
expressed in HK$, which is the presentation currency for
the consolidated financial statements.

e B HmERNE

X

—MREIE
AARIREBERRIZ ARERA
7 EROESSHARSHERA A
((BRF) LS - BBEMRELERER
AR(EBEH] WEBEMRLY B
RAR)NAARZ EEEAT - SHER
BRAT(EMRER] - AhZEARLAR
(B )2 AR BAARZ H ISR
T o BRHAEMARESE NREEM Y
) HAARZ BT o AARZE
T3 S T2 o T A 40 36 b i B AL
D TVER | — IR -

BER-Z—+F+—HAZTILBBRZ
FRRZER  ARRZABHREMEESE
& f% 15 B R A 7] (HNA Holding Group Co.
Limited) 5 24 ACWT International Limited °

ApalA—HEREERA AR (EREMBEA
AR TNHRBEREE]) #HE_T—+
F+ZA=T—HLEE  XEEBETHK
i CWT Pte. Limited ( ] #8 CWT Limited )
(TCWT SGJ) (RI5E4) - AR E21¢
EEMmE SRS  BEMDRERE - 28k
BRIBRBE 2K - ARRZEENEB
NEl R HE B FEEE 46 ©

BE_ZT—tF+-A=1T—HLEE"
REHARRZETBREERENENGRE
ZEREE ARREF([EE))BX
RAZNEEEAAREEE REE(#
#1) o HRARBRERA LT - BFTE
MBBRERE  AEE 2 EERUE
RAAEE 27 - BIRE M BHRER 2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (the “HKFRSs”) (which
include all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (the “Companies
Ordinance”). These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provision of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(d) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£
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(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as available-
for-sale or as trading securities (see Note

2(i);

- derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(j));

- investment properties (see Note 2()));

- inventory held under broker-trader exemption
(see Note 2(q)); and

- warrantable LME commodities (see Note 2(r)).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for

sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell (see Note 2(ff)).

2. EESTHEm®m

(b)

MBBR2EREE

BE-_T—tH+-_A=t+—HL
FEZHEAUBHRREEAEE R
AEERBERRRALELEZIE

S o

E\

BUATAE R A BIRAL 5%
S - IREE T IR S VIR
AEERIRER  BER T XA
B2 RHREML -

= PEATHEEREETZ A
2 & T E(RKEE2(3))

= PTES BT A (RMHEE2(G)) :

= TE Y (RKRE2())

- REEE-XZIPHREEH
2EE(RKE2q) + &

= BERZLMER & (R
2(n) °

BEHEZIERBHEER L ERT
DEEmERAABERLEKRARZ
SR E I BR (R HIE2(f)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements is conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+tF+=—H=+—HAIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately
HK$2,193,875,000, primarily as a result of
certain borrowings totalling US$561,000,000
(carrying amount as at 31 December 2017
of approximately HK$4,325,222,000) (“the
Acquisition Borrowings”) raised in connection
with the acquisition of CWT SG which is detailed
in Note 4. The Group is committed to repay
the Acquisition Borrowings of US$300,000,000
(carrying amount as at 31 December 2017
of approximately HK$2,312,953,000) in May
2018 and US$261,000,000 (carrying amount
as at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$2,012,269,000) in September 2018. The Group
will be unable to repay these Acquisition Borrowings
in full when they fall due in May and September 2018
unless it is able to obtain sufficient cash sources
through refinancing arrangements. These conditions
indicate the existence of material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt —FE—+F+_-A=+—HI %

i

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEHHBER®W)

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) HEHmRZEHREEE)
statements (continued)
Assuming the success of the following measures, R EREN TSI E ¥ - BIEER
the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate BB E R RS E P ER
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on REEHE

a going concern basis:

(i) The Acquisition Borrowings are guaranteed (i) WEEHBEERBEARAZ
by HNA Group (International) Company FTERR 2 —GMEE (K
Limited (“HNA Group (International)”), a BBRAR(EMESE (R
substantial shareholder of the Company. In BR) ) B R o o - &
addition, HNA Group undertakes to maintain MEBRBEZAANTZR
the liquidity of the Company and HNA Group FED - mEMmsE (B
(International) to ensure they have sufficient BHREREEETERDES
liquidity to meet the payment obligation in DA 5% 55 & 1 B BRI (B~
respect of the Acquisition Borrowings as they ¥ o BmERE (B ) K8
fall due. Both HNA Group (International) and SEHBEERANEBIRE
HNA Group will continue to provide adequate TR ESFH » EAE
financial support to the Group so as to enable EaENEIBEE - TR
the Group to meet its liabilities as and when S5 i - ke i 1
they fall due and to continue its operations ARBEEZEE &

for the period of at least twelve months from
the end of the reporting period; and

(ii) Directors have been actively negotiating (ii) EEE BB )EINEER
with (i) overseas commercial banks and TR mEEER - A
international financial institutions for raising AAREERSHMELEITE
funds from new facilities to the Group; and R BEEAEHEELRE
(i) reputable real estate capital management BARER - U AREE
companies for sales and lease back RETINE 2/ FRER S
arrangements in respect of certain of the ERBRZE - NREEE B
Group’s warehouses located in Singapore. L EREEE T TREAOR
The Group has received a number of non- NZBEHEE - BRER
binding term sheets, letters of intent and EREE - WIEHBERTEKE
expressions of interest regarding the TEBESREF MG IGE
mentioned negotiations, and it is expected ITHEBEBII L ELR T 2%
that binding agreement(s) will be entered o

upon the completion of certain due diligence
procedures and negotiation on terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments relating to the carrying amount and
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group be unable to operate as
a going concern.

Fair value measurement

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
Group’s accounting team has overall responsibility
for all significant fair value measurements, including
Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the
Group Chief Financial Officer. Independent qualified
professional valuers are engaged as considered
necessary. The Group’s accounting team regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If third party information,
such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used
to measure fair values, then such evidence obtained
from the third parties is assessed and documented
to support the conclusion that such valuations meet
the requirements of HKFRSs, including the level
in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations
should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Group Chief Financial Officer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR WK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market observable data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The Group recognises transfers between levels of
the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is set out in Note 19 and Note
44(e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
impact on the accounting policies of the Group.
However, additional disclosure has been included in
Note 28 to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative, which
require entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standards or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value except that deferred tax assets or
liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS19 Employee Benefits, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Business combinations (continued)

Where the acquiree is a party to an operating lease
arrangement of leasehold lands with terms that are
favourable relative to market terms, the excess of
the market price over the carrying amount of the
leasehold land held by the acquiree at the time of
acquisition represents the right to a favourable lease
contract and is included as part of the Group’s
interests in land use rights.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain, except for the acquisition of business from
an equity participant of the Company whereby the
excess is accounted for as a deemed contribution
from a shareholder and is recognised in equity.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Business combinations (continued)

When put options are issued by the Group over non-
controlling interests, a financial liability arising from
the put options is initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost with
changes in its carrying amount recognised in the
profit or loss. At the acquisition date, non-controlling
interests subject to the put options are deemed to
have been acquired as if the put options had been
exercised already and the fair value of financial
liability arising from the put options is included in the
consideration transferred. Consequently, the non-
controlling interests subject to the put options are
presented as already owned by the Company, both
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls and entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated financial statements of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with Notes 2(v) or 2(x) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —FE—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(i)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see Note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(p)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see Note 2(ff)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (see Note
2(ff)). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see Notes 2(h) and 2(p)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceased to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 2(i)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note
2(p)), unless classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see Note 2(ff)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(if) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(p)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investment in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out in Note 2(cc)(vi).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see Note

2(p)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

)]

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
reliable measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 2(p)). Dividend income from equity securities
and interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set
out in Note 2(cc)(vi), respectively. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of debt securities are also recognised
in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or
impaired (see Note 2(p)), the cumulative gain or
loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see
Note 2(K)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N M‘%#&%@Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — = F+—A=+—HIFFZ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Hedge accounting

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply
hedge accounting, as well as its risk management
objectives and strategy for undertaking the
hedge transactions. The documentation includes
identification of the hedging instrument, the
hedge item or transaction, the nature of risk being
hedged and how the entity assesses the hedging
instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure
to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges
are expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and
are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that
they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they are
designated.

The Group makes an assessment, both at the
inception of the hedge relationship as well as on an
ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instruments
are expected to be “highly effective” in offsetting
the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the
respective hedged items attributable to the hedged
risk, and whether the actual results of each hedge
are within a range of 80%-125%. For a cash flow
hedge of a forecast transaction, the transaction
should be highly probable to occur and should
present an exposure to variations in cash flows that
could ultimately affect reported profit or loss.

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value,
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are accounted for as described below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

B 5 SRR Y =

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —F—+F+ - A=+

HIL#EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Hedge accounting (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that is
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in
the fair value of the hedging instrument and
the change in the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk are recognised in the line
of the statement of comprehensive income/
income statement relating to the hedged
item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when
the Group revokes the hedging relationship,
the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. The
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
hedged item arising from the hedged risk is
amortised to profit or loss from that date.

Cash flow hedge

When a derivative is designated as the
hedging instrument in a hedge of the
variability in cash flows attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction that could affect profit or loss,
the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented in the
hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective
portion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+tF+=—H=+—HAIFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EES:BE &)
(continued)
(k) Hedge accounting (continued) (k) EHEFHEGE)
(i)  Cash flow hedge (continued) (i) BEREHW ()

When the hedged item is a non-financial WEHPIER RIFERMEE -
asset, the amount accumulated in equity RERZTZESHEREEE
is included in the carrying amount of the BRI ABEZKREE -
asset when the asset is recognised. In other EEMIBRAT - RiE= R
cases, the amount accumulated in equity Z & EABIAEHRIE B L2148
is reclassified to profit or loss in the same mZ ARBREFLEEIE
period that the hedged item affects profit o WP TAETHEEY
or loss. If the hedging instrument no longer MEEAC 2R - BIEAS
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, HE -~ RIESETTE - SiiE
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, ERESE - ¥R gEER
or the designation is revoked, then hedge RRHARARIEER - fm T8 R
accounting is discontinued prospectively. RGFEATEHIR - B #E
If the forecast transaction is no longer mEREENTOEER
expected to occur, then the balance in equity e
is reclassified to profit or loss.

() Investment properties n BEWE

Investment properties are land and/or building
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2(0)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in Note 2(cc)(vii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —F—+F+ - A=+

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

(m)

Investment properties (continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease (see Note 2(0)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in Note 2(0).

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(p)):

- building held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land classified as held under
operating leases (see Note 2(0)); and

= other items of property, plant and equipment.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extend that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #t %2 — & —-

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Other property, plant and equipment
(continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(eg)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained profit and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated
KA FERE T I AT E

Hotel and buildings for golf business
BRRMEBBERET

Leasehold land and buildings

2.

(m)

shorter

HETHREF
Plant, machinery, equipment, moulds and tools

BB - s Rt BARIA 3FZE25F

Motor vehicles and trailers 3 to 10 years

ERIEE 3FEE105F

Furniture, fittings, computers and office 1to 10 years
equipment
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Leasehold improvements

shorter
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9 years, or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
OFFIRMEFH o WEE

5 to 52 years, or over the lease terms, whichever is

SFEL2F N IR EFHEREE
3 to 25 years

15 to 25 years, or over the lease terms, whichever is
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

2.

+FEF=A=1+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

(n)

Other property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(p)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

o Computer software

Computer software which is acquired by
the Group, where it is not an integral part
of the related hardware, is treated as an
intangible asset. Computer software is stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Computer software is amortised to profit or
loss using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

O Customer contracts

Customer contracts relate to the estimated
value of contracts acquired in a business
combination; and have finite lives and
are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Customer contracts are amortised to profit or
loss using the straight-line method over the
customers’ contract periods of 1 to 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

London Metal Exchange (“LME”) license

The license relates to the estimated license
value acquired in a business combination and
has finite life and is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

LME license is amortised to profit or loss using
the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life of 30 years.

Business relationship

Business relationship relates to the estimated
economic benefits from business relationship
arising from a business combination. Business
relationship refers to business relationship
between suppliers and customers. Business
relationship is estimated to have finite life
and is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Business Relationship is amortised to profit
or loss using the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 4 to 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

2.

tEF A=A —AILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(o)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

° Brand

Brand relates to the estimated economic
benefits from brand arising from a business
combination. Brand refers to the acquired
company’s good reputation and name
known in the market. Brand is estimated to
have finite life and is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Brand is amortised to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 10 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —FE—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property
on a property-by-property basis and,
if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease (see Note 2())); and

- Land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under
a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ST RRME

nVT\

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

2.

+FEF=A=1+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost
or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in Note 2(m).
Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 2(p). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of change on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalment over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see Note 2()).

e SRR M EE

Tt F+A=+—HIFEE

2. EEEHEw®E)

(o) HEEEMH)

(iii)

HEHELH

HARBEEACEHER
BEEZERE  AREHE
EfFh IR eEHERR
5@%2@&3@?3@ C AEHE

DHIT AR ER - HELD
BHEMEELTE BRI RIR
MEBEMES 2 KR
QBRI - CHENC HEEE
ERATEA[BHEMNK
FE B ARMEEE
HEAZ@HHRANBERE
OER ©

N EMERA i 2 Wi
W$§‘ﬂﬂ,ﬁﬁ B SRR EH -
D REARREMEZYE
(RLHTFE20)) BRI ©

CWT International Limited Annual Report 2017

127



128

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-H=+—HI F&E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(p) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or
are classified as available-for-sale securities
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payment;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in

the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+tF+=—H=+—HAIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and
joint ventures accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see Note 2(g)),
the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with
Note 2(p)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with Note 2(p)(ii).

- For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(continued)

— For trade and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the assets carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(continued)

For available-for-sale securities,
the cumulative loss that has been
recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of
available-for-sale debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase
in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-H=+—HI F&E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(continued)

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade debtors
and bills receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+tF+=—H=+—HAIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- Land use right (pre-paid interests in
leasehold land classified as being held
under an operating lease);

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

+FE+=A=1

(p)

Impairment of assets (continued)

HIL#EE

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill

is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(p)(i) and (ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —ZE—+%#+_—H=+—HI F/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEHHBER®W)

(continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () EEREME)
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and (i) R ERBE(E)
impairment (continued)
Impairment losses recognised in an interim FER MR AREE - ATt
period in respect of goodwill, available-for- H & IR 3B 5 K H B AN B BR
sale equity securities and unquoted equity ZIE ETRARTE & FTiER
securities carried at cost are not reversed in B B R e 1 E 12 HA B
a subsequent period. This is the case even [ o M B B [ SR A R 77
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have HESTEIR BRHAR AR A 2 BB
been recognised had the impairment been AL - BRI M SR A 1R sk
assessed only at the end of the financial REEREMEE - ZREE
year to which the interim period relates. BARTERERZED -
Consequently, if the fair value of an available- bt - EAHEERRNESZ
for-sale equity security increases in the AABERFEEH TR
remainder of the annual period, or in any HAig I H o HARE S 00 - B
other period subsequently, the increase is Ziige N a2 IS
recognised in other comprehensive income JER B NFER ©
and not profit or loss.
(@) Inventories (@ *®E&
All inventories are valued at the lower of cost and BRASEREELLERIB2EE
net realisable value except for inventories where the SN BB 1R E JHIRE AN & n] #3185
Group acts as a broker-trader. BERERZBIEETIER -
Inventories where the Group acts as a broker-trader AREFBREIKLRIBEZFERE
include metals and energy commodities acquired AERTHELNEERESELE R
with the purpose of selling them in the near term and FMmBAZEBREREm @ Wik
generating a profit from fluctuation in price, and are ARBEBRLEEKATE -

measured at fair value less costs to sell.

All other inventories are valued at the lower of cost Fr B B 17 B4R A Je ] 38 5HE
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the ME R ZRIEETER - 7] #3R)%E
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of DR BEEBRBEP Z(EHFTEE -
business less the estimated costs of completion and MR EETTER 2 AN REITSHE T
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. =2 EET A o

Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis AN Th iR e S HOABETE - BEM
and includes the full costs of materials, freight and B B MR 2 B AN A RS TE
insurance and all other costs incurred in bringing the B E 2 B IR B b B N BUR AR
inventories to their present location and condition. FREEAE 2 P B H AN ©
Allowances is made where necessary for obsolete, RE -  HELLEFERNEEER
slow moving and defective inventories. EH B4 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e 7J TR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —FE—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Warrantable LME commodities

Warrantable LME commodities comprise highly
liquid commodities with the intention of selling them
in the near term, where the Group acts as a broker-
trader. These are measured at fair value less costs
to sell.

Contract work-in-progress

Contract work-in-progress comprises uncompleted
service contracts.

Contract work-in-progress at the reporting date is
recorded in the statement of financial position at cost
plus attributable profit less recognised losses, net
of progress billings and allowances for foreseeable
losses, and is presented in the statement of financial
position as contract work-in-progress (as an asset)
or as excess of progress billings over contract
work-in-progress (as a liability), as applicable. Cost
includes all expenditure related directly to specific
contracts and an allocation of fixed and variable
overheads incurred in the Group’s contract activities
based on normal operating capacity.

Allowance is made where applicable for any
foreseeable losses on uncompleted contracts as
soon as the possibility of the loss is ascertained.

Progress claims not yet paid by the customer are
included in the statement of financial position under
progress billings receivable.

The accounting policy for service contract revenue is
set out in Note 2(cc)(viii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(p)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that contain a debt
component and an equity component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where
the number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary (“fixed-
for-fixed criteria”), are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a debt
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the debt component of the
convertible notes is measured at fair value based on
the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option.
The equity component is initially recognised at the
difference between the fair value of the convertible
notes as a whole and the fair value of the debt
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of a compound financial instrument are allocated to
the debt and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — =~

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Convertible notes (continued)

Convertible notes that contain a debt
component and an equity component (continued)

The debt component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the debt component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together
with the carrying amount of the debt component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.

Convertible notes that do not meet the fixed-for-
fixed criteria are classified separately as a financial
component and derivative components.

At initial recognition the debt component of the
convertible notes is measured at fair value based on
the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. The
debt components are initially recognised at the
difference between the fair value of the convertible
notes as a whole and the fair value of the derivative
component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of such convertible notes are allocated to the
debt and derivative components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The debt component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the debt component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The derivative
components are accounted for in accordance with
accounting policy set out in Note 2(j).

e SRR MR

£F+=A=+—FFEE

2. EESTHEm®m

(u)

TRREE(E)

B2 EHH R ER G2 THRK
B D R IR B HA AR - I
BREANRRZEHBNHNERX
BB FZ R E - BB RE
AREEEREEZRCEBRYE
[E]

HWRBECDEER  EAREERE
BREEHHNPIEAEEEER
RERBEBRITRN ZRE - HEE
EEE EAFBERBRARER
o

PRE B 2RI Z 7] 2 A R A% E B
DER/ETRENDRITET AR D -

RUIFZHERE - AIBRRREZER
BRI RIBARRF B R A SN R Z IR
BUARAREEFE  BERRVTHE
REBERARN Y EEBBEZBURE
ZTISHREER o B EN T FR
ERUTRRREZ A BERANTE
TABRZzARBEZHZ ZHEE
R ARABTREAIRRER 2R
FAIR IS RIB D BL 2 L 5 BL
FEBERITET AR -

B D R IR B HA AR - I
Bt NRER Z ER5ER 0 ML B R ST A
ERMEEGFE - STETAFMIR
IREOPE2() 2 B ETBUERTIER -

CWT International Limited Annual Report 2017

139



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ST RRME

nVT\

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

2.

tFEFAZ AU FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Perpetual borrowings

Perpetual borrowings repayable upon an event not
controllable by the Group are stated at cost and
classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with Note 2(bb)(i), trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+ %1+ -H=+—HI %

i

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEEHHBER®W)

(continued)
(z2 Employee benefits (continued) (20 EETF®E)
(i)  Defined benefit retirement plan (i) REFFE MBI EIE

obligations
The Group’s net obligation in respect of REEGBEIFESEAT
defined benefit retirement plans is calculated BRRIRET & 2 AEFEE
separately for each plan by estimating the A AGEHE B i E N AH
amount of future benefit that employees have N i@ F HAR AR 7S FT & B 2 oK
earned in return for their service in the current RiEF R o Z@AA T A
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted BIRAEEIRE - mERGT
to determine the present value and the fair EEEZ AR EBEER T A
value of any plan assets is deducted. The o & EBIBERATEE R
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary BEAMELEEITAE - &
using the projected unit credit method. When J;ﬁ,ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁ%@ﬁﬂ 1
the calculation results in a benefit to the HRZEESBBEIZE
Group, the recognised asset is limited to the Al R ARER FR kAT 8] 2 R R4
present value of economic benefits available AN ER 2 2 2 DA P S
in the form of any future refunds from the BN RIRERR o
plan or reductions in future contributions to
the plan.
Service cost and net interest expense/income AERAMEBE BEFEZ
on the net defined benefit liability/asset are BR 7R AN I F A B R S Uk
recognised in profit or loss and allocated by ARB=RNER - WikfHE
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling DEEAIEHERKA] - [HE
and distribution costs” or “administrative EotHER sk 17BH X |
expenses”. Current service cost is measured Z— 5815 o BB RBE AL
as the increase in the present value of the AN ERERBAEELEZ R
defined benefit obligation resulting from E%E ) F IR B 2 LR FT
employee service in the current period. o fmEt Bl 2 8 A IR E &)
When the benefits of a plan are changed, or _JZqui‘Jiﬁ/ﬁE H{E 8 BT R
when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the BHEBzEBNERHHHE
changed benefit related to past service by 8 48 Rk 2 W S B 1R R 74 R
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, E1E B 7T 3k 48 R R S B i
is recognised as an expense in profit or loss RIERE AN AN 4K E B
at the earlier of when the plan amendment BRER REEREBEEN
or curtailment occurs and when related R AT - BREF S
restructuring costs or termination benefits S WANE BN RERFE
are recognised. Net interest expense/income &/ BEFHERATENH
for the period is determined by applying the L ER) SLErE M AYE 2 BRI
discount rate used to measure the defined KT LAERE o B3R E 52 5
benefit obligation at the beginning of the B AL EEITAE 2 HifR
reporting period to the net defined benefit ﬁ%Z{EEﬁ%%#E’:‘iﬁ%
liability/asset. The discount rate is the yield BROR 7 Wz =

at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Defined benefit retirement plan
obligations (continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit retirement plans are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in retained earnings.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/asset) and
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/asset).

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ST RRME

2r-‘|

nJj\

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — &

2.

+FEF=A=1+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(z)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 2 — &~

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

(aa)

Employee benefits (continued)
(v) Other employee benefits

The Group operates other long-term
employee benefit schemes. Every year
the Group calculates the amount to be
debited/credited to the bonus pool under the
schemes. Such amounts are recognised in
the profit or loss. Payments to beneficiaries
are dependent on certain conditions such
as minimum service period and long-term
profitability. Payments within 12 months
to beneficiaries after the service period are
reclassified from non-current liabilities to
current liabilities.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e TSR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 —EF—+%#+_—H=+—HI F/&F
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried backward or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 2(l), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(@aa) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to

e 7J ﬁ‘%#&%@ B &t

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z
2. SEBCR )
(bb) SREMKEER BERIA
=K
(i) B & H B BIER
MBEEREHNREETA
(BPHER A ) X8 E I8
DREER2ZEA(EES

make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

tEF A=A —AILEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with Note 2(bb)(iii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can
be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined in
accordance with Note 2(bb)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were
not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with
Note 2(bb)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(bb) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(iii)

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(cc)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit

or loss as follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is
probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated reliably,
and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of certain commaodities
is initially recorded based on 100% of the
provisional sales prices. Until final settlement
occurs, adjustments to the provisional sales
price are made to take into account metal
price changes, based upon the month-end
spot price and metal quantities upon receipt
of the final assay and weight certificates,
if different from the initial certificates. The
Group marks to market its provisional sales
based on the forward price for the estimated
month of settlement. In the statement of
financial position, such mark to market
adjustments is included within “accrued
income” or “accrued expenses”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ve

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(cc) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Provision of logistics services
Freight forwarding

Export revenue is recognised when the
cargos are delivered to the carriers and
import revenue is recognised upon the arrival
of cargos.

Distribution services, and repair and
maintenance services

Revenues from distribution services,
and repair and maintenance services are
recognised as and when the services are
rendered.

Financial services income
Commission and brokerage fee income

When the Group acts in the capacity of
an agent rather than as a principal in a
transaction, the revenue recognised is the net
amount of commission earned by the Group.
Commission income is recognised as earned
when trades are executed by clients.

Transaction fee income

Transaction fee represents the margin earned
from executing sale and purchase contracts.
Transaction fee is recognised in income when
the contracts are executed.

Service income and interest income

Service income is recognised when the
services are rendered. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal amount outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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T2 N == 7

I 7 R ARk M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(cc)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from golf club operations

The initial membership fee is amortised on
a straight-line basis based on the remaining
period to the expiry date of business
license of the golf club of the Group and
the unamortised initial membership fee is
recognised as deferred revenue. The monthly
membership fee and the service income
related to the usage of golf club’s facilities
are recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from hotel and leisure
operations

Revenue from hotel and leisure operations
comprising hotel accommodation, food and
beverages are recognised when the services
are rendered.

Investment and dividend income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —EF—+4#+—-H=+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(cc)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
granted are recognised as an integral part
of the total rental income to be received.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Contract revenue

When the outcome of the service contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue
and costs are recognised as income and
expense using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the
contract activity. When it is probable that
total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately. When the outcome
of a contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred and
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that can probably be
recovered.

Construction and installation contracts

Contract revenue includes the initial amount
agreed in the contract plus any variations
in contract work, claims and incentive
payments, to the extent that it is probable
that they will result in revenue and can be
measured reliably. When the outcome of
a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised
in profit or loss in proportion to the stage
of completion of the contract. Contract
expenses are recognised as incurred unless
they create an asset related to future contract
activity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#1+ - H=+—HI F/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(cc) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ix)

Construction and installation contracts
(continued)

The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to surveys of work performed.
When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. An expected loss on a contract is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses
exceed progress billings, the surplus
representing amounts due from customers
is shown as “progress billings receivable”
and included under “prepayments, deposits
and other receivables”. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus representing
amounts due to customers is shown as
“advance billings and billings in excess of
costs incurred and recognised profits” and
included under “trade and other payables”.

(dd) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the

reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge

a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ﬁ%x&%\%ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —EF—+4F+_—H=+—HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(continued)

SEBE @)

(dd) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(dd) BEIHEGE)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a group entity that is a foreign
operation, the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

MONERBESE X AT B ZIFEHBE
ENBENERARRZBHERZ
SNEEXRBE - RRAABEIKRLZ
PONEETHEFEREERARE
RRFTEAABEE BERZINE
b R

BINET 2 FERER F B BRI
KEXMEEZERBERTEE - W
BRRRERZEE  BREAHR=
ETRE A B ZEMKES
SNRBMEEZAE  HHREHAR
ZWﬁ%%E%ﬁﬁ%%%o%?
HEZERERINEMEE K E
%%*iﬁ%%%*ZER%%W
Zit - AR _TTHF—A—
BRIFBEIETMEEZHE
WU BB SN K75 B B P E R 2 SN
b R

REEBSIEBEB TR
NAFEEE AEREZER AR
RERRFTZEREZRBENHE

i85 o

7

J)

CWT International Limited Annual Report 2017

ST



158

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ST RRME

nVT\

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

2.

tEF A=A —AILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ee)

(ff)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a
group of assets to be disposed of together as
a group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e 7J TR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —FE—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ffl Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (continued)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale
(continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (and all individual assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ff) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(gg) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i

(il)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same Group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a Group of which the other entity is
a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(gg) Related parties (continued)

(hh)

(b) An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(viii A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e 7J TR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —FE—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 19, 34, 38 and 44(e) contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating

to valuation of investment property, defined benefit

retirement obligations, fair value of share options

granted and financial instruments. Notes 25 and

44(b) contain information relating to the allowance

for doubtful receivables. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

Revenue recognition

In the ordinary course of business, certain
subsidiaries of the Group enter into
commodity marketing transactions where
sales and purchases are initially recognised
at provisional prices with subsequent price
adjustments made to the provisional sales/
purchase prices.

During the contractually agreed quotational
period, the sales/purchase prices are not
fixed and fluctuate based on the changes in
the market prices of the underlying metals.
The Group marks to market its provisional
sales and purchases based on the forward
price for the estimated month of settlement.
In the statement of financial position, positive
mark to market adjustments are included
within ‘accrued income’ whereas negative
adjustments are included within ‘accrued
expenses’. Upon completion of the quotation
period, the prices are fixed based upon the
spot price and metal contents and quantities
upon receipt of the final assay and weight
certificates.

3. ErtHEiRMEE

(a)

EFF T RERRE ZRR

MI3E19 ~ 34 - 38N 44(e) B & A
KEYEME - AT EKREF A
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RIEARE B MG ERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#1+ - H=+—HI F/E

2r‘|

nJj\

3.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

As described in Note 2(p)(ii), assets such
as property, plant and equipment, land use
rights and intangible assets and are reviewed
for possible impairment indications at the
end of each reporting period. If any such
indication exists, recoverable amount of the
assets (or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs) is estimated and, when necessary,
an impairment loss or reversal of impairment
loss is recognised accordingly. Determination
as to whether and how much an asset is
impaired involves management estimates
and judgements and the impairment reviews
and calculations are based on assumptions
that are consistent with the Group’s
business plans. Favourable changes to some
assumptions may allow the Group to avoid
the need to impair any assets in these years,
whereas unfavourable changes may cause
the assets to become impaired.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts
of inventories at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether the inventories
are carried at lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2(g). Management
estimates the net realisable value based on
the current market situation and historical
experience on similar inventories. Any
change in the assumptions would increase
or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down
and affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —EF—+4#+—-H=+ IFFE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. u&,ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group REBEZE_ZE—tF+_A=T—HBIHF
acquired CWT SG (the “Acquisition”) by way of a voluntary g RKEH l LBRBEEEEYL 2 H N IKEE

general offer. CWT SG is incorporated in Singapore and its
shares were previously listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”). CWT SG and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “CWT SG Group”)
is principally engaged in commodity marketing activities
and provision of logistic services, financial services and
engineering services.

On 9 April 2017, the Company made a public announcement
that, subject to the fulfiiment or waiver (as applicable)
of certain pre-conditions (“Pre-conditions”), HNA Belt
and Road Investments (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, would make a voluntary
conditional offer (the “Offer”) to purchase all the issued and
fully paid-up ordinary shares of CWT SG (“CWT Shares”)
at a cash consideration of 2.33 Singapore Dollars (“S$”) per
share.

As at 7 September 2017, all of the Pre-conditions have
been fulfilled or waived (as applicable), and certain
shareholders of CWT SG, collectively holding 65.13% of the
CWT Shares, have given irrevocable written undertakings
to accept the Offer. In accordance with accounting policy
set out in Note 2(e), the Offer to the then holders of the
remaining 34.87% of the CWT Shares is considered put
option issued by the Group over such interests, which
are deemed to have been acquired as if the put options
had been exercised already on 7 September 2017.
Consequently, CWT SG became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company on the same date.

Based on 600,304,650 CWT Shares in issue as at 7
September 2017, the consideration for the Acquisition
is approximately S$1,398,710,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,108,978,000). The Group completed
the acquisition of all the CWT Shares on 15 December
2017 and CWT SG became delisted from the SGX-ST on
18 December 2017.

CWT SG([ =18 ) - CWT SGRFT N
WML - B AR B A R FT N E 5 R
SFBRAR([#RA]) LM - CWT SG
REWB AR (#ECWT SGEE|)EZ
NEERE DS RIERYTERE - S8
Al 7s & T2 AR -

RARRZZE—tFMANBTIEQSE -
B AFE T SRR ([ SRR 1) AL
BHE(WER) % ARRZEMBAA
HNA Belt and Road Investments (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. B ELWEECWT SGZ i B #1T
R EmIR(TCWTR ) 2 BREE &1+
ZHTEHN])  ReRERER2.33FM
o ((Fmsg )

R-ZZT—+FNALH  FALREN
DEASKERE(NERA)  MeEEEE
65.13% CWT g fp 2 & F CWT SG ik 3
ETNAHMEMEEABZESEZLN - BIR
MiE2e)fTE St BR  MERBERT
34.87% CWTRR D 2 IR 1EH 2 BV AR
AREERZ SRR ZRAEE -
ZEE SR AT I - MRS HE
ER=ZZT—tFNALBETE - At
CWT SGRRI AKX AR AR 2 &N B AR

BER=ZZFE—+tFNLAELHEEM
600,304,650 CWTR D&t & + W iE =18
Z B4 51,398,710,000%7 hi3% T (AEE
R %8,108,978,0007T) - R —E—+
F+ZA+HRB NEETKWERE
CWTH D » MCWT SGR=_ZE—+tF+=
A+\BEFRFBREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —ZE—+4%+—H

e

=1 H |- 4F [
=T T HIEFS

i

4. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 4. WEKHBDQ (@)

R-ZE—EFNALB(BIKNERH) - W
E§$1E¥¢$%Z;§§&ELT§%EZMT%

The Acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s
assets and liabilities on 7 September 2017, which is the
date of acquisition:

HK$’000
BT

Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment e N 8,341,651
Investment properties WEYHE 2,612
Intangible assets mEEE 431,274
Interest in associates PR N RS 189,352
Interest in joint ventures REERERER 317,284
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE ~ e R H A BRI 55,678
Other financial assets HmorEE 187,960
Other non-current assets Hi3Eme&EE 20,663
Deferred tax assets EERIRE = 27,526
9,574,000

Current assets REEE
Inventories & 2,655,582
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 AR IA K H fth FE Y5k IE 13,007,910
Other financial assets HEthorEE 671,697
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTEA 411,348
Tax recoverable AT U Bl £ 18 15,758
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEBEIER 1,643,171
Other non-current assets held-for-sale FELE 2 EMERBEE 15,641
18,421,107
Current liabilities REBAE

Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR I8 I B fth FE < 5K 18 (9,281,123)
Loans and borrowings BERRIER (4,551,739)
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA (1,911,455)
Current tax payable FE < B HATR IE (109,862)
Deferred gains EE W e (16,065)
Provisions B (13,427)
(15,883,671)

Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Loans and borrowings ERRER (2,643,919)
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTEA (690)
Employee benefits EERF (70,944)
Deferred gains R (21,729)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIEEE (817,107)
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBEE (23,561)
(3,577,950)
Fair value of net assets acquired FrEEEFEL AREER 8,533,486
Gain on bargain purchase B (327,172)
Non-controlling interests arising from the Acquisition UgiE I8 ZE 4 7 JEfEp =S (97,336)
Total consideration BRE 8,108,978
Less: cash acquired o T EEIR (1,643,171)
Net cash outflow et FE 6,465,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N M‘%#&%@Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — = F+—A=+—HIFFZ

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
approximately HK$327,172,000 because there was
increase in fair value of identifiable net assets of CWT SG
from the date when the price of the Offer was determined
to the acquisition completion date on 7 September 2017.
The total revenue and profit for the period contributed by
CWT SG Group from 7 September 2017 to 31 December
2017 were HK$23,624,714,000 and HK$106,500,000,
respectively.

If the Acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2017, the
Group’s revenue and profit for the year contributed
by CWT SG Group would have been approximately
HK$65,158,100,000 and HK$369,000,000, respectively,
and the Group’s revenue and profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$65,489,300,000 and
HK$488,700,000, respectively. These amounts have been
calculated by adopting the Group’s accounting policies
and adjusting the results of relevant subsidiaries to reflect
the additional amortisation and depreciation that would
have been charged assuming the fair value adjustments
to intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
had been applied from 1 January 2017, together with the
consequential tax effects.

The Directors have assumed that the fair value adjustments
that arose in the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition were occurred on 1 January 2017.

4.

W B I 2 W) )

AEERREZBERBRSDAE
327,172,0007C * R E & CWT SGZ Al &%
AFEEZAREBEBZNERNIET
KEBBHEIR=_E—tFNLALtH)EEE
HEEAMEM - B-_E—+FEhALBEE

—tF+=_A=+—HIL ' CWT SG
SBER 2 AL &os F 2 Bl BE K
23,624,714,0007T & 7% #106,500,0007T °

MRBEER T —+F—A—B%4%
imCWT SG%lmmﬁlﬁﬁa%za@uﬁz

5 Mom A& 5 Bl 49 &7 #665,158,100,000
JT & 7% ¥ 369,000,000 JT ¢ 1M &N & E
ZFEARAWE REFE D RN EEK
65,489,300,000 jT & /& ¥ 488,700,000
T RESBBERRMANER S5
REAREENB AR 2 HEE T UAFE -
IRBABEE-—Z—+F—A—B5E
WEERYHX BERXEERRBALEE
AR BRI BN RITE -
ERIAERHIERE -

EFCBERUBAMELEZ AR BERAR
HRWBRN —F—tF A B%EEMN
B
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e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — &

5.
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DISPOSAL GROUPS AND OTHER NON- 5.

tFEF A=+ HIEFE

DPEARFHEZHEARNR

CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HitnEREBEE
HELD-FOR-SALE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ffat BT BT T
Assets associated with PEREFELEEZ
disposal groups classified HEAR 2
as held-for-sale HEEE
Intelligent Information Business BEE B 6(b)(iii) - 387,075
Other non-current assets held FEHEZ
for sale HihERENEE
Interest in an associate, Westford 7 — REH# % A 7] Westford
Trade Services Ltd. Trade Services Ltd. 2 ## 15,617 -
Liabilities associated with TEABELEEZ
disposal groups classified HEMAR 2 HEAE
as held-for-sale
Intelligent Information Business HaeE BER 6(b)(iii) - 396,961
Amounts recognised in other S EABEHE>
comprehensive income and HEARREM 2 E KR
accumulated in equity relating ERERERZEi>
to disposal groups classified EREEEE
as held-for-sale
Intelligent Information Business BEEEEER - (42,240)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —+F+—

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued operations is

analysed as follows:

e SRR MR

6. CORIEXEK

ERIEXBZFE

A=1+—HIFFE

w A, (BR)AMT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
izt BT BT T
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Loss of DTV Business and HFEREBE R _EE
LED Business  peeia @) - (102,926)
Loss of Intelligent TR B EBER
Information Business (b)(i) (23,705) (66,225)
Gain on disposal of DTV Business H&E &7 B8 £S5 M3
and LED Business ZIRE RN (a)(i) - 128,256
Gain on disposal of HE SRS B EBWE
Intelligent Information Business (b)(i) 112,126 —
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERILEBZFEwH,/
discontinued operations (E518) 88,421 (40,895)
Profit/(loss) for the year from IATATEEERIEES 2
discontinued operations FEEA(E8)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RNARIER A 88,857 (13,580)
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 2 (436) (27,315)
88,421 (40,895)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= OB

AN =|

6.

B 5 SRR Y =

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —F—+F+ - A=+

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(a)

DTV Business and LED Business
(collectively referred to as the “DTV
Disposal Group”)

Following a reform in Guangdong Province
whereby the cable digital broadcasting networks
of Guangdong Province would be reorganised
and ultimately held by a state-owned enterprise,
the Group was no longer able to operate its digital
television technical solutions and equipment
business (the “DTV Business”). The Group was
committed to sell the DTV Business and the
Directors consider the disposal transaction was
highly probable as at 31 December 2015.

On 17 August 2016, the Company and Leader
Concept Investments Limited (“Leader Concept”),
a company which is ultimately controlled by HNA
Group, the then ultimate parent of the Company,
entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) in
relation to the disposal of the DTV Business as well
as a subsidiary of the Group engaging in the sales of
light emitted diode business (the “LED Business”)
at a cash consideration of HK$1 (the “Disposal”).
Accordingly, the DTV Disposal Group was included
in discontinued operation.

According to the Agreement, after the completion
of the Disposal, Leader Concept would procure
the DTV Disposal Group to repay the shareholders’
loan of HK$950,000,000 due to the Group (the
“Repayment Obligations”) in the following manner:

6. BRIEE®K®

(a)

BrEREBRBA_BEX
B (G BFERLEAR )

% RERBET—BREE @ &
BEREERETEEREKRE
Eﬁlﬁ%m—@lﬁmﬁhﬁ
AREEBTHBLKEASTERR
MARREEEH([BFTERE
¥ R-TE—RF+-_A=1+—
H AEBAELHEHTERER
MEERRIIEETEARERNLER

ZE—R"ENATER KA
AIEEEREERAR([EAER
E| —HAARAERIHEET
NAEMEE&EES 22 E)E]
TERE(ZBE])  RAEH
PEHTEREBARAEE—FH
WEHER N _BEEH(BKX=
BEXK ) 2HBAR HeaRE
AEEIT((HESBE]) - At -
HTEREBTACKILES -

$ETF§ZT§%# R EFETKE
,,,,, BEREBUTIISTAREHRFTE
ﬁﬂj AREERNAEEZ R
B 0% # 950,000,000 7T ([ 1812 &
%)

HK$’000
BT T
Repayment date g g=R
At the completion date R 5ER B HA 50,000
Three months from the date after the completion B5E BB H B =1E A
date 500,000
The first anniversary of the date of the completion SERk HE i Z BBt —AF
date 400,000
950,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(a)

DTV Business and LED Business
(collectively referred to as the “DTV
Disposal Group”) (continued)

The Disposal (together with the Repayment
Obligations) constitutes a non-exempt connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules
which requires the approval of the independent
shareholders other than Leader Concept and its
associates and those who were involved in or
interested in the Disposal. Details of the Disposal
and Repayment Obligations are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 17 August 2016
and the Company’s circular dated 15 September
2016. The Disposal was completed on 17 October
2016.

(i) Results of DTV Disposal Group

e SRR M EE

BE—T—FF+ —_A=+—HIFFEZE

6. BRIEXEK®

(a)

HFEREBREXC Fﬁ”é$
B(EBBFERKEAR])
HEER(EREBEEERK)BKR L

MRAB T ZARFFHRRRER
5 HETAESERREREE
BANRZEANEEEERERE
mATAINZ BIIRERBLAE - HE
FENMEEREHRZHBHANRARF
ABA—_ZE—RFENAT+tBEZA
ERARBBPR/R-Z—XRFNHA
THAZEK - HEFREN_Z
—RNE+HATEAREK -

(i) EFERHEAR &
Period from
1 January 2016
to 17 October
2016 (date of

disposal)

B-E—RF

—H—H=

—E—RF

+H++AR

(HEBH)

HAM

HK$'000

BT T

Revenue Weas =

Expenses s (102,926)

Results from operating activities SRR FTEE 2 HEE (102,926)

Income tax Frig -
Results from operating activities, net of tax KETEBTEE 2 54E -

HBRT IR (102,926)

Gain on sale of DTV Disposal Group HEHFERLERR 2 W 128,256

Profit from DTV Disposal Group, net of tax EFrERLEHRT
FrEARF - HBRHIE 25,330
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR WK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(@) DTV Business and LED Business
(collectively referred to as the “DTV
Disposal Group”) (continued)

(i) Cash flows from DTV Disposal Group

B IEER®
(a) BFEREBRBAX_GETZ

BB BFERALEAR])

(%)

(ii)

BFERLEHAFITELZ
HEnE

Period from

1 January 2016
to 17 October
2016 (date of
disposal)
B-T—ARF
—HA—Bz
—ERF
TH+LER
(HEHE)
HAfE
HK$’000
BT

Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net cash outflows
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BEm e

LETEEMA IR e F5 (18,964)
WEERBATH 2R & /55 (121)
BRSNS 2 RS TR 13,190

(5,899)
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e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(a)

DTV Business and LED Business
(collectively referred to as the “DTV

6. BRIEXEK®

(a) BFEREBRBA_BEX
BB BFERLEAR])

Disposal Group”) (continued) (48)
(i)  Effect of disposal on the consolidated (iii) HEHALEFHLGES BN T
financial position of the Group K HE
The following are the assets and liabilities UMTERZZE—XRFT+ A
in respect of DTV Disposal Group disposed +t8 - BIEKEE HE
of on the date of completion on 17 October ZEFTERLERRN CEE
2016: kA& :
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - WBE KRG 435,173
Investment properties WEYHE 38,269
Goodwiill EEES 12,682
Intangible assets B EE 277,597
Inventories T8 408
Trade receivables FEWE 5 AR1A 160,883
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRFKIE - Re Kk
H fth FEUCRRIR 19,608
Tax recoverable B EEE 237
Restricted bank deposits IR HIERTTIT 3K 269
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITEF 473
Trade and other payables FETE 5 AR 1A K H Ath FE T 518 (37,293)
Amounts due to the Group FES A& B 5RIE (950,000)
Tax payables FESBETE (88,269)
Net liabilities of DTV Disposal Group BFERHEERNzBEFRE (129,963)
Repayment of amounts due to the Group EEENAEERIA 950,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of & 2R ¢ RIBITEF (473)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEMSZHESRAFE 949,527
Amount received in 2017 —E—+FEWKEE 900,000
Amount received in 2016 ZE—RFEWRE 49,527
949,527
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e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)

Intelligent Information Business

On 18 January 2016, the Company entered into the
sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party in relation to the proposed disposal of
entire issued share capital of Made Connection
Limited (“Made Connection”), a subsidiary of
the Company, after restructuring as required (the
“Intelligent Information Business Disposal Group”)
at a cash consideration of RMB120,000,000 (the
“Intelligent Information Business Disposal”).
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
immediately upon to the completion of the sale and
purchase agreement, all intercompany balances
between the Intelligent Information Business Disposal
Group and the remaining group entities should be
irrevocably waived on a dollar-to-dollar basis. Details
are set out in the announcement dated 13 January
2016. Made Connection and its subsidiaries are
mainly engaged in Intelligent Information Business.
The Intelligent Information Business Disposal was
approved by the shareholders of the Company on
22 February 2016 and completed on 28 April 2017.
Accordingly, the Intelligent Information Business
Disposal Group was classified as a disposal group
held-for-sale as at 31 December 2016 and its results
was presented as discontinued operations.
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6.

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 6. BRIEEXE)
Intelligent Information Business (continued) (b) EHeeEEREBME)
(i) Results of Intelligent Information (i) Bl R EB A
Business
Period from
1 January 2017 Year ended
to 28 April 2017 31 December
(date of disposal) 2016
B-E—t& BHE
—H—BZ% —E—RF
—E—tfF +T=—A
B=+NH =t+—HA
(HERH) HE LFE
HK$’000 HK$000
BETT BT T
Revenue WS 47,227 239,282
Expenses B (70,932) (305,507)
Results from operating activities REFBMEL ¥R (23,705) (66,225)
Income tax FiS - =
Results from operating activities, KEREEE %5
net of tax HERHIE (23,705) (66,225)
Gain on sale of Intelligent HEBEESEBL
Information Business g 112,126 -
Profit/(loss) from Intelligent BHESEBZERN/
Information Business, net of tax (FB1E)  fkHE 88,421 (66,225)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 6. ERLEBE

(b) Intelligent Information Business (continued) (b) EEEEE®KE)
(i)  Cash flows from Intelligent Information (i) EBEEGEXBFEZEELM
Business =
Period from
1 January 2017 Year ended
to 28 April 2017 31 December
(date of disposal) 2016
BZE—tH§ BE
—A—REZE ZT—RF
—E—+F +=A
A=tNH =+—H
(LHEBH)HA FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETFT

Net cash generated from operating &2 BTS2

activities ReFHE 5,781 26,061
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEERERE/ (FTR)2Z

investing activities ReFaE 6,147 (9,787)
Net cash used in financing activites B & EEFTH 2 IR & /F58 (16,925) (29,761)
Net cash outflows BEmmFE (4,997) (18,437
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 6. BERLEB®E

Assets classified as held-for-sale

(b) Intelligent Information Business (continued) (b) EEEEFHE)
(iii)  Assets and liabilities classified as held- (i) R-F-—ANE+=-H=+-—
for-sale as at 31 December 2016 AR BEREFELHEZEER
=I5

2016

—E—RF

HK$'000

BT T

Property, plant and equipment 7 E NG 4,790

Other financial assets Hith e R & E 791

Intangible assets mpEE 2,335

Inventories FE 654

Trade receivables FEWE 2 BRIE 171,223

Prepayments, deposits and BRIE - ek

other receivables B pE Y kIR 187,290

Tax recoverable AU E I 4,891

Pledged bank deposits BEHEMRITFH 9,347

Cash and bank balances e RIRTHEF 5,754

DEAERFIELHEZEE 387,075

Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BRIE I E fth FE < 5K 1B (243,868)
Loans and borrowings BEREER (113,679)
Tax payables FESBTR (368)
Deposit received from purchaser relating to FHETEBER

disposal of Intelligent Information Business WENE HiRs (39,046)

Liabilities classified as held-for-sale

DEAEFIEHEZEAE (396,961)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 6. EBRLEER®E

(b) Intelligent Information Business (continued) (b) EHeeEEREBRME)
(iv)  Effect of disposal on the consolidated (iv) HEHXEFLGSHBENRL
financial position of the Group R
The following are the assets and liabilities in UMTAER-_ZT—+FMA
respect of Intelligent Information Business s VAN = = et A= B R
disposed on the date of completion on 28 EZEREEEBCEER
April 2017: =l
HK$’000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NG 4,507
Other financial assets HitvSmEE 800
Intangible assets mEE 2,283
Inventories FE 661
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 169,817
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - a2k
other receivables H fth E U FRIE 193,038
Tax recoverable A E IR 4,905
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITF 3,053
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHET 758
Trade and other payables FES B 2 BRIA R H b FE < 5RIH (261,424)
Loans and borrowings BERRER (98,058)
Tax payables FESBETR (373)

Net assets of Intelligent Information Business ez B ¥R 2 EEFRE 19,967

Consideration received in cash BUWIRESR(E 135,408
Cash and bank balances disposed of P& 2R e RIRITET (758)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEMSZRESRAFRE 134,650
Amount received in 2017 — T+ FE WA 95,156
Amount received in 2016 —E-REFEWHIE 39,494

134,650
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

REVENUE 7. U 2=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from AEBAFEEHELSLER 2 WS 2 DT
continuing operations is as follows: AR
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Continuing operations BFEREEKL
Sale of goods HEEm 12,556 -
Sale of commodities AREmEE 21,595,819 =
Rendering of services R RS 1,987,612 -
Construction income TRUIA 28,727 =
Operations of golf club LSS R E 174,350 117,817
Hotel and leisure service B JE K R AR TS 36,209 30,922
Rental income e WA 120,590 33,807
23,955,863 182,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

w3
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”), being the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired CWT SG, which is engaged in four business
segments, namely Logistic Services, Commodity Marketing,
Engineering Services and Financial Services. The CODM
reviewed the results of these four business segments
of CWT SG and they have been regarded as additional
reportable and operating segments of the Group during the
year.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following six reportable segments.

Logistics services

Include warehousing, transportation, freight forwarding and
cargo consolidation, supply chain management services.

Commodity marketing

Include physical trading and supply chain management of
base metal non-ferrous concentrates with predominant
focus on copper, lead, zinc and other minor metals and
energy products like naphtha and distillates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Engineering services

Include management and maintenance of facilities, vehicles
and equipment, supply and installation of engineering
products, property management, and design-and-build for
logistic properties.

Financial services

Include financial brokerage services, structured trade
services and assets management services.

Sports and leisure related facilities business

Include the operation of golf club and the provision of
sports and leisure facilities.

Property investment business

The leasing of office properties and golf courses.

Segment profit/(loss) before tax represents operating
revenue less expenses. Segment assets represents assets
directly managed by each segment, and primarily include
inventories, receivables, property, plant and equipment.
Segment liabilities represent liabilities directly managed by
each segment, and primarily include payables and loans
and borrowings.

The segment information reported below does not include
any amounts for those discontinued operations, which
is described in more detail in Note 5 and 6. Items not
managed by or derived from the operations of reportable
segments are classified as “unallocated” in the segment
reconciliations.
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e B R R B

£

A

F—HILEE

—A=

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZF—+F+
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZHHER®
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or AERSsHERE EEHEHAaERHM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material EXREEHEE
items
2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
Reportable segment profit or loss o 2F o EBER
Total profit/(loss) for reportable segments ] 25 H gl /(B18) 85 174,298 (14,635)
Unallocated amounts: RO
Gain on bargin purchase (Note 4) m{ﬁﬂﬁzﬁ%% s(HfaE4) 327,172 =
Gain on derecognition of the derivative  #X \LFER AR ESR 2 FTAET A
components of convertible bonds 2y z Wzs - 11,996
Gain on fair value change of the ABRESG 2 T T AN 2
derivative components of convertible DREEEH K E
bonds 14,179 61,191
Interest expenses FEFSZ (201,928) (54,392)
Unallocated income and gains RO A KU zS 86,807 73,221
Unallocated expenses RO (237,868) (98,329)
Share of profits less losses of DIEEENR A ERE
associates and joint ventures & AR S 18 17,026 =
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation Bx7F+ Al ZZ*A ~ﬁ%|/(r§‘ﬁa
(continuing operations) (HEKREER) 179,686 (20,948)
Reportable segment assets A2/ PEE
Continuing operations SE
Logistics services Y AR 10,704,372 -
Commodity marketing EmE S 10,011,919 -
Engineering services TR 408,925 -
Financial services /i\ﬁﬂ‘iﬂlﬁéz 5,507,193 =
Sports and leisure related NG R e i
facilities business 1,490,009 1,397,788
Property investment business WA RS 2,497,468 2,449,925
Reportable segment assets AE2mHPEE 30,619,886 3,847,713
Elimination of inter-segment assets 7 2P & EE ¥ 85 (477,320) -
30,142,566 3,847,713
Assets associated with disposal HBAoBEARELREZ
group and other non-current assets AR, 2
classified as held-for-sale (Note 5) BENEMIERB)EE (H1775)
- Interest in an associate, Westford — R —[E8 < A a]Westford
Trade Services Ltd. Trade Services Ltd. Z t#Ezs 15,617 -
— Intelligent Information Business — BREBER - 387,075
30,158,183 4,234,788
Unallocated assets: RAOBLEE :
Investments in associates and NN
joint ventures BEDEIRE 513,469 =
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EHEMEER 256,525 1,085,447
Pledged bank deposits EEARITF 36,015 27,890
Other financial assets Hin e &EE 155,000 155,000
Other unallocated assets HE RO EE 62,511 917,997
Consolidated total assets REEEE 31,181,703 6,421,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. Z#HER®
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or NEHoHEs EEHESEBERHM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material EXREEHEERE)
items (continued)
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Reportable segment liabilities 2R EBEE
Continuing operations FECEERS
Logistics services i AR 7% 4,848,270 =
Commodity marketing BnE5 8,737,364 -
Engineering services TR 191,232 -
Financial services %Eﬁﬂlﬁi 4,564,496 =
Sports and leisure related B RIKFR R 2
facilities business 527,886 536,224
Property investment business VSIS B SR 46,616 44,875
Reportable segment liabilities 2wy HBaE 18,915,864 581,099
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities DEE B EE (477,320) -
18,438,544 581,099
Liabilities associated with disposal group 24 #8 AR EHE 7 HE AR
classified as held-for-sale (Note 5) $EF'%§,\1T(/5/7‘/5£5)
— Intelligent Information Business —HEREE B ER - 396,961
18,438,544 978,060
Unallocated liabilities: AOBAME :
Obligations under finance leases RUE SR - 2,271
Bank borrowings RITER 1,371,487 1,285,584
Convertible bonds and related AR E % M AR R 3R
payables (including embedded (BREHBAIITETESD)
derivative components) 422,644 380,588
Senior secured notes (Note 30(c)) BIRFELEE (H7£30(c)) 4,325,222 =
Perpetual notes (Note 30(c)) KA (H13#30(c)) 359,182 =
Other unallocated liabilities Hi kDR aE 293,291 35,857
Consolidated total liabilities MAEMRARE 25,210,370 2,682,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —EF—+4F+_—H=+—HIFF/E
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. foEERE
Geographic information & &K
The Logistics services and Commodity marketing segments AR RENELE S DB EEER
are managed on a worldwide basis and the Group operates B AEEEENFTRAM - 5 - F
principally in Mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore, Malaysia b - BARPEEE - Hhga KiE - BUM -
and other parts of Asia Pacific Region, Europe, Africa, FEM - EEMEEEMNES - TERAEE

North America and South America. Engineering services are
primarily in Singapore, Financial services operates mainly
in Mainland China, Singapore and North America. Sports
and leisure related facilities business operates in Mainland
China. Property investment business operates in Europe
and North America.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
locations from which the Group derives its revenue.
Segment non-current assets (other than prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial assets and

EEMME - MEBRBEANEZERTER
o FINERACEMEE - 885 RIKEE
FARMEEBRPEAMESE - WERER
BRIREUM RIEEMNE S -

Riplm D MEEZRERE - 2 E‘H&E}E
AEERBREZAERETE - D8
MBEE(FBRNRIE - e REMERK
R eREENMEERBEERINKEE
PrERatE -

deferred tax assets) are based on the geographical location
of the assets.

Revenue from
external customers

Specified
non-current assets

REMPEF 2 Wz EEERBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
2t ZE-RE ZZE-tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT  BEFT  EBETFT KT
Mainland China R A, 15,685,634 148,739 1,402,793 1,309,558
Singapore g 2,995,585 - 7,842,351 -
Malaysia HRFE 700,837 - 79,912 -
Taiwan =) 505,385 - - -
Other parts of the Asia Pacific Region Efh 25 Kith [ 2,057,058 249,527 11,274
Europe BOM 1,193,735 31,548 2,360,038 1,340,668
North America JEEM 614,624 2,259 1,111,742 1,106,953
Africa IEM 183,570 - 78,383 -
South America AEM 19,435 = 3,454 -
23,955,863 182,546 13,128,200 3,768,453

Information about major customers ERETEEFZ2ER

No single customer contributed over 10% or more to the R-E—+ER T RF BEE—F

FAAEBZFHELEER TR BN
10%3k A | ©

total revenue of the Group from continuing operations for
both 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HWA
2017 2016
—B—tF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEF T BT T
Continuing operations BHEREEK
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERF 2 WA 26,264 6,806
Other interest income H S U A 20,342 17 Ak
Dividend income from other financial HEerEEREMA
assets 3,895 -
Others Hip 27,012 3,175
77,513 21,422
10. OTHER GAINS, NET 10. Hittlhz F5E
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BESEER
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 4) EEUIBWE (K1) 327,172 =
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HE¥ZE - BE LKEEZ
and equipment Wz, (E58) 101,977 (717)
Net foreign exchange gain PE H W R 48,718 63,241
Fair value gain on derivative component AJ#& &5 2 74 T E 2D 2
of convertible bonds (Note 32) DR EERE(HF32) 14,179 61,191
Gain from derecognition of BRIERER AR ESF 2
derivative component of PTETEI N2
convertible bonds (Note 32) Wezs (H1a£32) - 11,996
Fair value (loss)/gain on the investment &N A EE (EE),/
properties (Note 19) Wazs (H1a£19) (107,558) 6,610
Others Hith (661) (170)
383,827 142,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

FINANCE COSTS 11. RMERAKR
2017 2016
—E—+F S ANCS
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BHEREEK
Bank charges RITFEE 29,461 -
Interest expense on: FERX :
- Bank borrowings and other facilities ~ —iR1TE R HiFEE 105,815 45,388
— Senior secured notes —FERELERR 110,198 -
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 89,666 54,179
— Medium term notes —HHRE 24,249 -
— Hire purchase and finance lease —HEKREREAE
liabilities 501 69
- Others —HAftb 693 -
Other finance cost HAb g & KA 23,076 13,435
383,659 113,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 12, BEKEER 2BRBANER
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (E518)
Profit/(loss) before taxation for the year from continuing FANERBEEEBMERIMANET, (&
operations has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): Bk (GtA)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Staff costs, including Directors’ BTN (BIEEEHNE)
remuneration
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — e TERHMBER 577,052 87,520
— Retirement benefit scheme — R RAEFET B K
contributions 29,710 4,516
606,762 92,036
Depreciation of property, M - BER
plant and equipment (Note 17) BABIE (HE17) 172,824 17,440
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 18) =3t {# FI#E 8k 8 (4122 18) 43,101 43,466
Amortisation of intangible assets B A
(Note 20) (#1z20) 16,398 -
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B 5 8,356 1,744
Impairment loss/ FUATSEEDL ZRERSE
(reversal of impairment) on: CRE#E)
— trade receivables — R 5 AR 1,294 -
— other non-current assets —HMIEmEEE (1,956) -
Cost of inventories sold BHEETFERA 20,800,430 29,309
Gross rental income from TEYFE 2 S BIKA
investment properties (120,590) (83,807)

Direct operating expenses arising from  EAHESUWA 2
investment properties that generated KEYEMELZ
rental income BEEEERX 12,575 156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

INCOME TAX 13. FiE#H
2017 2016
—E—+E —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Continuing operations HEREEK
Current tax — outside Hong Kong BNERFHTE — B AEIF AN
Provision for the year FRE A 42,118 -
Over-provision in respect of BEFE
prior years TRERR A (5,333) -
36,785 —
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal TR E RO E R E R
of temporary differences 2,811 (2,0083)
Withholding tax TEH07 2,300 -
Total income tax expense/(credit) Frisgifs (k)85 41,896 (2,003)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

13. INCOME TAX (continued) 13. FIE®i (&)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as ARAEERMEEEHTERNEBEL
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong FEERFSSHF o WU Bk A S RS B
for both years. Taxation outside Hong Kong is calculated o BBBEINZ RERIBIZBE AR
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates ZIRITMRAE 2 FE AT ERT B
of taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. =i
Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) 75’\% BREEKRBERABRTEZH
and accounting profit/(loss) from continuing BHRX(ER)ESHER(EE)
operations at applicable tax rates B Z ¥R
2017 2016
—EB—+fF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AT A, (&) 179,686 (20,948)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before BRATRA ()Y 4%
taxation, calculated at the rates RIBREMAAER 2
applicable to profits/(losses) in the wmA (R BRI ETE
jurisdictions concerned 50,904 5
Tax effect of non-deductible expense AAHFRAEY 2
MGTE 105,468 16,985
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARTBAZ
TS & (97,049) (37,928)
Tax incentives ISR (7,336) -
Tax effect of utilisation of AL AIARERZ
previously not recognised tax MIBEEEREE
losses and allowances B2 (8,413) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses and REER 2 REABEEE R
allowance not recognised B BB 2 371 16,773
Over-provision in respect prior years BEFEHBRERE (5,333) =
Withholding tax TEHEL 2,300 -
Others HAh 984 2,162
41,896 (2,0083)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

14. EERESTHAEME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EBRESTHRAE#ME
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the HE_E—XRNEER_E—t+F+—
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 are set A=+—HIFE EEE&ESTT
out below: BABZB&&HIT
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
FeR RIAEF
e 2R HE BHe
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BYFT BEFT BYEFT
2017 —B-tF
Executive Directors TES
Guo Ke (Note i) ] (i) - 63 - 63
Zhu Chuniie (Note ii TENM ) - 32 - 32
Zhao Quan e - 3,390 63 3,453
Xu Haohao RRE - 2,515 126 2,641
Wang Shuang (Note iv) Wang Shuang(#/ztiv) - 2,160 - 2,160
Zhang Ke (Note vi) w (i) - 401 1 412
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 24 220 - - 220
Mung Bun Man, Alan (Note v) SmX(fiztv) 97 - - 97
Wang Hao (Note iii) FiE(h i) 120 - - 120
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Leung Kai Cheung A= 300 - - 300
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin A 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey s 300 - - 300
1,337 8,561 200 10,098

CWT International Limited Annual Report 2017

il



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a)
emoluments (continued)

14, EERBEETHAEME &)

EERESTBRAEME(E)

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions  emoluments
ek RINER
ikn Hib a7 REESA “Ee
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT BETT BETT
2016 ZE-RE
Executive Directors HTES
Zhao Quan i - 3,080 - 3,080
Xu Haohao HREZ - 1,951 126 2,077
Wang Shuang (Note iv) Wang Shuang(#7ztiv) - 181 - 181
Zhang Ke (Note vi) &5 (Hiatvi) - 2,029 53 2,082
Li Tongshuang (Note vii) ZRE(Hatvi) = 2,402 116 2,518
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2E%E 220 - - 220
Wang Hao (Note iii) TE(haii) 109 242 13 364
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Leung Kai Cheung RIS 300 - - 300
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin M 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey PN eSS 300 - - 300
1,229 9,885 308 11,422
Note: Kzt :

BAXER-_ZT—+EF+_H
TERERERNITES -

i Mr. Guo Ke was appointed as an Executive i
Director on 13 December 2017.

IERRER T —LHF+=
AT=REZER/RNTES
YR -FE-NFOHA+=H#
£

ii. Mr. Zhu Chunjie was appointed as an Executive ii.
Director on 13 December 2017 and resigned on 13
April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments (continued)

Note: (continued)

iii. Mr. Wang Hao was re-designated as a Non-executive
Director on 4 February 2016 and resigned on 13

December 2017.

iv. Mr. Wang Shuang was appointed as an Executive
Director on 24 November 2016 and resigned on 13
December 2017.

V. Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan was appointed as a

Non-executive Director on 5 September 2017.

Vi. Mr. Zhang Ke was appointed as an Executive
Director on 22 April 2016 and resigned on 6
February 2017.

vii. Mr. Li Tongshuang resigned as an Executive
Director on 24 November 2016.

The emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by Mr. Wang Hao as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of
the Company or its subsidiaries.

The Independent Non-executive Directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

14. EERESTHAEME &)

(a)

EERESTBRAEME(E)

Hret (&)

ii. EEREEER=TE—A"F_AN
BETAIENTES  HER
—E—+E+=A+=HFHT -

iv. Wang Shuang st £ =& — 7~
F+—AZTHBEZER
WITEE HERZT—+F
+=ZA+=B8F -

V. EMXGEERZT—tFNA
FABERERIERITES -

Vi. RRAEER T —"FHNA
:+faﬁégﬁmﬁ%$’
HER-_Z—+tF-A A
£ o

vi. FTRELEER=ZZT—AR"F+—
AZ+mHABEHTES -

EXBEIMEBRIEREREE
HITESRTBARBRERSEZ
M -

EXARZAITESHE T RER
EEANRARAKREER 2 RH
B -

EXRZFRTESHE TR AR
BREREARATXEMBRARNES
ZIRIGHEE -

EXAIRZBIFATEEMEE
RERFEEEARAESTZREA
e -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nvj'\m/jﬁ%#&%%ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERESTHAEME (&
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five individuals with highest emoluments (b) EBERESEHFMAL
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in RASEREZEESHFMALH - £
the Group, three (2016: four) were Directors of the B=Z(ZZ—RF : OZ)BARQ
Company whose emoluments are set out above. AES BE2MeHN EX - H
The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: one) BWEZ(ZE—RF: —Z)ALZ
individuals are as follows: BT
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 22,295 1,162
Contributions to retirement benefit R FIET &I (2%
schemes 51 18
22,346 1,180
The emoluments were within the following bands: HEZHNSEBELLT
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEZH EEZE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 TE

7B #1,500,0007T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 B #£3,500,001 T E

75 #4,000,0007T 1 _
HK$18,500,001 to HK$19,000,000 #&#18,500,001 7.2

75 1#19,000,0007T 1 _
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the REBWERESER AL TS 5
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as ATZAME - (ERBEBEESE
compensation for loss of office or as an inducement BIIAZS AR S Bl1& 2 22/ -

to join or upon joining the Group.
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of reporting period.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the
year attributable to owners of the Company, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
11,399,996,101 (2016: 11,399,996,101) in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the year ended
31 December 2017 in respect of a dilution as the
impact of 2016 Convertible Bonds (as defined in
Note 32) outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic earnings per share amounts presented.

15. RE
ARNBIRBE—ZE—+tER T —RF
T+ A=+ BUEFEVEREBRAR
TSRS MEMKE  BAREEHK
RENP B A ERIAR B, o

16. BRER (FE)

(a) EBREXEF, (FE)
BRERAF,(EHE) S BERIEA
NEEBAEEEE AN, (EBE)
MERNE 3T B2 NEFHE
11,399,996,101 f% ( =& — /X F
11,399,996,101 &) st & -

(b) BREBERF (FHE)
BN EARITEZ ZF—RFA#RKR
BEHF(EHERMEI2)H 25| 2 BK
EXBANSHARBEYE 8
ARBE_F—EF+-_A=1—
BIEFEREEH2 2 BRER
BNESBEELFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (continued)

The calculation of the diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is based on the loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
adjusted to reflect the interests and fair value
changes of 2016 Convertible Bonds, calculated as

16. BRERN (FHE) @)

(b)

SRBERF (BB (5
BHE_ZE-—R"FT+-HA=+—H1t
FEZERBEBRREARAE
BABRGEFEBRAE X {ELH
BUARB-ZZT—ARFABREBRESZ
MERAABERS  FEWT

follows:
(i) Loss attributable to owners of the (i) KAGHEEAELERE (&
Company (diluted) #5)
2016
—ERF
HK$'000
BT T
Loss attributable to owners of the Company, RAaHEA AEMGER(BR
used in the basic loss per share calculation: HEGIREANEE)
From continuing operations B EET (8,322)
From discontinued operations BRIEER (13,580)
(21,902)

Interest expenses on 2016
Convertible Bonds (Note 32)

Fair value gain on the derivative
components of 2016
Convertible Bonds (Note 32)

Loss attributable to owners of the Company
(diluted)

Attributable to:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)  16. B8RZEF/(FiE) @)

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (continued) (b) EREBERR (FEE)H)
(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary (i)  BERINEFIGE(EHE)

shares (diluted)

2016
e ANCS
‘000
FAE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares /\\\—I—:)EJ +—HZ
at 31 December 3B AR NAE T 19 2K 11,399,996
Effect of conversion of 2016 Convertible Bonds ##3% — & — <4
AMRES 2T E 459,979
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+—A=+—H2Z
(diluted) at 31 December TmAR ke T B (A HEE ) 11,859,975
The computation of diluted loss per share AEEBE_Z - FT=A
for the year ended 31 December 2016 does T+ —HUEFEZzSRES
not assume exercise of (1) conversion of the 5 18 B I R AR AT 1 (1 )@Tﬁ‘
convertible bonds issued in 2009 and repaid RZZETNFEHITERZ
in 2016 because the assumed exercise of —/\E%ﬁﬁz—ﬁﬁﬂxﬁ% :
conversion thereof would result in decrease REAABRITEERZER
in loss per share from continuing operations BREFSERIFELEE
and (2) share options because the exercise %2 G EE T R (2) B
price of those options was higher than the - REGSZEBIREZIT
average market price for shares. EERNIROFEHTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. V¥ - BERRE

Furniture, Plant,
fittings, machinery,
Land, Motor computers, Assets Hotel and equipment,
buildings and vehicles and office under  buildings for moulds and
improvements and trailers equipment  construction  golf business tools Total
B %8 BEAR  HREHE
Ay BlR BB R BR
FUES3 AR EEEE REF Aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT Vi S BETTT BETT ERFT
COST A&
At1 January 2016 R-E-~E-A-H 52,962 14,954 12,151 - 213,954 19,879 373,900
Transfer to disposal group ERTheqs) (8,745) (10,922) (4,261) - - - (18,928)
Additions AE 2,886 1,435 197 - - 2,606 7,144
Disposals i - - - - - (7414 7414
Disposal of subsiolaries HEHBARA (36,560) (658) (826) = = = (38,044)
Exchange realignment A% (1,706) (78) #) - (17,924) (1,090) (20,839
At 31 December 2016 and R-E-—~ETZA=t-BR
1 January 2017 “3-tF-A-H 13,837 473 7,220 - 256,030 14,001 295,819
Transfer to disposal group g hend (40) - - - - (81) (121)
Additions HE 34,836 4,883 3,900 86,546 - 7,322 137,487
Reclassfication ELipr 218,929 17 - (278,975) - 2 -
Transfer to intangiole assets EREAYAE - - () (110) - - (116)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 4 WEEBAR(HriF4) 7,879,031 73814 39,991 242,130 - 106,685 8,341,651
Disposals i (78,105) (8,864) (9,952) - - (19,287) (116,208)
Bxchange realignment EREE 67,881 1,288 605 1,683 19,485 3,553 94,495
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1-H 8,196,369 75,869 41,758 51,274 215,515 112,022 8,753,007
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Ziti7&
At1 January 2016 RZF-7"E5-A-H 4508 9,914 9,122 - 13,698 4,792 42,034
Transfer to disposal group EETHeEqs) (2,060) (8,400) (2572 - - - (13,032)
Charge for the year Emii 3,079 835 233 - 8,028 3,465 17440
Disposals e - - - - - (6,673) (6,679)
Disposal of subsiolaries LERBAR (1,613) (625) (762) - - - (3,000
Exchange realignment B A% (60) (46) 37) - (1,290) (172) (1,608)
At 31 December 2016 and REE-RET-R=+-BR
1 January 2017 “Z-+%-f-A 4,754 1,678 5,984 - 21,336 1,412 35,164
Transfer to disposal group EETLEms| (40) - - - - - (40)
Transfer to intangible assets ERCEYEAE - - - - - 6) 6)
Charge for the year FRitR 138,053 5,529 5,370 - 8,523 15,349 172,824
Disposals e (21,280) (6,132) (9,820) - - (18,047) (55,279)
Exchange realignment EHBE 6,253 613 407 - 1,942 2,002 1,217
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+5+-f=1+-H 121,740 1,688 1,941 - 31,801 0 163,880
NET BOOK VALUE BEFE
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+ZA=1-A 8,068,629 74,181 39,817 51,274 243,714 111,512 8,589,127
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A"E+ZA=1-H 9,083 3,083 1,236 - 234,604 12,589 260,655
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment of the Group held under
finance lease arrangements amounted to HK$18,469,000
(2016: HK$2,255,000).

During the year, the Group capitalised interest expenses
of HK$5,646,000 (2016: Nil) in assets-under-construction,
with a capitalisation rate of 3.16% (2016: Nil).

LAND USE RIGHTS

17. ¥ - BERRKREB®)

RIBERR AEERBERERELTH
REZDE BEERXBZEEER
7 #18,469,000 L( =T — R F : ¥
2,255,0007T) °

FA - AEREAHE RSB 5,646,0007T
—E-RFBBENMENEREBE B
AL ERBA6%(ZF—RF : &) °

18. T iufEFARE

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—RF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Leasehold land in the PRC R FE 1 1,140,105 1,101,025
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREMONE

Current assets mENEE 44,710 41,548

Non-current assets IEREEE 1,095,395 1,059,477

1,140,105 1,101,025

Amortisation of land use rights of HK$43,101,000 (2016:
HK$43,466,000) is recognised in the Group’s profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BE-Z—+&+-A=+—RHILFE -
=t {5 R 4 4 §5 75 543,101,000 70 (=
— N4 B ¥43,466,0007T ) R A £ B 1B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-H=+—HI F&E

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REYE

HK$°000

BEFT
FAIR VALUE AnEE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—XRE—H—H =
Additions INE 2,537,809
Exchange realignment D 5, 5 B (96,798)
Fair value adjustment RABERAE 6,610
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZEBE—XRF+-—_A=+—"H8BxK

1 January 2017 —E—+F—-H—H 2,447,621

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 4) U BB B B A Bl (K7at4) 2,612
Additions VIN=E 7,562
Exchange realignment PE 5 A E 135,965
Fair value adjustment AREERARE (107,558)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tF+-_A=+—H 2,486,202
All of the Group’s properties held under operating leases AEB AR HIEERIEERRMIE
with the purposes to earn rentals or for capital appreciation BREHERELBYEERAREE
are measured using the fair value model and are classified RAFE - WHERARIABIREYE
and accounted for as investment properties. In estimating REFTWEZ AR BER - ZEWMERE
the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of BEAxRRRERE -

the properties is their current use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used
in the determination of fair values for material investment
properties and key unobservable inputs used in the
valuation models.

BEWE @)
ERERAEE SR ABEET
DARBEEMHEZER
TEBERETEAREYMER L BEFR
B EmERGEEERFRAY T BR
AR A B -

Range of
Fair value Valuation significant Relationship of
Fairvalue hierarchy techniques Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
MEE AMEEER  BERE FUBEEAEE EERAREEE HBHAAEAZEER
HK$'000
As at 31 December 2017
R-B-tE+ZA=1-A
Investment properties 1,394,290  Level3 Income approach () Capitalisation rate 4.5%:-5.1% The higher the capitalisation
located in the UK ] WA f) 4.5%%5.1% rate, the lower the fair value.
IR EE 2 RENF Bt EdS - RAEEEE -
(i) Monthly market rent per  GBP35-GBP36 The higher the market rent,
per square foot the higher the fair value.
(il BABTHRTSEE BYHRPEEE THELER ArBEES-
%S
Investment properties located 1,089317  Level3 Income approach () Capitalisation rate 5.3% The higher the capitalisation
in the USA E=RH WA () 5.3% rate, the lower the fair value.
INEEZ RENF Bt RS - R EEEE -
(i) Monthly market rent US$308.5 The higher the market rent,
308 5%TT the higher the fair value.
(i BABEEMSES maRels  ABEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR WK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (continued)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used
in the determination of fair values for material investment
properties and key unobservable inputs used in the
valuation models. (continued)

19. REWHE (%)
EREAEE RO B REABEET
ARBESEZER(E)
TEBELRETEAREMER A BEFF
Bl ERGEEERFFRAY TBR
A AR A RIS o (8)

Range of
Fair value Valuation significant Relationship of
Fairvalue hierarchy techniques Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
MEE AMEEER fERE FUBEEAEE BERAUEHE UEEAAEEZEZBR
HK$:000
BETT
As at 31 December 2016
R=Z-7"E+=ZA=1-H
Investment properties located 1,340,668  Level3 Income approach () Capitalisation rate 4.75%-5% The higher the capitalisation rate,
in the UK F=RB WAE ) EMrE 4.75%%5% the lower the fair value.
(IR EE 2 RENF BNt iR - AR EHEEE -
i) Monthly market rent per  GPB15-GPB38.5  The higher the market rent,
square feet per square foot the higher the fair value.
(il BABTHRTEEE BYHRIEEE THESER ArBEMS-
38554
Investment properties located 1,106,953  Level3 Income approach () Capitalisation rate 5% The higher the capitalisation rate,
in the USA F=HB WAE ) EMrE 5% the lower the fair value.
fIRxE RENF BNt R - AR EHEEE -

U
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Monthly market rent US$313.5 The higher the market rent,
per acre HISET the higher the fair value.
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, management of the
Group works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs. Where there is
a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to management of the
Group.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The fair values of the investment properties located in
the USA at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016
were arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on
that date by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL”), independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. JLL has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The fair values
were determined based on income approach where the
market rents are assessed by considering the income
derived from existing tenancies of the properties and
discounted at the capitalisation rate.

The fair value of the investment property located in the
UK as at 31 December 2017 was arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited (“Vigers”) (2016: JLL), independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. Vigers
(2016: JLL) has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The fair values were determined based
on income approach where the market rents are assessed
by considering the income derived from existing tenancies
of the properties and discounted at the capitalisation rate.

19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ [=] ,j%#&%ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2 — =&

—tF+ A=+ —HILFE

At 31 December 2016

RZB—AF+A=1-A

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BEE
Development
costs for
intelligent
information
system and
Project Customer LME computer Business
contracts contracts licence software relationships Brand Total
BREERAR
LME ZREHRAR
BEEH EFEH BEIFS o £BBE ol At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS OOO HK$'000 HK$’OOO HKS 000 HK$'000
COST A
At 1 January 2016 RZE-75—F—H 1,473 - - 14,437 - - 15,910
Transfer to dlsposal group BRENEMAR (1479) - - (14,437) = - (15,910)
At 31 December 2016 and RE—"E+-F=t-HR
1 January 2017 —E—+%-f-H - - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 4) ~ WEMB AR (#st4) - 24,673 36,951 9,490 108,794 251,366 431,274
Additions RE - - - 2,710 - - 2,710
Disposal e - - - (1,676) - - (1,676)
Transfer from property, EEERES
plant and equipment HEREE - - - 10 - - 110
Exchange realignment ER AR - 200 300 (132) 883 2,190 3,441
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+-A=1-R - 2,873 37,251 10,502 109,677 253,556 435,859
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ~ Rif#s
At 1 January 2016 R=F-~%—A-H 1,473 - - 14,266 - - 15,739
Transfer to disposal group BREHERT| (1,473) = = (14,266) = = (15,739)
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-—~E+-A=t-Hk
1 January 2017 —Z—+%-f-H - - - - - - -
Charge for the year EREHR - 1,640 653 2,138 3,615 8,352 16,398
Disposals HE - - - (1,676) - - (1,676)
Exchange realignment B A% - 18 7 5 43 95 168
At 31 December 2017 RZEF-tE+ZA=1-H - 1,658 660 467 3,658 8,447 14,890
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December 2017 RZEF—tE+ZA=1-A - 23,215 36,591 10,035 106,019 245,109 420,969




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBEQTZ2ER
2017 2016
—E—tF k- SN S
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets EILEEFE 200,037 -
Quasi-equity loan to an associate BT —HEEE AR 2 BUREAER 2,098 =
202,135 -
Quasi-equity loan to an associate is interest-free and forms BT BEBERARCEURTER AR
part of the Group’s net investment in that associate. The B WHEKASERBE AR 2IREFH
loan is unsecured and settlement is neither planned nor Z—EBD o R E R AEMIR - WHESTEITN
likely to occur in the foreseeable future. DRAIBEIAR] BARRAES ©
The Group’s associates are acquired through business REE BB NI EBERE (T
combination (see Note 4). All associates are unlisted and HEE - FAEME AR A LT - BS
each of them does not have a significant financial impacts BHAREE 2 FE R BIRRE EE R
on the Group’s results and financial position. Aggregate G2 o JERRIEREE QR 2 BE M
financial information of associates that are not individually BRI ¢

material is as follows:

2017 2016
- ZERE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Carrying amount in the consolidated RErE BRIk 2 BREE
financial statements 202,135 -
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share A& E fE(FZ &R N T2
of those associates’ #iE
Profit from continuing operations FEREEBRN 13,006 -
Other comprehensive income H 2 milas 1,141 =
Total comprehensive income AN B 14,147 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR WK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

22. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group’s joint ventures are acquired through business
combination (see Note 4). All joint ventures are unlisted and
each of them does not have a significant financial impact
on the Group’s results and financial position. Aggregate
financial information of joint ventures that are not individually
material is as follows:

22.

REEPLE LR
AEEZAEDEIBBEBEH(RNE
4)HE - FTBEAEEN AL BF
BYHAEB EERVBARDHESKH
SHE - FEBEREERRIZESHE
BRI

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Carrying amount in the consolidated RERE IRk 2 BREE
financial statements 311,334 -
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBEMZESLLEZ
share of those joint ventures’ ®E
Profit from continuing operations BB T T 4,020 -
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 E U ES (9,937) -
Total comprehensive income FHEN =B (5,917) -
23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 23. Hitt&mEE
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 BT JEBETT
Non-current IETRED
Available-for-sale equity securities: A ff 5 &R A E %
— Unlisted —JEETH 155,234 155,000
- Listed -t 218,175 -
373,409 155,000
Current ED
Held-to-maturity treasury securities: FZEZ|Hi 7 HE % -
— Listed =i (@) 560,680 -
Equity securities designated at fair ~ ¥5EAIRA R BEZEA
value through profit or loss B 2 BARE S
- Listed — kM 488 -
561,168 -
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23.

24.

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

HiemEE®)

(@)  The treasury securities are quoted with an interest (@) EHFUN TF1.07%Z@EE X2
rate ranging from 1.07% coupon to 1.28% that 1.28% 2 F|EBE - WHR—E= R E
mature between one to five months. The treasury AREE - BEAFFERMAFEZER
securities are purchased using customer segregated NHESEE  WRZNTFHmMR
funds held and pledged as margin deposit with the ST ZXADERLSRIS -
Chicago Mercantile Exchange (“CME”).

INVENTORIES 7E

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T JBEMT T
Commodity inventories at fair value BEARBEAECHRFEE 1,755,197 -
Commodity inventories at lower of LR & ] B IS EREE
cost and net realisable value FTEZEREE 2,559,610 =
Raw materials EE 10,636 6,474
Finished goods BURK G 24,778 442
4,350,221 6,916
Less: Allowance for inventory B REFTERE
obsolescence (1,157) -
4,349,064 6,916
TRADE RECEIVABLES EWE S iR1E
2017 2016
—E—E —E—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
B F T BT T

Trade debtors and bills receivable BUWE S EEARR M EREE 4,633,470 29,515

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o RERBAE(HE25(0)

(Note 25(b)) (28,545) (2,475)
4,604,925 27,040

Trade debtors and bills receivable are expected to be
recovered within one year or recognised as expenses.

EHIRWE ZEBART R EREEIG A
—FAWKE - FRIKER SR

CWT International Limited Annual Report 2017



208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

w3

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —+ 4%+

25.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trade receivables at 31 December 2017
included accrued income of HK$932,350,000 (2016:
Nil) which represents primarily sales made but yet to
be invoiced and price adjustments to the provisional
sales/purchase price of certain commodities. During the
contractually agreed quotation period, the sales/purchase
prices are not fixed and fluctuate based on the changes
in the market prices of the underlying metals. The Group
marks to market its provisional sales and purchases based
on the forward price for the estimated month of settlement.
In the consolidated statement of financial position, positive
marked to market adjustments are included within accrued
income whereas negative adjustments are included within
accrued expenses. Upon completion of the quotation
period, the prices are fixed based upon the spot price and
metal contents and quantities upon receipt of the final assay
and weight certificates.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables amounted
to HK$10,970,000 (2016: Nil), HK$3,589,000 (2016: Nil)
and HK$783,000 (2016: Nil), are due from the Group’s
associates, joint ventures and other related parties,
respectively.

(@) Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable based
on the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful

25.

EWE 5 RE#)

AEBMR-_TE—+&E+-A=+—8
H)FE UK B 5 B8R IE B 3E M A Mk A B
932,350,000 c( ZF—NF : &) » T &
e RN RRARERYE TR
BN E B EERETRARER - HA
BT 7 HEDE - e BEERLT
B vEEEESBHSERESTK
g ANEEBEETEE A D ERBE
15 I EEER e REEETHISEE -
RSB BRRES - EHMSEERE
FIAFES LA - A BT A REE
¥ o RIBBEMREAE - BEAKIISR
AERHEZEE  REBEER 8
SERBETUER -

RZEBE—+F+-_A=+—"8 ~K&EBE
W AT AECEREMEER ZE
WE S ERTE S B A7 10,970,000 7T (=
T—NF &) B¥3,589,000T(=F
—NEF ) R T783,000T (= — K
F )

(a) BRERTDHT
R EHIR - R EH B REN
BREBRGRITEZCRKESE
EARTK M EWEE 2 BREk DT a0

debts, is as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
0-90 days 0-90H 4,279,536 20,171
91-180 days 91-180H 242,857 543
181-365 days 181-365H 36,587 6,326
1-2 years 1-24F 45,572 =
Over 2 years 2F P+ 373 -
4,604,925 27,040

Further details of the Group’s credit policy are set
out in Note 44(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills
receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors

and bills receivables directly.

e SRR M EE

Pt = A=+ —AIFEE

25. FEWEZRHE®)

(b)

W E Z &R ARAKREVRE
Zm{E

EWEZEBARRREBRERZ
R (5L 15 18 15 58 5 P 1 4 R AT B
BRIFAKEEMUEZERIEE
O BB TRESBRERR

FEUE 5 B AR M M R B
8 °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARERE(BREEERARE
during the year, including both specific and collective BEm) 2 ' T -
loss components, is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,475 34,857
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1)=pNS) 24,968
Impairment loss recognised HERAEBE 1,294 21,515
Transfer to disposal group T HEA R - (50,829)
Exchange realignment bE 5 A= (192) (3,068)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 28,545 2,475

At 31 December 2017, trade debtors and bills
receivable of HK$28,545,000 (2016: HK$2,475,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that the receivables may not be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$28,545,000 (2016: HK$2,475,000) were
recognised.

R-Z—+F+-_A=+—8 &
WESEBARRREREES
¥ 28,545,000 (= —7"F : B
# 2,475,000 7T ) E 1% @ B 15 N E
TEARE o {8 B R (B e Wk I8 B
R BRSE s EFER - BEET
A RE B AR B 2 S R FRIA -
Hilt - ERRBEERERBEE
28,545,000 (= — /N F : BK
2,475,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. T&{‘EE - 4 & H i W

RECEIVABLES g
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
KaE BT BT T
Assets held or segregated in B BRPRE
separate accounts DRt BE (@) 4,660,480 -
Deposits and prepayments e MR FRIE (b) 337,927 -
Other receivables H 1th fE W FRIE 346,504 11,188
Gross amount due from customers Ft& 4 L2 & B 2118
for contract work ek 27 432 -
Amounts due from fellow G VNGIESE]
subsidiaries (c) 5,357 10,565
Amounts due from other related [ U E ff B8 5 78
parties (d) 4,179 _
Amount due from DTV RS T ER L EHER
Disposal Group 6(a) - 900,000
Loans to associates El=/NCI = (€) 5,628 -
Loans to non-controlling interests (M 3EIZE AR s B 3K (f) 20,830 -
5,381,337 921,753
Less: non-current portion W FERENER D (77,745) (2,500)
5,303,592 919,253
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

The balance at 31 December 2017 included
customers’ funds of HK$4,014,955,000 held by
the Group in respect of the Group’s commodity
marketing and financial services, which are required
to be held in segregated accounts by laws and
regulations of the Securities and Futures Act (“SFA”)
governed by Monetary Authority of Singapore
(“MAS”), the Commodities Trading Act (“CTA”)
governed by International Enterprise Singapore
(“IE Singapore”) and Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (“CFTC”) in the United States of
America. These customers’ funds are included in
“trade and other payables” (see note 29).

Deposits and prepayments at 31 December 2017
included guarantee deposits of HK$30,333,000
placed at CME.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Amounts due from other related parties represented
non-trade amounts due from associates, joint
ventures and non-controlling interests which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Loans to associates are unsecured and bear interest
of 1.2% to 4.0% per annum. The Group has given
undertakings to the associates not to recall the loans
within the next 12 months.

Loans to non-controlling interests at 31 December
2017 included current and non-current portion:

- non-current portion amounted to HK$13,057,000
which is unsecured and repayable in 2019.
All of the balance is interest-free except for a
balance amounted to HK$1,905,000 which is
interest-bearing at 9% per annum.

- current portion amounted to HK$7,773,000
which is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

26. FAfFTIE >

e PR M

— H /
F+—H —+

Be R H MR

(&)

(@

R-BE—+FE+-_A=+—H &
HEERAEERAEE  ERE
IRCRBRBEFECELES A
4,014,955,0007C * ZEE & BIE
FmEenEER(HmEESHE
BRAMEEZEZESFRBEL(#
S REEZE]) - FnERERE A EE
ER(THMEERLCERRR ) A
EEZEmRIE(BRREE])
MEFMBREREERPERIEZE
2 ERPERZZEER]|) 2AE
MAER  BEBABIYKRFPHAE - %
EXFESEAIENESZERER
E IR (REEE29) »

RZE—+E+=-A=+—H %
ERENFEBREFERSZRMZ
IR 4 78 #30,333,0007T °

FEUL B P B A B RIR AR
RERIRENREE -

JE U EL (b B3 7 SR IR 15 R M B = 2
A AELRNMIFERERZIEE
FHE - BEER  REREEX

fEE -

Bl

MBS DR BERAERKIF - WIKF
FEA2%ZE4.0%+1E - NEBE
ML R RIAE  T2RAREK12(E
AAREEGE -

R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—0 A
IR B EIERE RIER
B ELD :

- JEm B =P 10 7 5 13,057,000
TTEBERER -_T—LF
BE - TEEBRHYAERS
MEIR FE R R Q% T B 2 #h &4
781,905,000 7T KRN

= T B) 5010 7 ¥ 7,773,000 7T
BERE - R ERIZENRE
;\%O
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27. CONTRACT WORK-IN-PROGRESS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

27. EEEHNIRE

2017 2016
—B—tF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Costs incurred and recognised profits £ & 4 5k 748 [z B #2254 A 333,160 =
Allowance for foreseeable losses Al 7B RSB E 2,034 =
Progress billings HEER (335,106) -
88 -
Represented by: =
Gross amount due from customers BN R EFIELRE (H7226)
(Note 26) 432 =
Gross amount due to customers JER B PR IEBEE (K £29(b))
(Note 29(b)) (344) _
88 -

All of the gross amount due from/(to) customers for
contract work at 31 December 2017 are expected to be
recovered/(settled) within one year.

In respect of construction contracts in progress at the
end of the reporting period, the amount of retentions
receivable from customers, recorded in “Other receivables”
within “Prepayment, deposits and other receivables” at 31
December 2017, is HK$8,650,000 (2016: Nil). All of the
retentions receivable are expected to be recovered within
one year or the Group’s normal operating cycle.

The Group assesses allowance for foreseeable losses
by taking into account the contract revenue, estimated
total costs to completion, project duration and overruns.
It is possible that management estimate is not indicative
of future losses that may be incurred. Any increase or
decrease would affect profit or loss in the future years.

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£

PIER_—FT—tF+_A=1+—BmE4
TREWK (BR)EFPRIBLERG /RN
—FRE(EE)

MBEHRZERIRANME » B =
TE—tF+-_A=1+—8 " EUEFRF
BeRIEMNKIE  Re kHAmERRK
BIASAIHMmEWIE]  SEREK
8,650,000t (=ZF—R"F : &) - FTBEE
WRBCEAKR —FAXATEBZIEE
EIERBAAKE -

AEBEBE RS  BFIEZIRA
HEB MR RIERF AR EREME - B
BREZMEFTARLRBRARRAIE LR ZE
18 o AR D B ERKEFR
FMHEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:nmm/jﬁ%#&%‘%ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 28. BERBEEEEBURAEM

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEREER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise (a BELRBELEEEB AR
2017 2016
S =
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
Hat BT T BT
Cash and bank deposits, Be RIBTER

representing cash and cash BREaMBARRER
equivalents in the consolidated 4 RIE4&%EIER
statement of financial position 2,137,858 1,085,447

Cash and cash equivalents STABELEZ

included in disposal HEARZEE X

groups held for sale ReEEER B(b)(iii) - 5,754
Less: Vo
Bank overdrafts RITBEL 30 (7,884) -

Cash and cash equivalents RIFERERERZ
in the consolidated statement R4 RIRSZEIAE

of cash flows 2,129,974 1,091,201
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing bank RITHEFEEENF001% E
saving deposits rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.88% 088% (ZZF —/"F : 001% &
(2016: 0.01% to 0.88%) per annum. 0.88%) 2 BRATRITREE T R FIZXE

E o

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 28. A RBEESHEEAUARHEA
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION REREER®

(continued)

214

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year (b) FERHN (BR)EBEKE
to cash generated from operations $HEHER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiet BT BETFT
Profit/(loss) for the year from KEATEZEE
sw il (E51E)
Continuing operations RBEQEER 137,790 (18,945)
Discontinued operations BRIEER 88,421 (40,895)
Profit/(loss) before taxation including B & AT A,/ (E518)
discontinued operations (BIEERIEER) 226,211 (59,840
Adjustments for: R
Gain on bargin purchase EEE R 4 (327,172) -
Income tax expense/(credit) FiisRifY/(K%) 41,896 (2,008)
Depreciation of property, ME R MRETE
plant and equipment 173,169 94,373
Amortisation of financial B ERE K 2 B
guarantee contracts - (8,491)
Loss on financial guarantee BB ERENZERE
contracts - 12,061
Interest on convertible bonds AR EHF B 11 89,666 54,179
Interest on bank borrowings RITER L EM
and other facilities BEFE 11 105,815 54,714
Interest on senior secured notes BEFBLEREFNE 11 110,198 -
Interest on other borrowings HAEFHFIE 48,018 13,435
Interest expenses on hire purchase  REREHEHREAE
and finance lease liabilities FEHX 11 501 69
Amortisation of intangible assets B8 B 16,492 16,442
Amortisation of land use rights i R 8 12 43,101 43,466
Fair value gain on the derivative AHRRES 2 ITETE
component of convertible bonds #Binz 2 EERE 10 (14,179) (61,191)
Fair value loss/(gain) on REMERAREE
investment properties B8 (as) 10 107,558 (8,186)
(Gain) / loss on disposal of HEME - BERxE
property, plant and equipment 2 (Uzs) /18 10 (101,977) 717
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W (112,126) (128,256)
Interest income RS ON (46,606) (18,422)
Share of profit of associates DIGEE R K
and joint ventures EEPERT (17,026) -
Gain on derecognition of RIERERARRES 2
derivative component of PTET BEbp 2 e
convertible bonds - (11,996)
Dividend income from R e EEESD
other financial assets % B UA (3,895) -
Unrealised exchange gain REHE N W 1,985 (67,377)
Operating cash flows before changes “&iE& 4 S8l 4& &
in working capital Bene 341,629 (76,306)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 28. BERBEEEEBURAEM

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION REREER(#)

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year (b) FERH (FBE)EBEXKE
to cash generated from operations SBEESZHIRE)

(continued)

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
Hist BETT BT
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,645,841) (776)
Decrease in trade receivables FEW & 5 BRIE R 8,052,032 18,442
Decrease in derivative financial TESBEERD
liabilities (878,907) -
Increase in prepayments, BNRIE - e REAM
deposits and other receivables FE TR IEE N (4,761,837) (3.911)
(Decrease)/increase in trade BEZERER
and other payables HEMFBCRD),/
bl (1,681,210) 117,617
Increase in employee benefit & B A= A3 A0 751 -
Increase in provisions R 0 6,045 -
Increase in other financial assets and E&RIEENBERL
warrantable LME commodities LMER fn i hn (53,648) -
Increase in non-current assets JFEFENE E LN (21,371) -
Decrease in deferred gains EEW SR (43,877) (6,427)
Cash (used in)/from operations LIS (FR) s Z R e (686,234) 48,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 28. HeRBEESEEBUREM

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HeERnsE® @
(continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) ®MEIBELEEBEZHIER

financing activities

Senior Other
Secured Perpetual loans and Convertible
Notes Notes borrowings bonds Total
BHEH HithE M CIE:d
BARE XARE RER &% &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEFIT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZB—tF
—HR—H - - 1,287,855 324,421 1,612,276
Changes from financing BERLHELT
cash flows:
New bank loans raised HERITER - - 1,013,632 - 1,013,632
Loans from independent BB =R
third parties ZEZ = = 20,000 = 20,000
Proceeds from issue of BITREREL
senior secured notes B3 Giles e 4,373,837 - - - 4373807
Proceeds from issue of BITKARE
perpetual notes TS 508 - 358,800 - - 358,800
Up-front fee paid for issue of #{1EEHBLER
senior secured notes ZENER (110,069) - - - (110,069)
Repayment of bank loans ~ EERITER - - (52,427) - (52,427)
Repayment of finance lease  EBRIAHEE
obligations EIE - - (2,270) = (2,270)
Total changes from REBRSREZE
financing cash flows ik 4,263,768 358,800 978,935 - 5,601,503
Change from operating RERLHE
cash flows: 2E
Interest paid [SXRELESS (55,280) - (145,497) (32,528) (233,305)
Effect of foreign HEEREH
exchange rate changes /& 6,536 382 191,730 (903) 197,745
Other changes: Hit g :
Business combination EEAH = = 7,195,658 = 7,195,658
Interest expense FISHAX 110,198 - 154,334 89,666 354,198
Total other changes Hit2E e 110,198 - 7,349,992 89,666 14,728,076

At 31 December 2017 R-B—t&E
+=-A=+-H 4,325,222 359,182 9,663,015 380,656 14,728,075
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29. BNEZRAREMENIR

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ERF

NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000

Kzt BT BT T

Trade and bills payables FERTE 5 BRIE K R 2 i (@ 1,124,623 7,021

Amounts segregated for customers |9 FEF Z & %58 26(a) 4,014,955 -

Other payables and accruals E b e FRIE M B IE B 2,548,367 107,952

Advance billings TEfFERTE (o) 156,183 -
Amounts due to 11 L Ath B 32 75 5RIE

other related parties (c) 1,819 7,475

Loans from non-controlling interests 3k & JE3 A& 25 2 B 3k (d) 13,034 -

7,858,981 122,448

Less: non-current portion B e BN (13,670) =

7,845,311 122,448
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —+#+= =+

HIL#EE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(@)

The following is an aged analysis of the trade
payables based on the invoice date as at the end of
the reporting period:

29. BNESREREMENFIER®

(@)

AT RRBERRE 2 EMNE K
HREHEE A2 REDT -

2017 2016

—EB—tF —EFRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

0-90 days 0-90H 924,828 1,451
91-180 days 91-180H 93,467 3,908
181-365 days 181-365H 30,100 302
1-2 years 124 64,916 =
Over 2 years 2F LA 11,312 1,360
1,124,623 7,021

The average credit period for purchase of goods
ranged from 90 to 180 days. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit time frame.

As at 31 December 2017, trade payables amounted
to HK$2,157,000 (2016: Nil), HK$2,063,000 (2016:
Nil) and HK$1,175,000 (2016: Nil), are due to the
Group’s associates, joint ventures and other related
parties, respectively.

The balance includes gross amount due to
customers for contract work of HK$344,000 (see
Note 27).

Amounts due to other related parties represented
non-trade amounts due to joint ventures and other
related parties which are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured
and interest-free. Among which, balances of
HK$10,123,000 are neither planned nor likely to
repay within the next twelve months. The rest of the
balances are repayable on demand.
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BARMZFHEEHRNFO=E
1808 - AR ERA VKRR EE
BR - BRNMEERE &S E AN
PN R

NR-—EB—+FE+-_A=+—08 " &
NFAEBBENR AELER
HEEE s 2N ESRES R A
B 2157,000L (= — /N F ¢
) - B2 063,0007T ( ZF— X
F o) RE1,175,000t (=&
— N ) o

EHRBERERAME N TIREENRR
HR I 48 %E B #5344,000 7T ( BB EE
27) °

R AL B T E 2 5] B
BOEREMBESTEE SR
B RREARSR  REREE
SRAEIE -

REFZER R ERAERER
BB o Hf - ##%8110,123,000
T AT B AR AT BE R AR R+ =
BAREE - 2 N &R BIREKRE
ﬁ o



30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e 7J TR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —EF—+4F+_—H=+—HIFF/E
LOANS AND BORROWINGS 30. EXMRMER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat BMTF T BT T
Non-current B
Medium term notes FRHAZE IR (@) 1,177,567 -
Secured bank loans B IRITE R (b) 2,888,633 1,230,986
Hire purchase and finance HELRERERR
lease liabilities 13,150 1,706
4,079,350 1,232,692
Current TRE
Senior secured notes BEBELRE () 4,325,222 =
Perpetual notes XA EIE () 359,182 -
Secured bank loans BIEBEITER (b) 206,450 54,598
Revolving short-term trade facilities 1@5&%4,3}%,%3%@%3 ) 5,344,176 -
Hire purchase and finance lease ~ B MFIEHEAE
liabilities 5,155 565
Unsecured loan EIFE 20,000 =
Secured bank overdrafts BEMRITES (b) 742 -
Unsecured bank overdrafts EIMPFIRITES (b) 7,142 =
10,268,069 55,163

(@) The medium term notes are issued by CWT SG
under its Multicurrency Debt Issuance Programme
which was first established in April 2013. As at 31
December 2017, the balance included two tranches
of medium term notes:

= Notes with aggregate principal amount of
S$100,000,000 (approximately HK$584,450,000
as at 31 December 2017) issued on 18 April
2013. The notes are interest-bearing at a
fixed rate of 3.9% per annum and matured on
18 April 2019. The interest is payable semi-
annually in arrear.

= Notes with aggregate principal amount of
S$100,000,000 (approximately HK$584,450,000
as at 31 December 2017) issued on 18 March
2015. The notes are interest-bearing at a
fixed rate of 4.8% per annum and matured on
18 March 2020. The interest is payable semi-
annually in arrear.

(@)  FEAZE T EECWT SGARIEE N =
E—=FNABRRILZZEEE
BT E TIANET - R
—+F+-_A=+—8  &HeiE
MR BAZR I -

= R-ZZE—=F1AF+ N
BRI BETASBEAR
100,000,000 i3 7t (A =
T—tF+_A=+—H0%
75 %% 584,450,000 7T ) 2 =
B - ZEERBIREEF X
3.9%st B RN =T —NFN
B+N\BEH - FEEEF
EIEAE A —IR ©

- RZE—RF=AF+N
BRI BETASBEAR
100,000,000 i3 7t (A =
E—+tF+ZA=1+—8%
78 % 584,450,000 T ) 2 =
B - ZEERBIREEFFEX
48%FTERN T TF=
A+N\BE|E - FBFF¥F

EIEAE A —IR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 {2 —F —+F+=-H=+—HI %

= L =

30. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)
At 31 December 2017, the bank loans and

(b)

30. EF

WSEEENE )

(b) Eéfg—t¢+:ﬁlz+—a iR

overdrafts were repayable as follows: TEFNBEY /BRI TNHREE -
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Carrying amount repayable AR THIREE 2 REE
Within one year —F R 214,334 54,598
More than one year, —F U BENBBEMRF
but not more than two years 576,627 32,862
More than two years, ME HETBBRE
but not more than five years 2,174,348 1,127,236
More than five years HBilEAF 137,658 71,398
3,102,967 1,285,584

Senior secured notes and perpetual notes are issued
by the Group to finance the Acquisition (see Note 4).

(i)

The Group issued senior secured notes
with aggregate principal amount of
US$561,000,000 (carrying amount as
at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$4,325,222,000). The notes are interest-
bearing at a fixed rate of 5% per annum,
and secured by the share of Belt and Road
Investments Company Limited or HNA
Belt and Road Investments (BVI) Company
Limited, HNA Belt and Road Investments
(Singapore) Pte. Limited and CWT SG. The
notes are also guaranteed by HNA Group
(International) and HNA Group undertakes
to maintain the liquidity of the Company and
HNA Group (International) to ensure they
have sufficient liquidity to meet the payment
obligation. Among which, notes of principal
amount of US$45,000,000 is also secured by
the Group’s investment properties in UK.

The Group is committed to repay
US$300,000,000 (carrying amount as
at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$2,312,953,000) in May 2018 and
US$261,000,000 (carrying amount as
at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$2,012,269,000) in September 2018.
Interest are payable every three months
in arrear. The notes would bear additional
default interest of 2% to 3% per annum since
the date of default.
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© AREBRTAEFRERARERKA
SERABRMNEERER(FME4) -

(i)

i ST S Nl
561,000,000 & jt (A = &
—tE+ZHA=1T—HBZEK
E{BE X =75 %4,325,222,000
T ZBIRBELERE - 2%
ERIRE T FFEE5%:TE
FBelt and Road Investments
Company LimitedziHNA Belt
and Road Investments (BVI)
Company Limited * HNA Belt
and Road Investments
(Singapore) Pte. Limited &2 CWT
SGZ B 1EEIR - ZERIE
TN E S B (BERR) &R
BB ARGBERARRZ
//lu@ﬁji /iﬁit .(. )
HEREEERERDER
LAEREYE - b - KEGE
#45,000,0003 T 2 Z K IR
RSB RER 2 IREYE
{EHEHR o

AEBEERER_Z—N\F
# A {8 & 300,000,000 =
T(R=—_ZE—+tF+=A

zﬂf

Tt HZEEEHAES
# 2.312,953,000 T ) I
R—ZE—NFNLAEE
261,000,000 3 JT ( A —
T—+F+ A=+ —
BZEREELYASLE
2,012,269,0007tT) ° X B &
—EAEHEIN—IK - ZF

EBEEENRHRIZR2%E
3% BINERIFM KGR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N M‘%#&%@Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z= — & FA+—F=+—HIFEE

30. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(©

(continued)

(i

The Group issued perpetual notes
with aggregate principal amount of
US$46,000,000 (carrying amount as at
31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$359,182,000). The notes are guaranteed
by HNA Group (International) Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and HNA Group.

The notes are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable at the discretion of the
Group, but redeemable upon occurrence
of subordination events (including but not
limited to liquidation of the note guarantors) as
set out in the notes’ subscription agreement.
Since the liquidation of the note guarantors is
not controllable by the Group, the perpetual
notes is therefore classified as “current
liability” in accordance with the prevailing
accounting standards.

Revolving short-term trade facilities of the Group

relate to short-term trade related self-liquidating

facilities to finance the Group’s commodity

marketing business. At the end of the reporting

period, the facilities are secured by the relevant

assets of the commodity marketing business.

30. EXRKRERE)
(©) (%)

(ii) REBBRTASBEAR
46,000,000 % 7t (RN = &
—tE+-_A=+—HZE
M 18 47 /& 7 # 359,182,000
L) ZKARE - %EER
HAQNR—ZEBRIEM
SE(EER) AR AR KRG
EEER -

ZERBREER 2R
HAKERBEER - ERR
B2 RRE W TECE =1
(@?%ETBEE SBRERA

BR)BLEREE - ARNE
TF??‘1%/\Z@%EE$;%\$%
BT - BOKARBRER
TEHENDERIRBE

&l -

d AEBEZBEREHESHERKR
AEBzEmE S EHBER A
BHETEEREEH - NREH
R ZEMEHIMESEB A
FAEE(EEM o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

30. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 30. ERKRER@®
At the end of the reporting period, assets used to secure RIFEHR - BURBAEB 2 BERRE
the Group’s loans and borrowings, including the obligations DB EE(RERERERE)WT ¢

under finance leases, were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —EFRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEF T BT T
Investment properties WA 1,394,290 1,340,668
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRG 3,459,462 236,949
Land use rights {5 1,140,105 1,101,025
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRRT TR 36,015 37,237
Trade and other receivables FE B 5 BRIE I B th FE LW R IE 2,471,417 95,889
Inventories R 4,305,111 =
12,806,400 2,811,768
The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates EEFRITERIRTF0.3%-1.8% (=%
of 0.3%-1.8% (2016: 0.3%) per annum. The pledged bank — N 0.3%) ZTIHFERGFE - BEA
deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant BITHERER - N\FEMNERENE
bills payables in year 2018 (2016: released upon settlement BEFER(ZE—FRF RZE—LFEN
of bank borrowings in year 2017) and are therefore IRITIERERR) WOBRRBEE -

classified as current assets.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:nmm/ji%#&%‘:zlzﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

TERMS AND DEBT REPAYMENT

SCHEDULE

The terms and conditions of outstanding loans and

borrowings are as follows:

31. &%

IR EEEKEER

RAERERRERZ R EEEDT

2017 2016
—E—t5F S ANCS
Nominal Carrying Carrying
interest rate Year of maturity amount amount
FEAE BIHILE R BREE BREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
USD floating rate revolving 1.43%-4.90% 2018 5,344,176 =
short-term trade facilities 1.43%%4.90% —\F
ELEERREHESRME
USD fixed rate senior secured notes 5.00% 2018 4,325,222 -
ETELRAEMRELERR 5.00% —T—\F
SGD floating rate loans 1.87%-2.81% 2020-2021 1,618,851 —
N T BB 1.87%%2.81% —ZT_ZTF=E
T4
SGD fixed rate medium term notes 3.90%-4.80% 2017-2020 1,177,567 -
i T E B R B R 3.90%%4.80% —tiﬁ
GBP floating rate loans 1.98% 2021 787,457 713,906
HEEFBER 1.98% T
RMB floating rate loans 6.89%-7.38% 2018-2023 554,031 547,202
AREZBER 6.89%%7.38% =— N\FEE
-
USD perpetual notes N/A N/A 359,182 -
ETLKARE NEA i
EUR fixed rate loans 1.80%-5.77% 2020-2027 86,458 -
BoTE B ER 1.80%%E5.77% —TTFE
—E+F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£

31. TERMS AND DEBT REPAYMENT 31. BREEEREERER®
SCHEDULE (continued)
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Nominal Carrying Carrying
interest rate Year of maturity amount amount
ZEmHI=x EIHAF R REE AREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HKD floating rate loans 2.16% 2019 30,000 -
EEOZ BENR 2.16% —NF
HKD fixed rate loans 2.00% 2018 20,000 -
BEETE BB R 2.00% —N\F
Hire purchase and finance 1.80%-1.90% 2018-2023 18,305 2,271
lease liabilities 1.80%Z1.90% —N\FE
HERREESEAE ZE=F
TRY floating rate loans 16.00% 2018 11,116 =
THEBNFEER 16.00% —E-N\F
Bank overdrafts 5.00%-24.00% 2018 7,884 -
RITEZ 5.00%%224.00% —ZT—\&F
GBP fixed rate loans 3.60% 2031 6,476 -
EHETEER 3.60% —F=—
INR fixed rate loans 8.65%-11.50% 2018-2019 694 -
EEELEEENK 8.65%%211.50% —ZT—N\FZE
—NEF
EUR floating rate loans 0.67% 2017 - 24,476
BOTE BER 0.67% —+4F
14,347,419 1,287,855




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:nmm/jﬁ%#&%‘:{ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 32. A RBREAXRBARFTETE

DERIVATIVE COMPONENTS =B

The movement of the debt component and the derivative A IR(E S 7 BTS2 R OTET B Z D
components (including conversion option derivative, R ESTET A - %ﬁ%*ﬁ)\Zkguﬁ;
bondholder’s early redemption option derivative and EESTA T A R esd|iEinfE a4 T B RE
compulsory conversion option derivative) of the convertible 2T+ ERE—RNFE+_A=+—
bonds for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 BIEFEZEHEHTIOT -

are set out as follows:

2017 2016
—E-tF —ERE
Debt Derivative Debt Derivative

component component  component  component

ERHBL TEIARHG EBHG  TEIERHR

HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BYEFT BEFT JBEFT
Note 44(e)(i) Note 44(e)(i)
Hii44(e)) Hiat44(e))
At 1 January n—B—H 324,421 56,167 119,477 11,996
Interest charge for the year FEMBRXS 89,666 - 36,179 -
Gain on fair value changes DR EEZE . Wx - (14,179) = (61,191)
Derecognition #RIEHER - - = (11,996)
Exchange realignment b AR (903) - (2,248) 300
Recognition of new convertible bonds &R HT Al AL E 5 - - 287,502 117,058
Repayment of principal amount BEAS - - (116,489) -
Coupon payment IRER (32,528) - - -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 380,656 41,988 324,421 56,167
Analysis of carrying amount REBESN

- nominal interest payable —ERNREHME - - - -

- 2016 Convertible Bonds T A"EAUBRES
(note (b)) (Bi7%b)) 380,656 41,988 324,421 56,167
380,656 41,988 324,421 56,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TSR AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED
DERIVATIVE COMPONENTS (continued)

(@) Convertible bond issued in 2009

On 5 June 2009, the Company issued a convertible
bond for a principal amount of US$15,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$116,250,000)
(“Convertible Bond 1”) to an independent third
party, Templeton Strategic Emerging Markets
Fund Illl, LDC (“Templeton”). Details of the major
terms of the Convertible Bond | are disclosed in the
Group’s annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Convertible Bond
| shall not bear any interest and will be redeemed
at its outstanding principal amount plus a premium
of 8.5% per annum compounded annually at the
maturity date of Convertible Bond | by the Company.
The Convertible Bond | is denominated in United
States dollars.

The original maturity date of the Convertible Bond |
is on 5 June 2014. On 23 May 2014, the Company
and Templeton entered into an agreement to extend
the maturity date and conversion option expiry date
of Convertible Bond | to the sixth anniversary of the
date of issue of the Convertible Bond | (i.e. 5 June
2015) (“2014 Convertible Bond I”).

On 24 August 2015, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement with Templeton that the
maturity date and conversion option expiry date of
the 2014 Convertible Bond | is further extended by
one year to 5 June 2016 (“New Maturity Date”).
Other terms and conditions of this new convertible
bond (“New Convertible Bond 1”) remain
unchanged from the original Convertible Bond I.
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B3 (4=

(a)
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e 7J TR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —EF—+4F+_—H=+—HIFF/E

TRBRESFERBEARNITETIR

DERIVATIVE COMPONENTS (continued)

(a)

Convertible bond issued in 2009 (continued)

The extension of the debt and derivative components
is considered to be a substantial modification of the
2014 Convertible Bond | after taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. As such, the 2014 Convertible
Bond | was derecognised and the New Convertible
Bond | was recognised.

On 5 June 2015, the carrying amount of the 2014
Convertible Bond | amounted to HK$131,700,000
was derecognised. On initial recognition of
the New Convertible Bond I, the fair value of
debt component and derivative components
amounted to approximately HK$100,399,000 and
HK$25,860,000, respectively, are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The fair
value of the New Convertible Bond | approximates to
the carrying amounts of the 2014 Convertible Bond
| as at date of initial recognition, and accordingly no
gain or loss is recorded. The effective interest rate of
the debt component of the New Convertible Bond |
and interest payable of the New Convertible Bond | is
25.6% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, interest
expense of approximately HK$18,000,000 was
charged to profit or loss. No conversion was
noted for the year ended 31 December 2016. On
5 June 2016, the Company has fully redeemed
the New Convertible Bond | at principal amount
of US$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$116,489,000) and repaid interest payable
of US$11,552,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$89,727,000). A gain on derecognition of the
derivative components of convertible notes of
HK$11,996,000 is credited to profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

B )

(a)

RBBAERE > TRRE
% (18)
EEBFHAEREERER (R
BEERE) % EEEBRITET
ﬂ%@ﬁﬁ%:%—mﬁT%%ﬁ
B2 EAWBE - Bt - —2—WF
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%aﬁﬁtﬁm'ﬁﬁT
R %I DR -

RZFE—RF~ARHE - =F
—MFEARRESR 2 REESE
131,700,000 L E 4% IE &R © 7AH)
RN AIBKRES B - BB
DEROTETIAEFHZAAEESD
B4 % 7 ¥ 100,399,000 T K 7 #&
25,860,000 B A 4R & B F5 Ak 3%
R - RNYIZHERBE - FATRK

BHZAAEERE-_FT—HFAR
BES 2 REERE - Bt S

BB 1R o A MRESIER
BB 1D 2 BERA R R A AR E S 2
e B AT F25.6% °

HE-F-AFT-A=+—AL
FE - MEF#)E%18,000,000
TR BHPING - RHE-F—A

FT_A=+T—HILFELEH
BeRZZBE-—RFANARLRB &

A &) BAAN 4 %8 15,000,000 3% 7T (48
£ A 475 116,489,000 7T ) B
BRI RRES REEEMST
811,552 ooo%fc(ifﬁﬁﬁ%’wﬂ%
89,727,0007T) - REBIZ=ZFT— <
F+_A=Z+—RHILFE  &IE
RAUBMBRERZITET RS MD 2K
Z5%511,996,000 T ;0 A B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —ZE—+%#+_—H=+—HI F/E

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 32.
DERIVATIVE COMPONENTS (continued)

(b) Convertible bonds issued in 2016

EFNRBAXNITTELR

<

¢ o
>
=

~
g

“E-ARFRTZURRE

—

b)

On 30 May 2016, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement with independent
subscribers (“Subscribers”), pursuant to which,
the Subscribers agreed to subscribe for convertible
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
US$52,000,000 (“2016 Convertible Bonds”). On 19
July 2016, the issuance of convertible bonds under
specific mandate in an aggregate principal amount
of US$52,000,000 (equivalent to HK$404,560,000)
was completed. Details of convertible bonds are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 30 May
2016 and 19 July 2016 and the Company’s circular
dated 24 June 2016.

The 2016 Convertible Bonds shall bear interest from
and including the issue date to and excluding the
maturity date which is two years from the date of the
issue date on the outstanding amount of the 2016
Convertible Bonds at the interest rate of 8% per
annum.

The major terms of the 2016 Convertible Bonds are
as follows:

(i) Conversion by the bondholders

Subject to certain conditions, the bondholders
have the right to convert their bonds into
the shares of the Company at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.4 per share, subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments, at any time on
and after a date which is 6 months after the
issue date up to the close of business on the
7th business day prior to the maturity date
or if such bond shall have been called for
redemption before the maturity date, then up
to and including the close of business on a
date prior to the date of giving the notice of
redemption, provided that such conversion
rights can only be exercised in respect of the
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
not less than US$600,000 and in the integral
multiples of US$100,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 32.

DERIVATIVE COMPONENTS (continued)
(b) Convertible bonds issued in 2016 (continued)

(ii) Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or
purchased and cancelled, the Company
will redeem each bond at the outstanding
principal amount on the maturity date.

(iiij Redemption at the option of the
Company

The Company may, having given not less
than 7 days’ notice to the bondholders,
redeem the bonds in whole but not in part at
any time if, immediately prior to the date of
the relevant notice is given, conversion rights
shall have been exercised and/or purchases
(and corresponding cancellations) and/
or redemptions effected in respect of 90%
or more in principal amount of the bonds
originally issued.

On initial recognition of the 2016 Convertible
Bond, the fair value of debt component and
derivative components amounted to approximately
HK$287,502,000 and HK$117,058,000,
respectively, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The effective interest
rate of the debt component of the 2016 Convertible
Bonds and interest payable of the 2016 Convertible
Bonds is 27.8% per annum.

ARBRESERBAXNITEIR
B3 ()

R-B-—RERTZUBRRE

% (48)

(i) REEEEE
BROCATEEE - EiskiEE &
FESHAN - AR R BB
BEAEEASBEELNTRE
% o

(i) AL A EEEE

3|

WEZZELABBENA Y
Al REBTEHASH
90% 3k JA £ 2 B HE S JETT
R/ HEE (RBETH)
RS BERERR - ARARA
BER RESHAABL T D
REBZ@mHM - A2
BB ERES o

R P R — N FAIERES
B BESOETEIAESHZA
7t BB 5 Bl 49 & 7 # 287,502,000
7T N 76 117,058,000 TT A 47 & B
AR RRIER o —ZE—NFEARK
BHEZERBD2ERMNER =T
—ANFABRREFZEGANEARE
&27.8% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED
DERIVATIVE COMPONENTS (continued)

(b) Convertible bonds issued in 2016 (continued)

Binomial model is used for valuation of the derivative
components of the 2016 Convertible Bonds. The
major inputs into the model were as follows:

32. ITRBREFEBAXNTETLIA

=B ()

b) RZZB-—ARFBTZTHRRE
Z(18)
EH T FAUBRRESITET

A ETHERTIFA —EBAR
o ZBEARANATZTEEIEZRHA

%
31 December 31 December 19 July
2017 2016 2016
—E—+F —E—RF —E—RF

+=ZA=+t—-HB +ZA=+—H A+ 1B

Stock price (B

Conversion price BRE

Volatility (Note a) K18 (Hiita)

Dividend yield REE

Option life BIEEEH

Risk-free rate (Note b) R = (fiztb)

Notes:

(@) The volatility used in the model was determined

with reference to the Company’s historical volatility
and a set of comparable companies.

(b) The risk-free rate used in the model was reference
to Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes at the end of
the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of the debt component of the 2016 Convertible
Bonds was approximately HK$380,656,000
(2016: HK$324,421,000), and the fair value of the
derivative components of the 2016 Convertible
Bonds was approximately HK$41,988,000 (2016:
HK$56,167,000). During the year ended 31
December 2017, interest expense of the 2016
Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$89,666,000
(2016: HK$36,179,000) was charged to profit or
loss. No conversion was noted for the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

N M‘%#&%@Bﬁ

tFEF = A=+—HIFFE

33. EERA

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
izt BT BT T
Non-current ISR E

Defined benefit obligations F1TE 18 ) A 34 46,253 -

Other long-term employee HE RS
benefit liabilities BAEE (@) 24,910 -
71,163 =

(a)

Other long-term employee benefit obligation relates
to a deferred share plan of a subsidiary of CWT
SG. The deferred share plan is an award granted
to certain key management personnel of certain
subsidiaries who have earned a bonus under an
annual bonus plan. The deferred share plan can be
in the form of a conditional award or an option. In a
conditional award, the employee receives the shares
of the subsidiary as soon as the award vests. In
an option, the employee is entitled to exercise the
option when the award vests.

Each award vests in three equal tranches on the
first, second and third anniversary of the grant
date. The share value of the shares awarded to
the employees under the deferred share plan is
measured based on the net assets of the subsidiary.

The deferred share awards are discounted to
determine their present value. The discount rate
is the yield at the reporting date on Singapore
government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the subsidiary’s
obligations in which the benefits are expected to be
paid. This calculation is performed using projected
unit credit method.

(a)

H R HE BB A AEHECWT SG
ZE B — B AR ZEE R &
g - BEROFEA—ERTER
B EIEAL A 8IIR MEALZ & THY
BRAIZETIEEBABZE
B o IRIE AR 10 51 &I R LA A 5k 22

SBRAER A AEL - BB R I 22E
mE - ZE—EHEB - EE A

HHB A AR o RERETS -
SR A BB B 5 AT (AR AR -

ERBNBELBEMZE - FR
FZBEFR-MBHERNHBERE - 1R
BEER DB RE T EERND Z
B EERZHBAREEFEE

il

IRIERR 10 B2 B T ARG IR DAREE H 3R

B-BREXGS2RENABEZNE

NEITRHAS AN 2 B A AR AR

HZHMEBAEFRRE RS2

WaE - A ERAEHRBERA
BALEETT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

w3
For the year ended 31 December 2017 2 —EF—+%#+_—H=+—HI F/&F
33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

34.

(b)  The Group had adopted a share option scheme (see
Note 38) for the directors and employees.

(c)  The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement
plan. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
benefit plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The Group also contributes to various other defined
contribution retirement plans for eligible employees.
The plans are managed either by the government in
the countries where the employees are employed,
or by independent trustees. Contribution levels are
determined by the relevant laws and regulations
concerned.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a pension plan for its employees in
Switzerland whereby the plan participants are insured
against the financial consequences of old age, disability and
death. The pension plan is operated by an independent,
legally autonomous collective foundation of an insurance
company. Consequently the plan assets are completely
segregated from both the Group and the plan participants.

The pension plan is funded by contributions from the Group
whereby funding is determined by the provisions stipulated
in The Swiss Federal Law on Occupational Benefit and
Disability Pension Plans and the Federal law on Vesting in
Pension Plans. The latest independent actuarial valuation
of the pension plan was at 31 December 2017 performed
by Mercer (Switzerland) SA, using the projected unit credit
method. Mercer (Switzerland) SA is an affiliate of Marsh &
McLennan Companies, Inc., a global professional services
firm headquartered in New York City. The actuarial valuation
indicated that the Group’s obligations under the pension
plan is 60.98% covered by the plan assets held by the
insurance company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 34. REBFIAE®

(continued)

The net defined benefit obligations recognised in the R¥E B RERE M BARRRAER 2R
consolidated statement of financial position at the reporting ERAEEFRWAT

date are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
KaE BT T BT T
Present value of funded obligations 2+ & A&¥EHE 118,549 =
Fair value of plan assets SFEIEEZ A AREE (72,296) -
68 46,253 -
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss: RiBmP MR 2B
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current service cost B BRI KA 2,994 =
Interest cost | B Ak X 264 _
Interest income MEIA (171) -
3,087 -
Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive income: REA 2 E W E R 2425
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Remeasurements on changes of B TERRXEE
assumptions (693) -
Return on plan assets FTEIE ER R
(excluding interest income) (TEEFSWA) (370) -
(1,063) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

TV N = |

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2 — =&

34.

—tF+ A=+ —HILFE

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS RERBFAELE &)
(continued)
Change in present value of defined benefit obligations are as RERAMAEBEEZSHWOT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Defined benefit obligations at R—A—BZRE
1 January & - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1) 120,558 =
Current service cost B BRAR TS A AR 2,994 -
Interest cost MEKA 264 -
Remeasurements on change in EBR=EEm
assumptions EHETE (693) -
Benefits paid &R (4,153) -
Exchange differences ME N =5 (421) -
Defined benefit obligations at R+=—A=+—Hz
31 December FLTE f@ FlEHE 118,549 -
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations HE—_E+E+-A=+—B8 ATE

as of 31 December 2017 is 21.3 years (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

34. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

Change in the fair value of plan assets during the year are as

follows:

34. RERBREE @)

FRABEEAABEESNT ¢

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Fair value of plan assets at R—A—BZ&E8EE
1 January NABE - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 )N (73,151) =
Interest income A2 A (171) -
Employer contribution* B F 5k (3,017) -
Return on plan assets 5T EIE E R R
(excluding interest income) (TEFEFESWA) (370) -
Benefits paid =EEER 4,153 -
Exchange differences MEH =5 260 -
Fair value of plan assets at R+—A=+—Hz
31 December STEIEEAREE (72,296) -
* Employer contributions for 2018 are expected to be & —E-NFREITHREHABILE
HK$9,061,000. 9,061,0007T °
Breakdown of plan assets: STEIEERA :
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Assets held by insurance company R ABIHEZEE (72,296) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR WK MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

34. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows:

RERFELE &)

EBREBRT

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E-RF
BVG2015 BVG2015
Mortality tables, actuarial statistics WTREK @ FBEEIE
(disability, mortality, etc.) (&% T %)
Discount rate BhIE &R 0.70% -
Rate of salary increase FHETHim 1.00% =
Rate of the projection of the B EANTRRI=X
saving capital 0.70% -
Rate of pension increase RIRE TR 0.00% =
Turnover ] 12.60% -

FTERERRZBRE

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to RBE B Hh—BEEBRERERZZE
one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other B E) (AmMBE T8 e Z2 R TIE
MAESE - PP REFFRAT

Sensitivities of significant actuarial assumptions

assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligations by the amounts shown below:

Increase Decrease
#hn A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
2017 S
Discount rate (0.25% movement) ALIR R (2 8)0.25%) (6,569) 6,067
Future salary growth RARFELIER
(0.25% movement) (#8)0.25%) 2,209 -
2016 —E—XE

BRIR & (2 5)0.25%) - -
REFRER
#8)0.25%) - -

Discount rate (0.25% movement)
Future salary growth
(0.25% movement)

The above sensitivity calculations are based on one P RESE AN —TARREFSHmE
i RRRITFAE - AW - B EERRR
ZEFEETHBRE - RMBFERX -

BURE R SUE R AR BRR AT S

assumption changing while others remain unchanged. In
practice, however, there are certain correlations between
the individual assumptions. The same method was used to
calculate the sensitivities and the defined benefit obligations
at the end of the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

35. DEFERRED GAINS

35. JEfEWm

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Arising from: wH -
Sales and leaseback arrangement of HEBFZHER
leasehold buildings ERMAERZHE 28,819 -
Golf club memberships SRANSTHE 225,927 243,398
254,746 243,398
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RIBEMDNT A -
Non-current ERE 195,386 193,909
Current E 59,360 49,489
254,746 243,398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

36. DEFERRED TAX 36. EIEFIIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) WTAEBRZEIZELHRBEG(E
recognised and movements thereon during the current and E) UKERAKFEMBEFEZEF :
prior years:
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) FEEHBELEE (BE)
Recognised
At Recognised in other At
1January Acquisition of  Translation in profit comprehensive 31 December
2017 subsidiaries  differences or loss income 2017
RZB-tE REf  HoB-tF

-R-8  KBHELA BEEZE RREAER  REUEBRR t-A=t-A
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR

Deferred tax iabilties/(assets) EiHiEaG/ (4E)

Property, plant and equipment nE . BERRE 33,625 750,869 8,505 (16,959) - 716,040
Investment properties RENE - - 2 13,657 - 13,678
Land use rights TR 260,624 - 19,529 (8,17) - 271,982
Deferred gains Eitha (56,843) - (4,157) 4,532 - (56,468)
Intanglble assets BYEE - 65,421 170 (3,662) - 61,929
Financial asses SHEE - - (1) (17 - (18)
Inventories 75 - 7,802 (95) (121) - 7,586
Trade and other receivables RUE SBEREMEYE - 5,108 69 5,080 - 10,257
Trade and other payables ENBSERRAMENTE - (5,032) 2 (803) 14 (6,669)
Provisions & - (3,879) (42) (971) - (4,892)
Unutiised tax benefits AEATBES - (25,886) 18 10,246 - (15,622)
Others Eft - (4,822) 29 - - (4,793)

237,406 789,581 24,068 2,811 144 1,054,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. IRIEBIIE(4)
Recognised
At Recognised in other At
1 January Acquisition of  Translation in profit comprehensive 31 December
2016 subsidiaries  differences or loss income 2016
RZZ—1F W REM RZT—1F
—A-A WERE BEZE REEARR 2EKEEA T-A=T-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEFT  BEFr EETr BEFr BT EBETa
Deferred tx liabilties/(assets)  ERLHEERE/(BE)
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% R Rk fE 35,490 - (2,343) 478 - 33,625
Land use rights THERE 287,298 = (18,433) (8,241) = 260,624
Deferred gains Bitha (66,714) - 4,111 5,760 = (56,843)
256,074 - (16,665) (2,003) - 237,406
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a MTEASEIE R T BN R 18 4 /&= B B BR 9 18
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against BETIRESY - BEERIES R E — M5
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to i B EEREAERABAATREE
the same taxation authority. The amounts determined after FEHESY o RIEEIE LT Y &t AR
appropriate offsetting are included in the statements of EHRRER  ITXFE
financial position as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBEFTT BT T
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 1,073,624 237,406
Deferred tax assets RIETRIB A (19,614) =
Deferred tax liabilities, net BERERE  FE 1,054,010 237,406
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#1+ - H=+—HI F/E

36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. ELEMIE(H)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of R IE M 2(aa) FT S & 5T R L N 51118
the following items in accordance with accounting policies BEREERIAEE ¢
set out in Note 2(aa):
2017 2016
—B—tF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Deductible temporary differences AR R i =58 143,003 -
Unutilised tax losses RE)BARIEEE 701,123 498,617
Unabsorbed wear and tear allowance D FEIE AR 111 =
844,237 498,617
At 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of R-TE—+&+-_A=+—H  ~EBEH
approximately HK$701,123,000 (2016: HK$498,617,000) RENA T IEEBLBET701,1 23,0007_E (=
which are available for offsetting against future profits. No T — N« #E#498,617,0007T) © ATAR
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the HHEAT RN AT —tFR_ZF—X

¢+:HE+—E-EK$XZmﬂXﬁ
BEATEET - BRI AR BB B E R R R (IR

tax loss due to the unpredictably of future profit streams
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. Except below, other

240

losses can be carried forward indefinitely. ERIBEE o B NatE R - HiEEa
IR ARAESE o
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B F T JBEMTF T
Tax losses to be expired in RT5) B BfEim 2 BiTEE A

- 2017 —+tF - 24,588
-2018 —N\F 22,216 36,958
- 2019 ——ZE—NF 32,688 38,484
- 2020 ——T_TF 28,174 18,569
- 2021 ——E-—%F 20,636 14,959
103,714 133,558

The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax MIEEBELCHERARE - WETHEB

authorities and compliance with tax regulations in the
respective countries in which the subsidiaries operate. The
deductible temporary differences and tax losses, other than

DAEE

TEERITHRATRLE

disclosed above, do not expire under current tax legislation.
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

MOVEMENT IN COMPONENTS OF
EQUITY

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

37. ERHHP2EH

AEEZ ZESE0 2 FORFRGHRE
ZHERENGAREREBR - ARAIRNF
VIR R (AR s w0 B ENF BRI T

Perpetual
Share Capital capital  Translation Share option Accumulated
capital reserve  instrument reserve reserve losses Total
BhE
k& ERfifE AAEAIA EifkfE e ZitER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$:000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
T T EETT BETT FEFT i
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7"E—f-A 4,731,480 158,100 - (46,217) 20212 (1,068901) 3,794,674
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (367,316) (367,316)
Bxchange diferencearisng ~ FRELZELZE
during the year - - - (68,841) - - (68,841)
Total comprehensive income ~ FEZEMHLE
for the year - - - (68,841) - (367,316) (436,157)

At 31 December 2016 and RoB-—rE

1 January 2017 TZAZT-BR
-2 t5-A-7 4731480 168,100 - (15069 0212 (1436217 368517
Profi for the year EERA = = = - - 6,013 6,013
Bxchange diference arising ~ FRELZEREE
during the year - - - 48,902 - - 48,902
Total comprehensive income ~~ FERENELE
for the year - - - 48,902 - 16,013 64,915
Share options lapsed/cancelled  BERRIERR /a4 = = = = (300) 300 -
Issues of perpetual capital BTKAEAIR
instrument (Note 37b)fvi) (Hsmpi) - - 181939 - - - 181939

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%
+-f=1-H 4,731,480 158,100

1,819,390 (66,156) 19912 (1,419,904) 5,242,822
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

tFEFAZ AU FE

37. MOVEMENT IN COMPONENTS OF
EQUITY (continued)

(a)

(b)

37. EEXHPz2EE 4w

Share capital (@ KR
Number of
shares Amount
g 4| o]
HK$'000
BT T
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: 2 317 R &1 E 2 i@
At 1 January 2016, 31 December RZZT—R"FE—H—H"
2016, 1 January 2017 and —T-RE+TZA
31 December 2017 =+—H8 Z—Z—+F
—B—HBR-ZE—+F
+=A=1+—8 11,399,996,101 4,731,480
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong BEBEBRRIENE135E  RAREBE
Company Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the AR A E(E o
Company do not have a par value.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TERBEABEBKBRAREIRZKE
dividends as declared from time to time and are WHEERAAGBIRE EAGR—FETE
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the R MARBRBREEMS * ABEEBER
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with HALFISE o
regard to the Company’s residual assets.
Nature and purpose of reserves (b) REEERAER
() Capital reserve (i) BXGEE
Capital reserve mainly represents: BERFEEBE
i) Capital reserve mainly represents i) BAREBEZERER=

the excess amount of the fair value
of identifiable net assets acquired in
an acquisition of subsidiaries in 2014
over the fair value of consideration
transferred and non-controlling
interest, which is considered as
deemed capital contribution from
HNA Group and is credited to capital
reserve. The vendor of the acquisition
transaction was controlled by HNA
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

37. MOVEMENT IN COMPONENTS OF
EQUITY (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from the functional
currency of the Company.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net changes in the
fair value of cash flow hedging instruments.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the
cumulative net changes in the fair values of
available-for-sale financial assets.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve mainly represent reserve
set aside by certain subsidiaries operating
in foreign jurisdictions where profits of these
subsidiaries are set aside according to local
legislations.

37. EBHHB2EH e

(b) REMERRBRGE)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

EXREERRRERINE
BEEEBEEARFZ
DEEETR)MBHRRE
HEZINEZRR °

i
HirfEEeRRERELR
TAZRFA AR EBEESF
BBRED -

ARMERE
AR BEEBEETHEE
SEMAEY RHAABER
%4 -

N

REEWRE
EERBEEERIMEAEDE
R 2 E 2B THIE DA B
HZ - ZEMBRARR
BEEMEPIBLEN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

37. MOVEMENT IN COMPONENTS OF 37. EZMBHZEE (@)
EQUITY (continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (b) REHEERAEE)
(vi)  Share option reserve (vi) BRERE

The share option reserve comprises the fair SE a0 B 75 R 2R B 538 H BARR
value of share options granted which are MEERZNRRG 2E3
yet to be exercised, as further explained PR — S ME - BARER
in the accounting policy for share-based HEBEE R LA REITE
payments transactions in Note 38 to the BRELAAEBE EFH
financial statements. The amount will either BIEETE  ZeBeE
be transferred to the share capital when BEMRA - s A R B AE
the related options are exercised, or be [Em BRI - SRR
transferred to retained profits should the HBim A o

related options expire or be forfeited.

(vii)  Perpetual capital instrument (vii) KAXEZXITA

Perpetual capital instrument represents a KABARIEERE WA
perpetual loan of $S$316,000,000 (approximately AKANAREBKAEK
HK$1,819,390,000) from two shareholders 316,000,000 N3 7T (£97%8
of the Company, both of which are affiliates #1,819,390,0007T) ' %%
of the HNA Group. The Group has no REHEENEB ZHBE A
contractual obligation to repay any amounts 7 o REBMEMIEN Y
of the perputal loan under any circumstances BEEXKABERZEMEHE
and any repayment is entirely at the discretion ZEHEME - MEMRERY
of the Company. Consequently, the Directors TEBARABWBELLT
are of the view that the economic substance It BEERAEKABERZK
of the perputal loan is a non-reciprocal capital BEEAKRBEMERZIE
contribution from HNA Group and credited EREEE  WEHELAMR

directly to reserve. 1 o
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

On 29 May 2012, the Company terminated the share
options scheme adopted on 7 June 2002 (the “2002
Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) with effect from 25 May 2012. Under
the 2012 Scheme, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of
the Company may, subject to and in accordance with the
provisions of the 2012 Scheme and the Listing Rules, grant
share options to any eligible participant to subscribe for
shares in the capital of the Company. The options granted
under the 2002 Scheme remain valid until those options
lapsed on their expiry date.

Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include any director
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive), executive, officer, employee, shareholder of the
Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the associated
companies or any of the jointly controlled entities and any
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent, partner or
business associate, who will contribute or has contributed
to the development and growth of the Group. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from 25 May 2012.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to each eligible participant
under the 2012 Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue, as at the date of grant.

38.

N M‘%#&%@Bﬁ

—A=1+—HIFFEE

\+‘

LR ABERZNRRE
R-ZE——FRA=-+hNHB "AFKIE

RZZEZT-_F A LBHEMERETS
((ZZZ2=F5H8]) - WHEMN—IEHRER
EEE(ZE——F58]) =T —=
FRHAZTHERARBRER - RBRE-_ZT—=F
FE - ARRESE([ESg ) AREC
E——FFER LA G RERER
PR MAEREERDEER L BRE -
REBARRBRAP 2D - BEBE-TF=
FEEREH o BREDAEBN  EE%ZE
FERRE R BB B BR A LE ©

R EHEZABERARABERE
HEKHAKREZERIERELERZ
ARB HEAL P E QB REA R E R
ARETAARZEFHEBZENES(E
ERRTES FRTESKBUIFNTE
B) TTHAR - EEAR - EE KR
REFEER  BF - &#@A  BE K
B AEBHAERBTABA - RIERTHE
HXER] BRI T _FHEKEESR
M-AE-—_FHA-_t+THARHREB
EE ©

BRE—ZT——F:E RENE=HETHAB
HEEtZ+T—_AAHBARTEEEKRSR

HEZEBRE(REDITE - BEE IR
7 BRI ) TR B RS T BT 2 &
BRHEE - BTEEARKLEBHEAR
AIEBITRAZ1% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

w3
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F
38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised later than 10 years after it
has been granted.

Same as the 2002 Scheme, HK$1 should be payable
by the grantee on acceptance of an offer by the grantee
under the 2012 Scheme. The exercise price per share
in relation to an option shall be a price to be determined
by the Board and shall be no less than the highest of (a)
the official closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date on which the option is offered to an
eligible participant; (b) the official average closing prices of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of option to
an eligible participant; and (c) the nominal value of shares
of the Company on the date of offer of option to an eligible
participant. During the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2017, no share option was granted under the 2012
Scheme.

Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme,
share options held by any eligible participants/qualifying
grantees will lapse automatically upon their termination
of employment but the Board is empowered to extend
the exercise period of the concerned share options at
its discretion. Relevant exercise period of share options
held by the eligible participant/qualifying grantee whose
employment was terminated during the year was extended
and approved by the Board. Such change does not
constitute modification of the 2002 Scheme and 2012
Scheme.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The following tables disclose details and movements in
share options under the 2002 Scheme during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

38. LIRMAEBR IR @)
TERBBRBE-T—+ER-T—AF
+-A=+—ALtEE  —ST_FiE
ETR 2 BRIESEREE -

Number of shares under options

BREET ZRHHE
Adjusted
exercise Addition
price per Lapsed/ after
share due to cancelled  adjustment
Exercise  rights issue At Granted Transferred  Exercised during due to At
Date of price Rt 1.1.2017 during during during the year rights issue 31.12.2017
Category of grantees grant Exercise period pershare  EfHE%z W-E-tF  theyear  theyear  theyear R RERESF  AST-tE
RRAZEH RERH®  fRA SRAEE  SRAEE  -A-R EARE  FRER AR AN/EE ARELRE  ToRs1-F
Directors 19.1.2007  19.1.2007-18.1.2017 HKS$0.406 HKS$0.396 433,981 = = = (433,981) = -
53 AB0A06T 03967
221.2008  22.1.2008-21.1.2018 HKS$0.780 HK$0.762 17,208,200 = = = - - 17,203,200
BE0T80T  AB0762T
17,637,181 - - - (433,981) - 17,203,200
Employees of the Group 2212008  22.1.2008-21.1.2018 HKS$0.780 HK$0.762 25,088,000 = = - (4,608,000) = 20,480,000
K5BES A0S K076
Other participants 19.1.2007  19.1.2007-18.1.2017 HK$0.406 HK$0.396 10,684,416 - - - (10,684,416) - -
L A%0406m  AH0.3%6T
2212008 22.1.2008-21.1.2018 HKS$0.780 HK$0.762 46,592,000 - - - - - 46,592,000
A%0780m  A%0T6oT
16.12.2009 16.12.2009-15.12.2019 HKS$0.596 HK$0.582 8,960,000 = = - - - 8,960,000
A%05%6T %058
14122010 14.12.2010-13.12.2020 HKS$0.420 HK$0.410 3,072,000 - - - - - 3,072,000
A%040m  AK040T
69,308,416 = = - (10,684,416) = 58,624,000
112,033,597 - - - (15,726,397) - 96,307,200
Exercisable at the end
of the year
RELTE 96,307,200
Weighted average exercise
price per share HK$0.734
SRIMETSRE BR074T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F
38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 38. URHOAERZNRRZ @)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Number of shares under options
BREET 2 RAHE
Adjusted
exercise Addition
price per Lapsed/ after
share due to cancelled  adjustment
Exercise  rights issue At Granted Transferred  Exercised during due to At
Date of price R 1.1.2016 during during during the year  rights issue 31.12.2016
Category of grantees grant Exercise period per share ETEE2 R-E-AE  theyear  theyear  the year £ RERES RZE-AE
RRAZER RERE  RH SROEE BRAGE  -A-B  FARY  FAEE EAGE  RN/HE BEAZRE  foR=t-R
Directors 19.1.2007  19.1.2007-18.1.2017 HKS$0.406 HKS$0.396 433,981 - - - - - 433,981
£ AB0d6T K037
22.1.2008  22.1.2008-21.1.2018 HKS$0.780 HK$0.762 17,208,200 - - - - - 17,208,200
0T8T AM076T
17,637,181 - - - - - 17,637,181
Employees of the Group 221,008 22.1.2008-21.1.2018 HKS$0.780 HK$0.762 25,088,000 = - - - - 25,088,000
r&RES ABOTST  EKOTEOT
Other participants 19.1.2007  19.1.2007-18.1.2017 HKS$0.406 HK$0.396 10,684,416 - - - - - 10,684,416
Ehpoeg A%0406m  AK0.306T
2.12008  22.1.2008-21.1.2018 HKS$0.780 HK$0.762 46,592,000 - - - - - 46,592,000
%0780 A%0T62T
16.12.2009 16.12.2009-15.122019  HK$0.596 HK$0.582 8,960,000 - - - - - 8,960,000
BE05%6T  AB0582T
14122010 14.12.2010-13.12200  HK$0.420 HK$0.410 3,072,000 - - - - - 3,072,000
EB040T  E%040T
69,308,416 - - - - = 69,308,416
112,083,597 - - - - - 112,083,597
Exercisable at the end
of the year
RERAR 112,033,597
Weighted average exercise
price per share HKS0.702
SRIMETSEE %0.70070

All share options are vested at the date of grant.
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39.

40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+tF+=—H=+—HAIFE
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 39. FEFRERF
Apart from non-cash transaction related to the substantial BRMsES2FT Ml A N EE B AT AR EH 2 &
modification of the convertible bonds of the Group KIEETMHEBZIER X FI r REE-Z
described in Note 32, the Group also entered into the —NFt+-_A=+—"BILtFE  KEEIR
a major non-cash transaction during the year ended SINVFEHIRERS Btk AEFEE
31 December 2016, whereby the Group and its fellow RIZK B A RF] 2 AR ERmEE AR
subsidiaries entered into an agreement to offset the amount ¥ 549,824,000 7T 2 fE W K B — IR &
due from and amount due to a fellow subsidiary with WEB AR ZFIE -
carrying amount of HK$549,824,000.
OPERATING LEASES 40. REHE
The Group as lessee EEBEEREMEA
Minimum lease payments for certain of its office properties FAREBERBCEHEREE THAE
and quarters for Directors and staff paid by the Group MENEFHE TFEEENz2HmEKEE24
under operating leases during the year amounted to BB #219,824,0007C( —FE—/RF : B
approximately HK$219,824,000 (2016: HK$13,188,000). 13,188,0007T ) ° Z EMELEE M E A
These leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms Henh&Ewr BN T —=212+F (=%
ranging from one to fifty years (2016: one to three years). —NF:—EZF)NEF - KLHEET
Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases are HEAR S e ASEYI R E172
included in “Land, buildings and improvements” set out in [t - BFERMEEE] -
Note 17.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIRE IR - ANEEBE O BT &
commitments for future minimum lease payments under HE ARFEREAE 2 BIHEA B 20
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Within one year —FRN 373,746 14,056
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ERFRIE(BEERME) 509,997 10,005
Qver fifth year HBilEhE 1,540,505 =
2,424,248 24,061
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

40.

L —

OPERATING LEASES (continued)
The Group as lessor

Property and motor vehicles rental income earned during
the year was HK$122,437,000 (2016: HK$33,843,000)
which was included in loss for the year from discontinued
and continuing operations in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group leases its investment properties, advertising
space and motor vehicles and sublets its office space
under operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to ten years. All the properties
held have committed tenants for terms ranging from one
to seven years (2016: one to eight years). A lease includes
contingent rentals calculated with reference to gross
revenue less expenses and fixed rent period, the remaining
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement
has been entered into for contingent rental payments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

40.

REFHE (@)

AEBEALEA
FARDMZWERRERS WA LS
W5 122,437,000 7T ( =8 — /N F : B
33,843,0007T) * BEEAFIBE T ALZEE
mREMEEMRERZBERIEEBRIGE
BTS2 FEEIE o

AEBZBKEHERHEBEEREY
¥ EE=ERAERS>BEERAZER
REFZHEANF—E+FTF - FHAZ
PIAEMEBEANR  ARNF—=2tF(=
E—RE —E\F)TE - HEBELKZ
ZRWaER A< kEE MR EZHA
HE - Mg THEREEERELETL
BET LR HE L

C AKRBEEBEFHR T HE

contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease £=T
payments:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year —F R 580,544 117,542
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEEERF(BREEEMSE) 1,101,562 466,986
Over fifth year BiEAF 435,011 179,655
2,117,117 764,183
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41.

42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

CAPITAL COMMITMENT 41. EREE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRWEME  BELRREZ
acquisition of property, plant and BRI AVERTELRE M TS K
equipment contracted for but not FHREBEZ EARRY
provided in the consolidated
financial statements 351,314 834
Capital expenditure in respect of the ERWEDE  BEEREBZ
acquisition of property, plant and EREERFTNZERRET
equipment authorised
but not contracted for 37,978 -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42. HAREE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Guarantee given to banks, in respect of FLE=HER ZIETTHE
banking facilities to third parties RIERTTHRAEER
— amount that could be required to be  — B {EEI D BIE(RIS AT B
paid if the guarantee was called BXz e
upon in entirety - 104,866
— amount utilised —EBAeHE - 90,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

42,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and
arbitration matters in the normal course of business. The
Group vigorously defends against these claims and, in the
opinion of the management, the resolution of these matters
will not have a material effect on the financial position of the
Group.

At 31 December 2016, the Company had provided
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted
to subsidiaries at nil consideration. In addition, Sinostride
Technology Company Limited (“Sinostride Technology”,
part of the Intelligent Information Business) entered into a
cross guarantee arrangement with third parties whereby
the third parties had also provided guarantee to banks in
respect of Sinostride Technology’s banking facilities for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Sinostride
Technology had provided additional or renewed the
existing financial guarantees to the third parties and fair
value of these financial guarantees was approximately
HK$12,061,000 at initial recognition based on valuation
performed by Vigers. During the year ended 31 December
2016, HK$8,491,000 had been amortised and was included
in profit or loss. At 31 December 2016, an amount of
HK$9,258,000 had been recognised as liabilities associated
with a disposal group classified as held-for-sale.

At 31 December 2017, there is no guarantee given to banks
in favourite of third parties after the disposal of Intelligent
Information in 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

N M‘%#&%@Bﬁ

— g
Ft+=H=

+—HIFFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 43. EXEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REBEEBABEARUBRAEEANSER
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BRI AEFHE T RZEL A EEE(LER
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the MERTERFNHETREARLR - A&
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group B E BB THTRA A R BT E S e E
will balance its overall capital structure through new share iﬁﬁ1$%$1x]ﬁ\¥’&;§$%% o REE
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption BRSO S B K R N o
of existing debt. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net NEBEAEEBRIEER FRB(EBEER
debt, which includes loans and borrowings (excluding %%’K(T@%E}Eﬁﬁhﬁﬁf’f%mﬂﬁ)(Eﬁ
collateralised short-term trade facilities) (Note 30) and 530) KAk E S (SiE AEK])
convertible bonds (collectively referred as “Total Debt”); %E}ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm&ﬁi&iﬁhﬁwﬁlﬁE
net of pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalent ([BEE]) - AEB 2 BEERBBEAR
(“Net Debt”). Total capital of the Group comprising issued BlEA AER 2 D BITRA R FEEREE
share capital and reserves attributable to owners of the HHEEKR]) RN —EFR-_FT—X
Company and Total Debt (“Total Capital”). The details of F+—_HA=+—HZEBEEEBNL NN
Net Debt and equity attributable to owners of the Company BAELERZFFBWOT :
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
KiaE BT T BT T
Loans and borrowings B ER 30 14,347,419 1,287,855
Convertible bonds AR E S
— debt component — (B 32 380,656 324,421
Less: collateralised short-term W EEAEHESRE 30
trade facilities (5,344,176) -
Total Debt 1BIETS 9,383,899 1,612,276
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BERRITER (36,015) (27,890)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents* i : 3R & RIS EEH* 28 (2,137,858) (1,085,447)
Net Debt FETRS 7,210,026 498,939
Equity attributable to owners KNG AELERE
of the Company 5,444,133 3,360,211
Total Debt 1BIETS 9,383,899 1,612,276
Total Capital BE R 14,828,032 4,972,487
Gearing ratio BELE 48.6% 10.0%

Cash and cash equivalents includes those balances
with disposal groups and excluded bank overdrafts of
HK$7,884,000 (2016: Nil) which were included in loans and
borrowings

* BekReEEBEBEEBRELEAS

z;zfr%ﬁ%@Tﬁ%fEﬁﬁﬁ,%ﬁ%
7,884,000t (ZF—~"F : &) (Z&H
FTABRRMER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z
43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT continued)

44,

Collateralised short-term trade facilities are excluded from
the calculation of net debt to equity ratio due to its short
term highly liquid nature that is fully secured by liquid
assets such as cash and cash equivalents, inventories and
receivables.

Straits Financial LLC, Straits (Singapore) Pte Ltd and Straits
Financial Services Pte Ltd, incorporated in the United
States of America, Singapore and Singapore respectively,
are subject to minimum capital requirements pursuant
to laws and regulations of the United States of America
and Singapore. Management has established controls
and policies to ensure that the subsidiaries comply with
the minimum capital requirements. The subsidiaries have
compiled with the minimum capital requirements pursuant
to laws and regulations of the United States of America and
Singapore during the year.

Other than disclosed above, the Company and its
subsidiaries are not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@) Overview

The Group has a system of controls in place to
create an acceptable balance between the cost
of risks occurring and the cost of managing the
risks. The management continually monitors the
Group’s risk management process to ensure that
an appropriate balance between risk and control is
achieved.

The Audit Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal
Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the
Audit Committee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — = F+—A=+—HIFFZ

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s primary exposure to credit risk arises
through its trade and other receivables.

The Group has a credit policy in place whereby
new customers are subject to credit evaluations
based on available financial information and past
experiences. The Group has established credit
limits for customers and monitors their balances on
an ongoing basis. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group assessed
collectability based on ageing historical default rates
to determine the impairment loss to be recognised.
The Group’s historical experience in the collection
of accounts receivable falls within the recorded
allowances.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each relevant financial
asset in the consolidated statements of financial
position and the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 42.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 42, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

The Group does not have significant concentrations
of credit risk as the Group’s customers are
diversified and internationally dispersed. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in Note 25.

44, sREREEH)

(b)

EERRE
AEBTETBEEERKE SR
AREMERFRZEERR

rEEREREE CIRIR A TS

Zﬂﬁf%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ{i%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%)ﬁiﬁ
TEEFNE - AEERHEEFE
VEEREWFEEREREE o It
O - REBPRIRE BRK T E IR
BRI E S ER 2 AN E SR  LAME
{RELTS AT U B & 28 ATV I 2 R B S
BERH - AEBIRBRE KRBT
ERHERFEITEWMYE - KEEH T
R MEEE - AL BEBEKE
Z FEWGRIB G # F8 1 G R RS AR o

HRRZHFHRERBREETR
KEHRTREEFNR BT MK
AEBRBES A ZZERRKRA
R o

EERR S ARBERIERAMHN
RN RN 422 REB PR
REMBERISAREEREE
ZAREE -

BREL DI B fE 42 2 AN SR B TR (B
BERIN - REEREEH T AL
AEBEEGREERR 2 EMBER -

AEEHREEAETEERR - R
AERAKERASBEEF BB
RS o AEBEEREL QR
BHRBEZERERR 2 E—TE(
WEHIINHIFE25 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — &
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. S RIEMREIE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE)
The ageing of receivables classified as loans and R 25 HA R 5 $8 B B 3 X R BGR
receivables at the end of the reporting period is: ZIEWERIE 7 BRER A ¢
Impairment Impairment
Gross losses Gross losses
M WEEE ok BEEE
2017 2017 2016 2016
—E—+tF ZE—tF —E—REF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFIT BYTTT BETFIT BETFT
Not past due K HA 9,260,454 (44,079) 31,359 -
Past due 1-180 days #H31-180H 447,817 (719) 543 -
Past due 180-365 days #189180-365H 34,851 (5,026) 6,326 -
Past due more than 1 year ¥ HI#BiE14E 82,001 (51,192) 38,660 (38,660)
9,825,123 (101,016) 76,888 (38,660)

(c)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In connection
with the Acquisition, the Group raised the Acquisition
Borrowings which leads to a position of net current
liabilities of approximately HK$2,193,875,000
as at 31 December 2017. As mentioned in Note
2(b), the Group is undertaking various refinancing
arrangement to meet its short term liquidity
requirements. The Group will continue to undertake
various measures in order to further improve its
liquidity position in the longer term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. = RiEMEEE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RBELREMR(E)
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEBRNZ @RS EEEHEEER
responsible for their own cash management, HE S HREEIE  BIEEEER
including raising of loans to cover expected cash P BTEER &2 E - EEE R
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s BE T FERIR KR - BZEEAR
board when the borrowings exceed certain ﬁTZi%QﬁE/E o NEB 2 K
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy ABTHERE THES TR L HE
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements SRR mi@a 2B o REFH@NE
and its compliance with lending covenants. Where ERNMAEERESEEZYEE
necessary and at the appropriate time, the Group I8 PAm B IERE K o
would unlock cash from properties held to meet
expansion needs.
The following tables show the remaining contractual THERSBIANEERBERARZ
maturities at the end of the reporting period of é‘F@TE@EﬁEﬁ&@TE@Eﬂ%%Z
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and BITAMNZBRBR - ZFXRBRIE
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on a ,\Uiﬁﬂﬂiiﬁiﬁﬁmi(@?ﬁ%é%’?
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including AT E 2 F BAT Rk W F = &%
interest payments computed using contractual rates @J BRI E BR 2 IRIT AR5
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of BE)RAEEATINZ2&FHH
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group R
can be required to pay:
Within Total Carrying
1 year or 1-5 Over5 undiscounted amount at
on demand years years cash flows 31.12.2017
—E-tF
Lk #BH +-A=t-H
REX -Z5f IENE  BERESE ZEHE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETR BETR BEFT BETT BETR
2017 “E-t%
Trade and other payables® ERESEER
H MR 7,689,128 13,670 - 7,702,798 7,702,798
Convertible bonds, including embedded  AJ#AIE « B AL
derivative components TET AR 436,925 - - 436,925 422,644
Senior secured notes FERBLES 4,546,074 - - 4,546,074 4,325,202
Perpetual notes KAZE 359,182 - - 359,182 359,182
Other loans and borrowings HEZRER 5,730,007 4,174,065 145,167 10,049,239 9,663,015
Other derivative financial instruments ~ EfTE BT A 1,032,671 567 - 1,033,238 1,033,238
19,793,987 4,188,302 145,167 24,127,456 23,506,099
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-H=+—HI F&E

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. S RiEMEE(4)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RwBESRAMKE)
Within Total Carrying
1 year or 1-5 Overb  undiscounted amount at
on demand years years cash flows 31.12.2016
RZZ-7E
—ER #HE +t=A=t+-A
REX ik RENE  RenSHE ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2016 ZE-RE
Trade and other payables® ENESBER
HEMTE 106,301 - - 106,301 106,301
Convertible bonds, including embedded Al EZ + Ak AL
derivative components fTET AN - 467,908 - 467,908 380,588
Other loans and borrowings EEFRER 89,285 1,180,315 80,837 1,350,437 1,287,855
195,586 1,648,223 80,837 1,924,646 1,774,744

Excluding advance billings and billings in excess of
costs incurred and recognised profits. Payables on
demand relates to customer segregated funds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — = F+—A=+—HIFFZ

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in equity prices,
commodity prices, interest rates and foreign
exchange rates, will affect the Group’s income, or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

(i) Equity price risk

The Group hold listed equity securities
which are classified as available-for-sale
investments or equity securities designated
at fair value through profit or loss totalling,
approximately HK$218,663,000 (2016: Nil)
(Note 23). A 10% increase or decrease in the
underlying equity prices at the reporting date
with all other variables held constant would
increase or decrease the Group’s profit
before tax by approximately HK$21,866,300
(2016: Nil) respectively.

The fair value of derivative component of
the convertible bonds will be affected by
the changes in the Company’s share price
and share price volatility. At 31 December
2016 and 2017 as the conversion price of
the convertible bonds is higher than the
share price of the Company, the impact to
the Group’s result due to 10% change in
share price and volatility of the share price is
immaterial. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
is presented for both years.

(iii) Commodity price risk

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments such as commodity futures,
commodity option contracts, commodity
futures and commodity swaps to hedge
certain exposures. The markets used are the
London Metal Exchange (“LME”) for base
metals, such as copper, lead and zinc, the
London Bullion Market Association (“LBMA”)
for gold and silver, and the Intercontinental
Exchange (“NYSE: ICE”) and the New York
Mercantile Exchange (“NYMEX”).

4. SHEAREE®)
(d SRR
mizRABIEREER  HmES -
FERNERERDBYERE
Elms AR T AGEE R
%o MiGRAKREEZBIZAEIEW
ZHIFTEEE 2 TERRENZEXS
%(%@.W HEW})—E@J—H&A@#&

(i) R EE A
REBREIEATHDY
EREZ ETMRAESFL
hm%%ﬁ@ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ)\ﬁ

) &N %%:.,\,%’J/M%
218,663,000 7t ( — & — /<
&\ (KMizE23) - EATA
HEMaER=g#iETE 218
MT - BEREERRHRE
H 233 hn=om 2 10% 15 5 B
R AR B 2 bR 7 A 51|15
Insm > 4978 % 21,866,300
TL(ZFE—RF : &) o

AEEZAIBBRESITET
BEBHPzARBEEIAND
RIREZES KRB R
B - RZE—RFEERZFT
—+tF+ZA=+—H"H
RAJ R ES 2 BRERR
AATRE  MREZLE K
BREREN10%E A EEEE
ZHEWAERN - Bt I
=k b F R R F S 2 51 SRR
EDHT ©

(ii) i an 1B 15 B B2
AREFEMNBHTEESRTA
(nEmBE  mREs
B BmoBERERER)
s TEE - R5TEHEE
mEELBER S A ([LME])
(EEXEE > wiR - 5K
) RBILETHEHE
(TLBMA ) (ZE& R BR)
MB35 Fr ([ NYSE :
ICE|]) REAE MR 5 A
(TNYMEX]) -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. = REMEEE (&)
(d) Market risk (continued) (d) TEEE(E)
(i) Commodity price risk (continued) (i) A EREEE)
The following table presents the quantities by TREJZRERDEZE
commodity, to which the Group is exposed £ BERAEEEGERE
to commodity price risk. Base metals, such as EEk o EASE (W -
copper, lead and zinc are shown as, metric h M) AN (ANE) 2
tons (mt), precious metals such as gold and - mEeB(MESME
silver are shown as ounces (0z). R)IEHE A (FF) 25 -
Nickel/
Copper Lead Zinc Gold Silver  Aluminium  Naphtha Tin Ore
# h & Ed EE 8/8 il £EE
mt mt mt 0z 0z mt mt mt
¥ 0 ¥ B ] 0 0 L
2017 “B-tf
Gross exposure BER 115,001 8,489 10,129 104,279 2,252,556 2,363 (8,477) 206
Hedges EBRE (115.049)  (10689) (11,862  (103,000) (2,208,933  (2,371) 8,000 (190)
Net exposure FER 42 (2,200) (1,733) 1,189 43,623 8) (417) 16

Exposure to commodity prices is covered by
derivatives and therefore, changes to market
prices are not expected to significantly impact
the Group’s financial performance. Changes
in weight and content of the metals within
the concentrates can impact the Group’s
financial performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 g2 — =

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from loans and borrowings and convertible
bonds. Borrowings issued at variable rates
and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively. It is the Group’s policy
to maintain an appropriate level between its
fixed rate and variable rate borrowings so
as to optimise the fair value and cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group may also enters
into interest rate swap to hedge its interest
rate risk if necessary.

The interest rate profile of the Group’s loans
and borrowings and convertible bonds (as
defined at the end of the reporting period,
after taking into account the effect of interest
rate swaps designated as cash flow hedging
instruments) is disclosed in notes 31 and 32.

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that
a general increase or decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased or
increased the Group’s profit before tax
by approximately HK$83,718,000 (2016:
increased or decreased the Group’s profit
before tax by approximately HK$13,993,000).
This sensitivity analysis excludes the
impact from cash and bank balances as
the management considers the impact to
be insignificant having regard to the stable
trend in interest rates and thus no material
fluctuation is anticipated in the near future.

e SRR MR

£F+=A=+—FFEE
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(d) TBERGE)

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
(d) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before tax that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit
before tax is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such
a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2016.

Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign currency risks arising from
various currency exposures. Where possible,
the Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposure in operations by matching
its exposure to foreign currency receivables
to its exposure to foreign currency payables.
The Group may also explore using derivatives
to hedge its foreign exchange risk.

The Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposures in foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by repatriating
their earnings, where practicable. The
Group also requires the foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures to maintain their
borrowings in the relevant foreign currencies
which match their respective functional
currencies.

In respect of the other monetary assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than the
functional currencies, the Group reviews
the balances periodically to ensure the net
exposure is kept at an acceptable level.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt — & —

(d) Market risk (continued)

(iv)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. = RiEMEEE (&)
(d) ™WERE(E)
Currency risk (continued) (iv) E¥EEE)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, assets RZE—+FERZZE—RF
and liabilities related to disposal groups or +-—A=+—8H  HHE48
classified as held for sale are not exposed BB EABELEEZ
to significant currency risks. The Group’s EERBEREERERE
significant exposures to foreign currencies MRk - AEERBRFEL
from its continuing operations are as follows: R 7+ EHNEE
-
Singapore
US Dollar Dollar Euro Renminbi
EYr R 7T BT AR¥
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT EEFT BT
2017 —E-tF
Trade and other [ENE SIRIE R
receivables Hit YA 346,287 60,964 36,633 1,128,731
Cash and cash equivalents ~ JR&NESEEER 139,673 23,618 3,064 14,601
Trade and other payables FERE 5 8R1E K
HAt et 50A (308,408)  (1,325,928) (23,115)  (943,269)
Loans and borrowings BEHRER (5,186,620) (5,728) (181) -
Gross exposure arising ERREER
from recognised assets =~ BEfELY
and liabilities k458 (5,009,068) (1,247,074) 16,401 200,063
Forward exchange contracts  =ERINE S #) - 220,151 (1,876) (77,288)
Net exposure FER (5,009,068) (1,026,923) 14,525 122,775
2016 —RE
Trade and other receivables  EUE FERIE K
Hfth FE R IR 2,259 = = 233
Cash and cash equivalents ~ $4 R4 E(EEE 2,018 - - 4,586
Trade and other paybles e E FBRIE I
Hit R 5IE (25,074) - - -
Loans and borrowings ERRER (380,588) = (24,476) =
Gross exposure arising ERAEER
from recognised assets =~ BEfELZ
and liabilities Nk (401,385) - (24,476) 4,819
Forward exchange contracts & HiNE A 4] - - - -
Net exposure FER (401,385) = (24,476) 4,819

e SRR M EE

A= +— AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %2 — =&
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017, the US Dollar
exposure of approximately HK$5,186,620,000
arising from loans and borrowings was
mainly attributable from the intra-group loans
denominated in US Dollar raised by the
immediate parent of CWT SG with functional
currency of Singapore Dollar.

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the Group’s major
functional currencies against the following
currencies at the reporting date would
increase/(decrease) profit before tax by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

44,

< wh & b

EE )

(d) THERGE)

(iv)

BRmEpE (&)
RZF—tF+A=1+—
B EXBERREROE
% 5,186,620,000 7T Z & 7T
Rk EEZRECWT SGZH#
BRF (AR BIM
WIL)ERZEERRA]
B2 BFRASKTCRHERTE -

GRE AT
REEA  ARE2 =B
MEEEB LA TEEAE
10% 4582 11/ CRi ) T AR
REEZBBADEF « ST
BRARAEEmES(LHEE
M) ST o

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BHEF T BT T

US Dollar ET 500,907 40,139
Singapore Dollar BTN T 102,692 -
Euro BT (1,453) 2,448
Renminbi AR (12,278) (482)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e)

44, cERERERE®)

Fair values (e) 2REE
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) RAEEER
The table below analyse fair value TEAINMEMEERSRE
measurements for financial assets and BzRAREBETE - BREME
financial liabilities, by the levels in the fair BREAZBASBEZ S ZA
value hierarchy based on the inputs to REBEREBHKEZT -
valuation techniques.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& FE BE=MR @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets and liabilities & A BEIRZ
carried at fair value cCHEEREE
2017 kSl of 3
Other financial assets HithepEE 218,657 155,240 - 373,897
Derivative financial assets NESREE
- Commodities futures —Emig 250,454 47,714 - 298,168
— Commodities forward contracts — B fizHi& 4 310 713 - 1,023
- Commodities swaps —AmEH 59,620 - - 59,620
— Currency forward contracts ~ — E¥RHIA 4 - 2,841 - 2,841
— Fair value gain on commodity —ERAKZ AR
contracts EEkE - 18,153 - 18,153
529,041 224,661 - 753,702
Derivative financial liabilities THEemAaR
- Interest rate swaps ST - (567) - (567)
- Commodities futures -AmiiE (854,922) (67,071) - (921,993)
- Commodities forward contracts — & sz Hi4 4) - (14,360) - (14,360)
- Commodities options — AR - (6,692) - (6,692)
— Commodities swaps — A mis (39,655) - - (39,655)
- Currency forward contracts ~ —E¥RHIA 4 - (1,292) - (1,292)
— Fair value loss on commodity —HER&EHZ AR
contracts BEEBE - (48,679) - (48,679)
— Embedded derivative — Rk ES
component of convertible BARITEE R
bonds - - (41,988) (41,988)
(894,577) (138,661) (41,988) (1,075,226)
2016 —E-RE
Derivative financial liabilities THEemaR
~ Embedded derivative —ARRER 2
component of BAITE R
convertible bonds - - (56,167) (56,167)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. S RIEMREIE (&)
(e) Fair values (continued) (e) ANAEEE)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AABEER(E)
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial RZZE—tFRZT—RF
assets and liabilities not carried at fair value +-—A=+—8 AEEL
are not materially different from their fair AR BEIEZEHME
values as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. EkcenaEsREAERE
AABEITEEAEE -
The following table shows the carrying TRINNEREECHMEEZ
amounts and fair values of significant non- REEEAAREE  BFH
financial assets, including their levels in the RARBERBRS 2 KF -
fair value hierarchy.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R E-R F=M @ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Non-financial assets BROREEFEZ
measured at fair value FEMEE
2017 —E—+tF
Investment properties BEE - - 2,486,202 2,486,202
Warrantable LME commodities B 7 LMER i 136,387 - - 136,387
136,387 - 2,486,202 2,622,589
(i)  Measurement of fair value (i) AAEBHEE

The following tables show the valuation
techniques used in measuring Level 2 and
Level 3 fair values of financial instruments,
as well as the significant unobservable
inputs used. The valuation techniques used
in measuring the fair values of investment
properties are set out in Note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt — & —

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)

(i) Measurement of fair value (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type

ki

Valuation technique

187 7%

n‘lT

unobservable inputs

EXFTRERARE

b R

A= +— AR

44. S ELE S E@‘
(e) 2AREEE
(ii) @ﬁgﬁﬁgbi
A BEGTEZE/MITA
Inter-relationship
between key
unobservable inputs
Significant and fair value

measurement
IEFABERARE
HEAAEEFEZH
ZEBEF

Embedded derivative
component of
convertible bonds

AARES 2 @RA
OTHE b D

Commodities forward
contracts

HmERAH

Binomial method
—IEA

Market comparison technique:
The fair values are based
on exchange or broker
quotes. Similar contracts are
traded in an active market
and the quotes reflect the
actual transactions in similar
instruments.

THSHE T -
A BETNR SR
ABEBREE - BUSHR
ERMER S BRERY
BUTIEACZERSFE -

Volatility of 39%
(2016: 60%) is applied
in the 2016 Convertible
Bonds by reference
to the Company’s
historical volatility

%%Q%K‘ﬂZJﬁE’ii&ﬁ '

T AFARRES
i FH39% 2 i 1R
(ZE—7F : 60%)

Not applicable
TNEA

The estimated fair value
would increase/
(decrease) if the volatility
was higher/(lower).

WRERR,/ (R
Hf@ﬁ{@h
i,/ Of )

Not applicable
NEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)

(i) Measurement of fair value (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

(continued)

Type

kil

Valuation technique

187 7%

unobservable inputs

EXTTEEBARE

44, SREREE®)
(e) AAREBEGE)
(i) AREETEE)
BALIBETEZ /M T A
(45 )
(A8 )/
Inter-relationship
between key
unobservable inputs
Significant and fair value

measurement
IETTERGARE
BAREETEZH
ZEEEE

Commodities futures

LRt

Interest rate swaps
st

Currency forward
contracts
EHEHAN

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£

Market comparison technique:
The fair values are based on
month end spot and forward
prices received from broker.

THLE % -
DRBETIAEEAREZ
ARBERAEERAE

% o

Market comparison technique:
The fair values are based on
market value (MTM value)
provided by the bank.

THLE % -

DA BEETIARITRE 2
mE (BIEflE) AEE-

Market comparison technique:
The fair values are based
on broker quotes. Similar
contracts are traded in an
active market and the quotes
reflect the actual transactions
in similar instruments.

Tt 8% -
NABETIAELEARER
HE o BUEHNERT S
X5 BRERMENIA
ZERR5E -

Not applicable
il

Not applicable
il

Not applicable
NEH

Not applicable
TEA

Not applicable
TEA

Not applicable
NER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)

(ii)

Measurement of fair value (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair

value

Type

ki

Valuation technique

GV

2&1

e M ERRME

Pt = A=A —AIFEE

44,

SEEARERE &)

(e) 2~REEE)

(ii)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTTREEBARE

RABETE(E)

WRIERTS BEG B T
TA

Inter-relationship
between key
unobservable inputs
and fair value
measurement
TEFTEEDAHE
BAREEGTEZH
ZEEEE

Non-current receivables

MBI MR

Medium term notes

THRE

Other fixed-rate loans
and borrowings
HibE BEHRRER

Discounted cash flows.
BRIRERE -

Market comparison technique:

The fair value are based
on bank quotes.

The valuations are
calculated on the basis
of estimated mid-market
levels.

TSLEAE :
DREBEDARTHREAE
% o (HERBEF R RMS
TR -

Discounted cash flows.
BRRERE -

Risk-adjusted
discount rate
[\ SR AL IR K

Not applicable
TEH

Discount rate
BEH %

The estimated fair
value would increase
(decrease) if the
risk — adjusted discount
rate was lower (higher).
TWERARAERERE,
(&a) ' BFAREBES
s,/ CRd) -

Not applicable
TEH

The estimated fair value
would increase/
(decrease) if the
discount rate was
lower/(higher).

WEERERE /(&) -
hEr AR BEBEM
CR) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

tFEFAZ AU FE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. = REMEEE (&)
(e) Fair values (continued) (e) 2REEE)
(i)  Measurement of fair value (continued) (i) AAEEE(E)
Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 —AREIZE — 4R 7 [G] 2 B2
There were no transfers from Level 1 to Level %—%&5@%:?&2@3\?%&
2 nor the opposite direction in the reporting e B R FRE HR B L B
and comparative period. HR N AR R T R854 o
Level 3 fair value FE=RAA1EE
The following table shows a reconciliation for TRINRE=ZRAAEBEZ
Level 3 fair value: AR -
Derivative
component of
convertible bonds
AR E S 2 TE 5
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
B F T BT T
At 1 January ®n—A—H 56,167 11,996
Derecognition of New BB R AT AR (E 5
Convertible Bonds | (Note 32) (H17£32) - (11,996)
Recognition of 2016 R T — N EA B RES
Convertible Bonds (Note 32) (K15£32) - 117,058
Gain arising on changes of N BEREFTES 2 W
fair value (Note 10) (Hia£10) (14,179) (61,191)
Exchange realignment PE % - 300
31 December +=—A=+—H 41,988 56,167
Sensitivity analysis B T
For the fair values of the available-for- RAREESREEZAR
sale financial assets, reasonably possible BEMES @ REMEAZBIE

changes at the reporting date to one of the
significant unobservable inputs, holding other
inputs constant, the impact to the Group’s
result due to reasonably possible changes
of the significant unobservable inputs at the
reporting date, holding other inputs constant,
is immaterial. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RARMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt2 —FE—+F+ - A=+—HIFFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)

(iii)  Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

44, cERERERE®)
AREEE)

(i) BHELHEERERE

(e)

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets/
liabilities

offset in the

Net amounts

of financial
assets/
liabilities
presented in the

Related
amounts not
offset in the
consolidated

Gross amounts consolidated consolidated statement
of recognised statement statement of financial
financial assets/ of financial of financial position-financial
liabilities position position instruments Net amount
RERBHRRR REAHE BRR
BRE AHzERE KRRz GREERRX
SREE/ SREE/ SHEE/ EHIARLE
BfE4E BRE4E BEFE -$HIA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
2017 “E-tE
Type of financial assets ~ £REEER
Derivatives fTETA 1,690,960 (1,311,155) 379,805 - 379,805
Type of financial liabilities ~ &8 EEH
Derivatives fETA 2,344,393 (1,311,155) 1,033,238 - 1,033,238

There were no offsetting of financial assets
and liabilities as at 31 December 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ST RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — &

ir-H

nn

45.

(@) Income

tFEFAZ AU FE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 45, BEXRS
TRANSACTIONS
Apart from the Agreement as entered with Leader Concept MEESKRET Y Za (B RN
as detailed in Note 6(a) and disclosed elsewhere in the 6(a)) MERA SRR BEEI  KNEE
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the ZRABERRZIMT
following related party transactions:
(@ WA
2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
B F T BB ToT
Sales of goods and/or services to A ARHEER R
associates AR TS 22,238 -
Sales of goods and/or services to MeErEEEERRE
joint ventures AR TS 10,604 -
Interest income from fellow RERZRKB AR ZFBWA
subsidiaries - 9,868
Interest income from associates REHE QR ZFBIA 474 -
Imputed interest income on interest-  FEU ST E B HAME AT 2
free amounts due from other REBFRIBZHEF WA
subsidiaries of HNA Group - 1,673
Golf club membership income from 2R E —[#@E A A 2 S KBk
a related company* =@ AL - 11,844

Dividend received from joint ventures UELA & 1> 2 [% =

i The transaction constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, details of which are set out
in the paragraph headed “Connected transactions

and continuing connected transaction”

in the

Report of the Directors of the annual report for the

year ended 31 December 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

45. EXBELTRZ &)

(b) Expense (b) BX

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BT T

Purchase of goods and/or services A& A RIBEE SR L
from associates S ARTE 8,998 -

Purchase of goods and/or services [AI& & hXEEER L/
from joint ventures AR TS 4,490 -

Laundry expense to a m—HEEAR SN2

related company* Vi 464 633

Imputed interest expense as EARRZHENERXZ
promissory note - 13,435
Rental paid to associates e ARES 1,180 =

The transaction constitute connected transactions

under the Listing Rules but is exempt from the
disclosure requirements as it is below the de

minimis threshold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

45. ERBERIRZ (#)

(c) Compensation of key management (c) FEEBAEZHE
personnel
The remuneration of key management members, FEEBAE(AAKEES)RNA
who are the Directors of the Group during the year, EFEZMESWT :
was as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Short term benefits 72 Hp A& A 9,898 11,114
Post-employment benefits BREL 12 BT 200 308
10,098 11,422
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see IS BRI B TR J AR (R M
Note 12). F12) o
The remuneration of executive directors is PWTESEMeRFTMEZESREA
determined by the remuneration committee having KBRS BRERE
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
(d)  Details of balances with related parties of the Group (d) BEARSERFELEBEERTFIBD

are set out in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position on pages 91 to 93 and Notes
25, 26 and 29 the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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46.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 gt — & —

an\

b R

+tFF-A=+—HIFEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. ZAAREEMBERAR ZF1E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 AR EEMBRAIN-ZE—LEFER_Z
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows: —RNE+=-A=1+—8© ZE?’lEZZDT
The Group’s effective
Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
r5E
AL/ ERTRARRE BRITRE
WEARER dMeE BR TEEEHE /REMER  EAAEZERER 2 TELEER
2017 2016
“E-tF ZBRF
% %
Continuing operations
BESEES
CWT Logistics Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 5,002,502 shares 100 - Provision of warehousing
Coigilbe I of SG$1 each and logistics services
5,002,502 &k REE R RE
HEITIET
bd i3
Force 21 Equipment Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 2,000,000 shares 70 - Provision of warehousing
K CoigilEe of SG$1 each and logistics services
2,000,0008% &A% RERRRIRRE
HEITIET
b3
Indeco Engineers Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 600,146 shares 100 - Management and
Hs A of SG$3.43 each maintenance of vehicles
600,1468% Z it and equipment, supply
FIE3.435T M T and installation of
2k engineering products,

and design-and-build
for logistics properties

BRHLREERNE
& TIRERZMER
REARDRYFE 2R
AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

46. ARTETEMB AR ZFHE @)

(continued)

The Group’s effective

Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
s 3]
KL, ERTRARERA BRITRA /M
WEARER At BR  TEEEHY /RMER EAREZEREZ 2 TELEEK
2017 2016
“E-tF ZE-5%
% %
Continuing operations
(continued)
FELEXK ()
CWT Integrated Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 20,000,000 shares 100 - Provision of warehousing
EIb b of SG$1 each and logistics services
20,000,000 5% REE R RIRRE
HEHNET
bd ')
CWT Globelink Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 800,000 shares 100 - Provision of
g ik of SG$1 each transportation, sea
800,000 &% freight forwarding
BEFET services and container
L% freight station services
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46.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 — & —+F+—

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

e SRR MR

The Group’s effective

46. ARTETEMB AR ZFH1E®H)

A=1+—HIFFE

Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
SRMAL/ ERIRAZRA ﬁ$/3ﬁ
WEARER dMeE BR TEEEHE /EmER :éZFE{EZamEﬁ‘ TEQERH
2017 2016
“2-tF —FAF
0/l) %
Continuing operations
(continued)
BELSEXK(H)
Globelink-Trans (Tianijin) PRC PRC 10,656,640 shares 100 - Provision of
International Forwarding A A of RMB 1 each transportation, sea
Co., Ltd 10,656,640 & i freight forwarding
EEAREIT services and container
IR freight station services
RMtEH  MNERRRS
RERBEEURE
MRI Group Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 131,588,000 shares 100 - Physical trading
K EoigilEe of US$1 each and supply chain
131,588,0008% &% management of base
AEIET metal nonferrous
) 3 concentrates and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

46. ARTETEMB AR ZFHE @)

(continued)

The Group’s effective

Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
r5E
AR, BERARMERA BRITRA /M
WEARER aftE BR FEEEHE JHEMER  EAEECEMER 2 FELEER
2017 2016
ZE-+E —T-RE
% %
Continuing operations
(continued)
FESEEK ()
MRI Trading AG Switzerland Switzerland 115,933 shares 100 - Physical trading
Int Int of CHF 10 each and supply chain
115,933 =% management of base
EE105R LA metal nonferrous
IR concentrates and
energy products
BeBRERRRERE
mZ ENR 5 Rt
3
Straits Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 13,000,000 shares 97.4 - Provision of financial
Hsg Hnsg of US$1 each brokerage and
13,000,000( & i structured trade
HE1ETZRS services
RUSHSERERILE
5k
Straits Financial Group Pte Ltd  Singapore Singapore 58,652,000 shares 97.4 - Investment holding
s HsE of US$1 each BB
58,652,000 &%
BEIETZ KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

an\

N —

ﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

A=1+—HIFFE

46. ARTETEMB AR ZFH1E®H)

The Group’s effective

Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
s3]
L, BRTRAZRE BRTRE /R
WERARER A/ BR  TEEEY /HMER  EAEEZEREZ  TELEEK
2017 2016
“Z-tF ZE5F
0/0 %
Continuing operations
(continued)
REREXK ()
Straits Financial Services Pte Ltd  Singapore Singapore 30,000,000 shares 97.4 - Provision of financial
K K of US$1 each brokerage services
30,000,000/ 5 & RESREL RS
HEIETZ KRG
Straits Financial LLC United States USA 33,000,000 shares 94.4 - Provision of financial
of America (‘USA”) % of US$1 each brokerage services
EFIRARH 33,000,000/ &% RS RIS R
([%&)) EE1ET R
CWT Commaodities Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 2,000,000 shares 100 - Provision of warehousing
K gl of SG$1 each and logistics services
2,000,008 &% RE A R R
HEITIET
bd i3
CWT Aquarius Shipping South Africa South Africa 1,333 shares 70 - Provision of warehousing
International (Pty) Ltd EE #3k of R1 each and logistics services,
1,333 =ik transportation and
BE1RE R freight forwarding
services
REERRITRE -
B R ERRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-H=+—HI F&E

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

46. ARTETEMB AR ZFHE @)

(continued)
The Group’s effective
Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
r5E
AR, BERARMERA BRITRA /M
WEARER aftE BR FEEEHE JHEMER  EAEECEMER 2 FELEER
2017 2016
Bt ZESE
% %
Continuing operations
(continued)
FESEEK ()
CWT-ASI Africa Ltd South Africa South Africa 1,333 shares 70 - Provision of warehousing
EES EEd of R1 each and logistics services,
1,333k & ik transportation and
EE1EE R freight forwarding
services
REERRMTRE -
BB NGRS
CWT Commodities Singapore Singapore 500,000 shares 100 - Provision of warehousing
(Indochine) Pte Ltd sk sk of SG$1 each and logistics services
500,0008% &% AR LR RE
BEHNET
b
CWT Commodities (Metals) Pte  Singapore Singapore 4,000,000 shares 100 - Provision of warehousing
Ltd s g of SG$1 each and logistics services
4,000,0008% &A% REE R RIRRE
EEHNET
b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

an\

N —

ﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

A=1+—HIFFE

46. ARTETEMB AR ZFH1E®H)

The Group’s effective

Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
r5E
AR ERTRARRE BRITRE /M
WEARER dMes BR TEEEHE /REMER EAAEZERER  TELEER
2017 2016
“2-tF —FAF
0/0 %
Continuing operations
(continued)
BELSEXK(H)
GWT Commodities (China) Singapore Singapore 500,000 shares 100 - Provision of warehousing
Pte Ltd K Hnsg of SG$1 each and logistics services
500,000 &% RERRRIRRE
EEFIET
b3
GWT Europe B.V. Group The The 90,000 shares 70 - Provision of warehousing
Netherlands Netherlands of EUR1 each and logistics services
el FGili ] 90,000 &% RER DR RS
EE1BT 2R
DG Hillview The PRC The PRC Registered capital 65 65  Operation of sports and
FrlEs # i US$34,060,000 leisure related
HfBA facilities business
34,060,000% 7T BEBERARIER
BES
HNA International Property B.V.I. UK 1 ordinary share 100 100  Property investment
Investment Company HERTHE HE of US$1 MERE
Three Limiteds 1REREE
1ETzERR

CWT International Limited Annual Report 2017

281
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AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. AP EXEEMB AT 2FHE &)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The Group’s effective

Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
72
KL, ERTRARRE BRITRA /M
WEARER HRmtE BR TEEEMY /RMER EAEEZEREZ 2 TELEEK
2017 2016
—E-t&E 5%
% %
Continuing operations
(continued)
FELEXK ()
HNA Newcastle Golf, LLC# USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Ede0 e TEA MERE
HNA Trophy Lake Golf, LLC# USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Ede0 e TEA MERE
HNA Redmond Ridge, LLC# USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Ede0 e TER MERE
HNA Washington National USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Golf, LLC® Ede0 e Tam MERE
HNA Harbour Pointe, LLC# USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Ede0 e TEA MERE
HNA Indian Summer Golf, LLC#  USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Ede0 e TEA MERE
HNA Hawks Prairie Golf, LLC® ~ USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Ede0 e TEA MERE
HNA Plateau Golf, LLC# USA USA N/A 100 100  Property investment
Ede Ed5i TEA MERE
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46.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+tF+=—H=+—HAIFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. AP EXEEMB AT 2FH1EE)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The Group’s effective

Place/ Issued and interest over nominal
country of Principal fully paid value of issued
incorporation/  place of share capital/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital registered capital Principal activities
r5E
RN BERTRARRE BRITRA /T
WEAR &R HMeE/BR TESEBY /EMER BAEEZEREZ < TELEER
2017 2016
ZE-tf ZTRF
% %
Discontinued operations
BAILER
Sino Stride Technology B.V.L Hong Kong 1,078,959,000 - 100  Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited HERAEE A% ordinary shares REER
HERREEERARE of HK$0.01 each
1,078,959,0008%
BREE
%0.017T
LRR
Sinostride Technology The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 58.5  System value-added
Company Limited e i i RMB113,000,000 service solution
(“Sinostride Technology’) AR and development
PR R AR A Ae AR %113,000,0007 ZERERBIRRER
(ThEng])
Zhejiang Concord Optic The PRC The PRC Registered capital - 80 Inactive
- Electronic Technology q: A RMB10,000,000 Ty
Company Limited e AR
L HAREREBR AR AR10,000,0007T
Made Connection Limited® Samoa Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100  Investment holding
RED BE of US$1 RERR
REEIET
LR
Indirectly held through subsidiaries & FERMBAREEEE
e Registered under the laws of the PRC as a Sino-foreign e BRIEFBEEFEMA—HHRINEGIEEE
co-operative joint venture 13
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities for BMEMNBATIREE-_ZE—+5+_A
the year ended 31 December 2017. =+ —BHIEFEZETHENERES
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nVT\

BT ERRM

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-H=+—HI F&E

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

47. ARRQTBHBEAMRRE

2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RERE 4,581 10,279
Investments in subsidiaries RSB AR ZI&E 158,100 231,252
Advances to subsidiaries ElGENS RS AN - 585,000
Club debentures SHES 700 700
163,381 827,231
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - Be REAERR
receivables 5,469 6,232
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B A |3 IE 5,593,879 2,240,955
Amounts due from related company JE U B85 A B F0E - 385,404
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERIRE 10,572 968,959
5,609,920 3,601,550
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables, deposits received HibEMFIE « BEYWIEE K&
and accruals JEfHIEH 57,669 46,110
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTHY B A |38 - 609,436
Amount due to related companies FETREE A RIFIAE 166 7,383
Borrowings e 20,000 24,476
Convertible bonds and related payables A # & (&% [ 48 8 fe (~ 0B 380,656 =
Embedded derivative component of AIARRES Z #RAR
convertible bonds PTETEED 41,988 -
Obligations under finance leases BMEMREAE - 565
500,479 687,970
Net current assets REBEEZFE 5,109,441 2,913,580
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREESE 5,272,822 3,740,811
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47.
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

PN S O ELE )

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities FERBEME
Convertible bonds and related payables B #2j% (& 55 % 48 78 FE 1~ 5K 8 - 324,421
Embedded derivative component A ES Z TR AR
of convertible bonds PTETEZGD - 56,167
Promissory note O E 30,000 =
Obligations under finance leases AVE AR SR - 1,706
30,000 382,294
Net assets EEFE 5,242,822 3,358,517
Capital and reserves BRAR &
Share capital R& 2R 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves M 511,342 (1,372,963)
Equity attributable to owners RRATFEE AELER
of the Company 5,242,822 3,358,517

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 24 April 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Guo Ke
B
DIRECTOR
EE

ARBZHBRRRER —F—/\FOEA
“tHORAEEESHERRETIE - Xh
THEEREREE

Xu Haohao
DIRECTOR
EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

772 5 =|

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

48.

49.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the Acquisition, certain comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform to current year’s
presentation and to provide comparative amounts in
respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2017.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BBV HERELERFEN  2H T A

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

FEMBHREERNE1ES - LA AWz

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property

BB R EREI0RER R - KEYE - BEREYE

HK(IFRIC) Int 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

48.

49.

TE(ERMBREREZEG)REE22N - IEXZRANHE

HKFRS 16, Leases
BBV HEHREERFE165%  HE

CWT International Limited 207174 F #£

E8HF
ERRESEE - BETLERFEDHEN
MEAFEZ 2IFARRR-T—£F
EREE 2 A REL RS -

E-F-—LtFT-A=1—
BiEFEEREMERRERZ
BRI A ~ Al BARZRZE

EE

BERSHHHRREMBY - BB
AREEBMEERBE_T—+F+_-A
=t BLEFERREME HRRZFHM
B|MERPERANETRNRIER - %F
BRI AR R R BT L AN B F R K
A& -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after
LT BBz

Z &I B E
HfEi 4 5%

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—HA—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—HA—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—HA—H

1 January 2018
—ZE-N\F—HA—H

1 January 2019
—ZE-hF—HA—H



49.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption
of the standards may differ as the assessment completed
to date is based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be identified before the
standards are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 June 2018. The Group
may also change its accounting policy elections, including
the transition options, until the standards are initially applied
in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, including the measurement of impairment for
financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand,
HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition
of financial instruments and the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group
plans to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

49,

e PR M

Pt A=+ —AIFEE

E=F-tFT=-H=T=
AiESEEEREMEERERZ
BEIAR - MR RERBZE
EREW®

F= e

AEBERIEF G FERA « LR K2
BREVZEAPRcBHEE - 294K
B2 BRI ER M E T o m Al sE SR A M
BRREREANTE - BHRENE—F
HBER T Xl - BE BBV BIRE LR
FOWR R BRI B MEERF15R ARG
EAEEK - ERRES TR EER
AEEBATAESNER - EHERR
MEANBERFZERAIELIR - EZFE
AMPFEARARERE—_T—N\FXA
=tHIEREAND AR ERER - X
BEHHELZFE - AEETAIEREAS
ABREE BRBESR BEERFE
A BERARNZA B RS

FERMBHRELENEI  EBMTA
BEMBRESEAFOFHRR BB R
TRAEHREZREEAFEGEAE
39% @ T A - BRARAE - BEM
BELEANFIRIANBEAEEREE
(BHRTESREEMBERE TETREIE)
ZHRE - mn—HE  BEMBEREER
FOFMAELBANBERDELSHERNS
SOMAMER LR UEERER T AR S A
BENBLAAEZHRE -

FEMBHREENESRIREPEER—
- N\F-A—BRzEABzFEHME
o AEBERBEREINLREN ZFH
% UHHEIARR_-_ZT—N\F-—HA—-RHZ
IR SR AR E L 2 (E DR E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s

financial statements are as follows:

(a)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and (8) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified
as FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment
and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is
designated as FVTOCI then only dividend
income on that security will be recognised in
profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments
on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (continued)

For financial assets and equity instrument currently
held at fair value, the Group expects to continue
measuring these assets at fair value under HKFRS 9.
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity debt
securities that are currently accounted for at
amortised cost will continue to be accounted for
using amortised cost model under HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS
9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s credit risk
to be recognised in other comprehensive income
(without reclassification to profit or loss). The Group
currently does not have any significant financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this new
requirement will not have any impact on the Group
on adoption of HKFRS 9.

49 @:I:—?

tE+-A=F=
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REBEFEMBRESEAFIRAR
REBEEMAEXFTEE - MREZH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or a
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the asset
and the facts and circumstances. The Group plans
to apply the simplified approach and record lifetime
expected credit loss on all trade receivables and
any contract assets arising from the application of
HKFRS 15.

The Group expects that the application of the
expected credit loss model will result in earlier
recognition of credit losses. Based on a preliminary
assessment, if the Group were to adopt the new
impairment requirements at 31 December 2017,
accumulated impairment loss at that date would not
increase significantly compared with that recognised
under HKAS 39. As a consequence, no material
adjustment will be made to the opening balances of
net assets and retained profits at 1 January 2018.

The Group is currently finalising the testing of its
expected credit loss model and the quantum of the
final transition adjustments may be different upon
finalisation.
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49.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

(c) Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the
requirements relating to measuring and recognising
ineffectiveness under HKAS 39. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The
Group has assessed that its current hedge
relationships will qualify as continuing hedges upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9 and therefore it expects
that the accounting for its hedging relationships will
not be significantly impacted.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts.

49.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —ZE—+#1+ - A=+—HIFF/Z

49.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to be
affected:

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in Note 2(cc). Currently, revenue arising
from construction contracts and the provision of
services is recognised over time, whereas revenue
from the sale of goods is generally recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to
the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies three
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(if) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

(iif) When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —E—+#+1—A=+—HIFF/Z

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these three situations, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for
the sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue
standard is not likely to have significant impact
on how it recognises revenue from construction
contracts.

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money when a
contract contains a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from customers
are received significantly in advance or in arrears,
which are currently not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect
transition method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application

as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group plans
to apply the new requirements only to contracts that are

not completed before 1 January 2018. Since the number
of “open” construction contracts at 31 December 2017 is
limited, the Group expects that the transition adjustment to

be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be

material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z —F—+4#+ - H=1—HI F&F

49,

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(o), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending
on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into
some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition
of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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49.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —E—+F+ - A=

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in Note
40, at 31 December 2017 the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to approximately HK$2,424,248,000, the majority
of which is payable either between one and five years
after the reporting date or in more than five years. Some
of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised
as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to
perform a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into
account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different transition
options and practical expedients, including the practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of
which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. If this
practical expedient is chosen, the Group will apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. If the
practical expedient is not chosen, the Group will need to
reassess all of its decisions about which existing contracts
are, or contain, leases, using the new definition. Depending
on whether the Group elects to adopt the standard
retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective method of
recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the Group
may or may not need to restate comparative information for
any changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.
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A FMBRE

RESULTS

ES

For the years ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T—=F —ZT—NF —T—RHF —T—RFE E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BIFoT BEFor BIEFor BT BETFT
(restated)
(&2 5E75)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: &5,/ (E1E) -
Owners of the Company RNABHER A (318,378) (335,016) (213,810) (21,902) 204,478
Non-controlling interests FEIE R fE s (37,052) (16,242) (21,791) (37,938) 21,733
(355,430) (351,258) (235,601) (59,840) 226,211
Earning/(loss) per share SRERN,/(EE)
Basic (HK cents) EAR (B (11.83) (9.96) (4.28) (0.19) 1.79
Diluted (HK cents) B5E (BL) (11.83) (9.96) (4.28) (0.40) 1.79
Dividends gy = = = = -
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE BERFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+-—H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F ZEWmF ZE-hF ZE—RF —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
B For B FoT B FoT BT BEFT
Total assets AR 2,060,470 4,197,493 6,429,176 6,421,122 31,181,703
Total liabilities Bar (1,185,226)  (2,727,182)  (2,472,863)  (2,682,360) (25,210,370)
884,244 1,470,311 3,956,313 3,738,762 5,971,333
Equity attributable to VAN/NGIE =N
owners of the Company  fE{hiER 813,975 983,179 3,512,380 3,360,211 5,444,133
Non-controlling interests ~ 3EiERR g 70,269 487,132 443,933 378,551 527,200
884,244 1,470,311 3,956,313 3,738,762 5,971,333
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